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“Serves the nation as a highly motivated
corporate entity responsive to national needs

and modern trading challenges.”

“Development of corporate structures
managed by professionals.
Continuous human resources development.
Development of web, IT-based operational
environment.

Ensure total transparency and zero
tolerance for corrupt practices.
Optimal use of resources and economy in
operations without compromising quality.
Continuous update on national and
international markets.
Capacity enhancement.”
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MESSAGE OF MINISTER FOR COMMERCE

Dear Stakeholders,

oo

As we reflect on the fiscal year 2023-24, I am proud to witness the commendable
progress made by the Trading Corporation of Pakistan (TCP) in navigating the
complexities of our trading landscape. The organization has not only fulfilled its
mandate but has also reinforced its critical role in ensuring the stability and security of
essential commodities in our country.

This year, TCP’s successful import of 219,789 MT of Urea from Azerbaijan is a testament to its
commitment to supporting our agricultural sector. Such initiatives are vital in meeting the demands of our
farmers and bolstering food security across Pakistan. The resilience demonstrated in financial performance,
despite challenges, speaks volumes about the organization's prudent management and strategic foresight.

The proposed business development plan, with its innovative approach to diversifying revenue streams, is
particularly commendable. By expanding operations into both public and private sectors and exploring new
avenues for trade, TCP is poised to evolve into a more agile and responsive entity. The focus on enhancing
operational efficiencies through amendments to procurement rules aligns perfectly with our vision for
modernizing state-owned enterprises.

As we move forward, I encourage TCP to remain steadfast in its commitment to excellence and innovation.
The plans for developing infrastructure, such as silos and warehousing, not only address immediate needs
but also lay a strong foundation for future growth. These initiatives are essential for positioning TCP as a
leading player in both local and regional markets.

I would like to extend my sincere appreciation for the TCP team and its Board of Directors for their hard
work and dedication, and believe you would enhance and better it every passing year. Your efforts are
instrumental in driving our economy forward and ensuring the well-being of our citizens.

Thank you for your continued trust in TCP as we work together to build a prosperous future for Pakistan.

Warm regards,

Jam Kamal Khan
Federal Minister for Commerce
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MESSAGE OF SECRETARY COMMERCE

Dear Stakeholders,

As we conclude the fiscal year 2023-24, it is with great pride that I acknowledge the
significant achievements of the Trading Corporation of Pakistan (TCP). Through the
collective efforts of the TCP team, this organization has continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring the
stability of essential commodities in our nation.

The past year has been marked by notable accomplishments, including the successful import of 219,789 MT
of Urea, which has greatly supported our agricultural sector. This achievement exemplifies TCP’s
commitment to enhancing food security and addressing the needs of our farmers.

Despite facing financial challenges, TCP’s ability to generate a profit of Rs. 2.6 billion reflects effective
management and a strategic approach to navigating the evolving trade landscape. The initiatives outlined in
the new business development plan demonstrate a forward-thinking mindset aimed at diversifying revenue
streams and expanding operations.

I am particularly encouraged by TCP's focus on modernizing its processes and facilities, in its operations as
well as in its HR management, which aligns with the government’s broader objective of transforming state-
owned enterprises at the level of private sector enterprises. TCP’s new business plan will undoubtedly
facilitate more efficient operations and better service delivery to both public and private sectors.

I extend my heartfelt gratitude to the Chairman, the Board of Directors, and every member of the TCP team
for their unwavering dedication and hard work. Your efforts are crucial in reinforcing TCP’s status as a
cornerstone of Pakistan’s economic development.

As we look to the future, I am confident that TCP will continue to thrive and adapt to the challenges ahead,
ensuring the continued well-being of our nation.

Thank you for your trust and support in TCP.

Sincerely,

Jawad Paul
Secretary Commerce
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CHAIRMAN'SMESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

As we conclude another fiscal year (2023-24), I am pleased to share the significant > .
strides our organization has made in fulfilling its mandate as a key player in Pakistan’s ? .
trade landscape. The past year has been marked by both challenges and achievements, driven by our
commitment to serve the public interest under the directives of the Federal Cabinet.

In alignment with our new roles, TCP has effectively managed the import of essential commodities on
behalf of various ministries. Notably, we successfully imported 219,789 MT of Urea from Azerbaijan,
which was handed over to the National Fertilizer Marketing Limited (NFML). This operation underscores
our vital function in ensuring the availability of critical agricultural inputs.

Financially, TCP demonstrated resilience, despite facing a decrease in commission income primarily due to
the shift in our import operations. Our revenue stream for the fiscal year 2023-24 totaled Rs. 5.87 billion,
with notable contributions from investment income, which increased due to favorable monetary policies that
enhanced government securities’ yields. Additionally, our rice inspection services flourished, generating Rs.
57.9 million as we issued 1,162 Authenticity Certificates for the export of rice to international markets.

We are proud to report a profit before taxation of Rs. 4.41 billion, resulting in a profit after taxation of Rs.
2.6 billion. This performance translates to an earnings per share of Rs. 26.01. Our prudent financial
management has enabled us to maintain our dividend at Rs. 200 million, ensuring consistent returns for our
shareholders.

Looking ahead, we recognize the urgent need to diversify and streamline our operations to enhance revenue
and efficiency. Our new business plan aims to reduce sole dependence on government procurements and
address the intricate and slow procurement processes that currently limit our responsiveness. We are
proposing amendments to the Public Procurement Regulatory Authority (PPRA) rules to facilitate
operational ease, ensuring we can promptly meet the needs of our stakeholders.

Our business development plan, approved by the Board of Directors, focuses on alternative revenue sources
while remaining aligned with our Memorandum of Association. This plan is structured in three stages:

1. Short-Term (1-2 years): We will expand our commodity supplies to both public and private
sectors, exploring opportunities for trade with Afghanistan and supporting non-governmental
organizations (NGOs) through indenting operations. Additionally, we aim to construct silos at Pipri
Karachi under a public-private partnership model.

2. Medium-Term (2-5 years): We plan to continue expanding our commodity supplies and develop
warehousing capacities in Multan, along with the solarization of our existing warehouses.

3. Long-Term (5 years): Our vision includes modernizing existing facilities, developing a solar park
at TCP Pipri, and exploring marine insurance operations through a state-owned enterprise.

These initiatives not only aim to diversify our revenue streams but also position TCP to operate efficiently
within the framework of the new State-Owned Enterprises Act of 2023.
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In closing, I would like to express my gratitude to our dedicated team for their hard work and to our
stakeholders for their unwavering support. Together, we will continue to strengthen TCP’s position as a
cornerstone of Pakistan’s economic development.

Thank you for your continued trust in TCP.
Sincerely,

Syed Rafeo Bashir Shah
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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COMPANY INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (AS ON 30™ JUNE 2024)

CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
1 SYED RAFEO BASHIR SHAH

DIRECTORS

2. MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI NON-EXECUTIVE
3. DR.IMRANULLAH KHAN NON-EXECUTIVE
4. MR. MUHAMMAD AZAM KHAN NON-EXECUTIVE
S. MS. SAIRA IMDAD ALI NON-EXECUTIVE
6. MIR BALAGH SHER MARRI INDEPENDENT

7. SYED MIRAN MUHAMMAD SHAH INDEPENDENT

8. MR. AASIM AZIM SIDDIQUI INDEPENDENT

9. MR. FUAD HAMID AHMED INDEPENDENT
10. MS. TASNEEM YUSUF INDEPENDENT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

1 MR. AASIM AZIM SIDDIQUI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) CHAIRMAN
2. MS. TASNEEM YUSUF (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER

3. DR.IMRAN ULLAH KHAN (REPRESENTATIVE OF FINANCE DIVISION) MEMBER

4. MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI (REPRESENTATIVE OF MINISTRY OF COMMERCE) MEMBER

5. CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR SECRETARY

HR, ADMIN & IT COMMITTEE

1 MIRBALAGH SHER MARRI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) CHAIRMAN
2. SYED MIRAN MUHAMMAD SHAH (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER

3. JOINT SECRETARY, MINISTRY OF NAT. FOOD SECURITY & RESEARCH MEMBER

4, MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI (REPRESENTATIVE OF MINISTRY OF COMMERCE) MEMBER

5. GENERAL MANAGER (HUMAN RESOURCE) SECRETARY

PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

1 MS. TASNEEM YUSUF (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) CHAIRPERSON
2. MR. FUAD HAMID AHMED (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER

3. SYED RAFEO BASHIR SHAH (CHAIRMAN TCP) MEMBER

4. MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI (REPRESENTATIVE OF MINISTRY OF COMMERCE) MEMBER

5. DR. IMRANULLAH KHAN (REPRESENTATIVE OF FINANCE DIVISION) MEMBER

6. MIR BALAGH SHER MARRI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER

7. GENERAL MANAGER (TRADE & RESEARCH) SECRETARY

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

1 MS. TASNEEM YUSUF (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) CHAIRPERSON
2. MIR BALAGH SHER MARRI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER

3. DR. IMRANULLAH KHAN (REPRESENTATIVE OF FINANCE DIVISION) MEMBER

4, MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI (REPRESENTATIVE OF MINISTRY OF COMMERCE) MEMBER

5. GENERAL MANAGER (FINANCE & ACCOUNTYS) SECRETARY
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CSR COMMITTEE

1 MIR BALAGH SHER MARRI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) CHAIRMAN
2. MR. AASIM AZIM SIDDIQUI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER
3. SYED MIRAN MUHAMMAD SHAH (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER
4, SYED RAFEO BASHIR SHAH (CHAIRMAN TCP) MEMBER
5. COMPANY SECRETARY SECRETARY

RISK MANAGEMENT & LITIGATION COMMITTEE

1 SYED MIRAN MUHAMMAD SHAH (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) CHAIRMAN

2. MIR BALAGH SHER MARRI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER

3. MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI (REPRESENTATIVE OF MINISTRY OF COMMERCE)  MEMBER

4, SYED RAFEO BASHIR SHAH (CHAIRMAN TCP) MEMBER

5. MR. FARRUKH MAJEED QURESHI CO-OPTED MEMBER
6. GENERAL MANAGER (COMPLIANCE) SECRETARY

REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

1. MIR BALAGH SHER MARRI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) CHAIRMAN
2, MR. AASIM AZIM SIDDIQUI (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER
3. SYED MIRAN MUHAMMAD SHAH (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER
4, MR. FUAD HAMID AHMED (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR) MEMBER
5. SYED RAFEO BASHIR SHAH (CHAIRMAN TCP) MEMBER
6. MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI (REPRESENTATIVE OF MINISTRY OF COMMERCE) ~ MEMBER
7. GENERAL MANAGER (REAL ESTATE) SECRETARY
MR. FARRUKH MAJEED QURESHI 4"& 5™ Floor, Finance & Trade Centre

Main Shahra-e-Faisal ,K arachi-75530
Phones: 021-99202947-49
Fax: 021-99202722, 99202731
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57" DIRECTORSREPORT TO THE MEMBERS
FOR THE YEAR 2023-24

The Board of Directorsis pleased to present the TCP' s Annual Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts for the
Financia Y ear 2023 - 24 ended on 30" June 2024.

1. DIRECTORS’ PROFILES & CHANGES IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Thecurrent Board of Directors, as mentioned above, was notified on 8" August 2023 i.e. during thefinancial year 2023-
24. Besides the representative of the Ministry of Commerce, the Board of Directors has representation from the
Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Industries & Production, and Ministry of National Food Security & Research, as ex-
officio / Non-Executive Directors.

Brief profiles of the Directors on the Board of the Corporation are given as under:
11 SYED RAFEO BASHIR SHAH:

Syed Rafeo Bashir Shah isthe Chairman & Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. HeisaBS-22 Officer from the
Commerce & Trade Group. He holds a master’s degree in International Law & Economics, from the World Trade
Institute, University of Berne, Switzerland, and a Bachelor of Electrical Engineering. He brings to the Corporation, an
extensive experience in Trading and Commercial marketing of more than 20 years from his working in the erstwhile
Export Promotion Bureau and the current Trade Development Authority of Pakistan. He has held various important
positions in the Trade Development Authority of Pakistan (TDAP), Ministry of Commerce, Finance Department
Government of Sindh, etc. and these have contributed to improvements in the Administration and institutional
strengthening of TCP as well as in research and operations of the Trading Corporation of Pakistan Apart from his
Directorship / Chairmanship at Trading Corporation of Pakistan since September 2021, he has previously held the
Directorship and was the CEO of National Insurance Company Limited in 2017 & 2019. He has aso served as a
member of the Security Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s Policy Board in the year 2020.

1.2 MR. AHSAN ALI MANGI:

Mr. Ahsan Ali Mangi is aBS-21 civil servant, who holds an MS degree in Developmental Finance from Manchester
University and a Bachelor's degree in Law. Apart from his directorship of the Corporation, he has been on the Boards
of Directors of the National Bank of Pakistan from 2015 to 2018 and Pakistan Petroleum Limited during 2019 &
2020.

13 DR. IMRAN ULLAH KHAN:

Dr. Imran Ullah KhanisaBS-20 civil servant, currently serving at the Ministry of Finance. He holds PhD (International
Development Studies) from the National Graduate Institute for Policy Studies, Tokyo (Japan). He has served in
various key positionsin the civil service domain.

14 MS. SAIRA IMDAD ALI:

Ms. Saira Imdad Ali is a BS-20 civil servant, currently posted at the Ministry of Industries & Production as Joint
Secretary. She holds an LLM degree from the University of Galway, Ireland. She has aso served as the Director
General at the Trade Development Authority of Pakistan. She has also served on the Boards of Directors of RLM,
LCDC, and SYRDC.

1.5 MR. IMTIAZ ALI GOPANG / MR. MUHAMMAD AZAM KHAN:

Mr. Imtiaz Ali GopangisaBS-20 civil servant, who was posted at the Ministry of National Food Security & Research
as Food Security Commissioner. He has held various key postsin this domain. He holds an M Sc degree in Agriculture.

Mr. Muhammad Azam Khan has joined the Ministry of National Food Security & Research as Food Commissioner in
place of Mr. Imtiaz Ali Gopang.
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1.6 MR. AASIM AZIM SIDDIQUI:

Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui is a renowned businessman. He has been the Managing Director of Marine Group of
Companies from 1994 to 2022 and the CEO of Pakistan Intermodal Limited from 2022 till date. He holds a Masters
degree in Business Administration from Clark University, Worcester M assachusetts. He has also served on the Board
of Directors of Nationa Insurance Company Limited from 2018 to 2021.

1.7 MS. TASNEEM YUSUF:

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf is a chartered accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, a fellow
member of ACCA, and a CPA. She has worked for Unilever Pakistan, Deloitte Middle East, and Nasdaq Dubai. Since
2009, she has been associated with Munaf Yusuf & Co., where she presently heads the audit and assurance services
department. She sits on the boards of Ismail Industries Limited, B.F. Modaraba, Faran Sugar Mills Limited, and
Reliance Insurance Company Limited.

18 SYED MIRAN MUHAMMAD SHAH:

Syed Miran Muhammad Shah is arenowned legal practitioner and is currently enrolled as an Advocate Supreme Court
of Pakistan. He has also served as the Additional Advocate General, Government of Sindh in the year 2008. He holds
an LLB degree and a Bachel or's degree in Economics from the University of Illinois (USA).

1.9 MIR BALAGH SHER MARRI:

Mir Balagh Sher Marri has served on the Boards of Directors of the National Bank of Pakistan from 2015 to 2018
and Pakistan Petroleum Limited from 2019 to 2020. He holds a Masters degree in Political Sciencesand an LLB
degree.

1.10 MR. FUAD HAMID AHMED:

Mr. Fuad Hamid Ahmed has been associated with a renowned rice & grains exporter i.e. Garibsons (Private) Limited
since 1988, as a director and his responsibilities include overseeing the entire manufacturing operations, procurement
& dealings with international clients. He has been a member (Managing Committee) of the Rice Exporters Association
of Pakistan and was appointed as Chairman of the Wheat Traders Association of Pakistan (WTAP) in 2010. He has
also represented his company in various delegations & food exhibitions in France, Germany, Canada, the USA, Saudi
Arabia, Russia, Africa, the Philippines, and Indonesia. He has been nominated as a guest speaker from Pakistan for the
various World Rice Conferences held from 2011 to 2019 at far-east destinations. He possesses a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from Columbia University, New York, USA. In recognition of his contribution, he
was awarded Tamgha-e-Imtiaz on 23" March 2023.

1.11 CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Subsequent to theinitial nomination on 8" August 2023, the following changes in the Board of Directors took place
during the financial year 2023-24:

a.  Mr. Imtiaz Ali Gopang Relinquished the charge of the office as Director, TCP on 24" June 2024.
b. Mr. M. Azam Khan Assumed the charge of the office as Director, TCP on 24" June 2024.

2. MANAGEMENT:

2.1 CHAIRMAN AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Management of the Corporation isvested in aBoard of Directors appointed by the Federal Government. The Board
comprises the Chairman who is directly appointed by the Federal Government and aso acts as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation. The Corporation’s efforts to segregate the office of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer have been explained in detail in this report.
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The Chairman & Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation is Syed Rafeo Bashir Shah, who is a BS-22 civil servant
from the Commerce & Trade Group. A brief profile of Syed Rafeo Bashir Shah has been given in the foregoing section
of this report.

2.2 EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

a. Mr.Riaz Ahmed Shaikh  Executive Director (Operations)

b. Mr. Miandad Rahoojo Executive Director (Finance) w.e.f 10" May 2024 until 121" July 2024

c. Mr. Sagib Bashir Executive Director Finance (Additional Charge of Executive Director REM&S w.e.f.
10" October 2022 until 9" May 2024)

d. Mr. Kadir Bux Executive Director (Admin/HR/Legal Affairs)

2.3 CHANGE OF COMPANY SECRETARY:

Mr. Sher Muhammad Mahar relinquished the charge of the office of Company Secretary, TCP on 31% August 2023.
Mr. Farrukh Majeed Qureshi assumed the charge of the office of Company Secretary, TCP on 01% September 2023.
Before joining the Corporation, Mr. Farrukh Majeed Qureshi served as the Company Secretary & Head of
Compliance at National Insurance Company Limited, which is apublic limited State-Owned Enterprise.

2.4 DIVISIONAL HEADS/INCHARGES OF REGIONAL OFFICES/SUB REGIONAL OFFICES

Details of Divisonal Heads/ Incharges of Regional Offices/ Sub-Regional Offices are Given at Annexure-l.

3. TCP AT A GLANCE: INCORPORATION, OBJECTIVES AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL:

The Trading Corporation of Pakistan Limited (referred to as“TCP” or “the Corporation” in this report) was set up asa
private limited company in July 1967, registered under the Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017). The
shares of the Corporation are owned by the Ministry of Commerce, Government of Pakistan.

The initial paid-up capital of the Corporation subscribed by the Government in 1967 was Rs. 2.5 million,
which was subsequently raised to Rs. 5 million in 1969-70 and to Rs.7.5 million in 1970-71 out of the Corporation’s
resources. In 1977-78, TCP increased its paid-up capital from Rs.10.00 million to Rs.50.00 million and further
increased to Rs. 100.00 million in 1978-79 out of its resources by issuing bonus shares. In 2005-2006, the authorized
capital enhanced to Rs.1000 million, whereas the subscribed and paid-up capital increased from Rs.100.00 million to
Rs.685.805 million, and then, in 2009-10, paid-up capital increased to Rs. 1,000 million due to arise in the volume of
trade under the Government’ s directive.

The Corporation was the first move by the Government to introduce state trading in the country to achieve the
following objectives: -

)] Achieve economy of scale by handling bulk transactions; secure advantages of price, freight, and port-handling
expenses, etc.

i) Stabilize market conditions and neutralize the effect of high market prices resulting from unwarranted escal ation
by private importers and, ipso facto, act as a check on the disparity between import prices and scarcity prices.

iii)  Tointervenein the market to forestall shortages of essential commodities and provide the same to the common
man at affordable prices. Its price support initiatives are meant to prevent the artificial management of
agricultural and essential commaodities by interest groups and also to ensure that growers receive fair prices for
their agricultural products.

In January 1995, the Federa Cabinet assigned the following new roleto TCP: -
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a. Imports

i) Import of essential commoditiesin emergent conditions, asin the past.

i) Import of Soybean Oil in the future under the PL-480 Programme and CC Credit.
iii) Import of Palm Oil from Maaysiaunder Malaysian credit.

iv) Import of Industrial raw materials and other selected bulk items.

v) Utilization of Credit Facilities.

b. Exports

i)  Export of selected items from public sector corporations, agencies, etc.

i) Channeling exports through TCP to various markets under credit lines provided by the government to expand
business in areas such as the Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS), Central Asian Republics (CAR),
Malaysia, African countries, etc.

iii) Export of Pakistani products to new and non-traditional markets by offering concessions and incentives
provided by the government to prospective buyers for capturing new markets.

iv) To perform the innovative role of undertaking the export of non-traditional items to non-traditional markets
on an experimental basis.

v) To undertake and develop the export of fresh fruits, vegetables, and mineralsin collaboration and partnership
with the private sector.

vi) TCP acts only on the directions of the Federal Government to implement trade-related decisions in the larger
public interest.

4. CURRENT OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL MODEL OF THE CORPORATION:

The Corporation has aways imported essential commodities and/or procured these commodities locally on behalf of
the respective line ministry. Fertilizer and sugar are procured on behalf of the Ministry of Industries and Production
(MolP) and agencies under its control, such as National Fertilizer Marketing Limited (NFML) and Utility Stores
Corporation (USC). Additionally, wheat and cotton are procured on behalf of the Ministry of National Food Security
& Research (MNFSR) and agencies under its control, such as the Pakistan Agricultura Storage and Services
Corporation (PASSCO).

Procured commodities have also been handed over, on the directives of the concerned line ministry, to provincial
governments. The procurement process required approvals from the relevant Ministry, ECC, and the Cabinet via
summaries moved by the respective Ministries.

Post-approval of the summary by ECC and the Cabinet, the Ministry of Finance allocated a Cash Credit Limit (CCL)
to the Corporation, which is utilized through commercia bank loans for local procurement payments and/or arranging
foreign exchange to establish letters of credit (LCs) in favor of foreign suppliers for imports. The recipient agencies,
which received the cargo on behalf of the aforementioned two Ministries, used to partially settle the amounts based on
the foregoing approvals.

5. ACTIVITIES & PERFORMANCE OF THE CORPORATION:

5.1 REVENUE STREAM:

The Corporation’ s revenue stream during the financial years 2022-23 and 2023-24 is given as follows:

Rs. in ‘000
Income Stream 202324 2022-23 (B]gérﬁsde)

Income from Core Business Activities:
Commission income 481,352 3,102,771  -2,621,419
Rice inspection fee 57,902 43,388 14,514
Income from Other Business Activities:
Income from investment 4,818,307 3,656,967 1,161,340
Rental income from godowns given on rent 499,359 462,815 36,544
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Income Stream

Miscellaneous/ Other Income
Total

Under the directives of the ECC / Federal Cabinet,
TCP imported a total quantity of 219,789 MT of
urea from Azerbaijan on a G2G basis, which was
handed over to NFML. Commission income
decreased due to the import operation of urea only,
whereas wheat was aso procured during the
preceding year.

Rice Inspection Fee increased due to an increase
ininternational export of Rice during the outgoing
year. During the financial year 2023-24, TCP issued

1,162 Authenticity Certificates for export of
343,599.675 MT Brown / Parboiled Rice exported to
European Union Member Countries, and 4,260.885
MT White/Long Grain Basmati Rice exported to Sri
Lanka under the Pak-Sri Lanka Free Trade
Agreement earned an amount of Rs.57,902,242/-
in terms of

inspection fee.

Income from Investment has been increased due to
the tightening of monetary policy by the State
Bank of Pakistan to curb rising inflation, which
led to a consequent increase in Government
Securities’ yields. The amounts aready invested
were reinvested upon maturity/liquidation.

The increase in Renta Income was due to the
revision of rental agreements and the increase in
the number of tenants. During the financial year
2023-24, Renta Income of Rs. 499,359,122/- was
earned from TCP's Godowns located at Pipri,
Landhi and Korangi, Residential Colonies located
at Pipri & Landhi, TCP House, TCP 8 Floor and
Multan (PCSl).

Miscellaneous/other income of last year mainly
consists of a one-time charge of exchange gain and
forfeiture of Makhdoom L ogistics.

5.2 PROFITABILITY:

During the 2023-24 financial year, the profit earned by TCPis asfollows:

Profit before Taxation
Tax Amount

Profit after Taxation
Earnings Per Share (EPS)

TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
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4,000,000,000
3,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
1,000,000,000

80,000,000
60,000,000
40,000,000
20,000,000

6,000,000,000
4,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

600,000,000
400,000,000

200,000,000

e

Rs. in ‘000

Increase/

2023-24 2022-23 (Decr ease)
8,952 408,626 -399,674
5,865,872 7,674,567 -1,808,695

Commission Income
3,102,771,000

1,489,762,000
481,352,000

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Income from Rice Inspection

64,725,122
57,902,242

43,388,325

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Investment Income
4,818,307,000
3,656,966,832
2,349,413,000
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Rental Income
462,815,325 499,359,122
397,554,214
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Rs.4,412.394 million
Rs.1,811.200 million
Rs.2,601.194 million

Rs.26.012 per Share
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A graphical representation of profit before and after taxation can be seen asfollows:

Profit before tax Profit after tax
7,000,000
6,081,857
6,000,000
5,000,000 4,412,394
4,000,465
4,000,000 3,422,473
2,601,194
3,000,000 2,350,027
2,000,000
1,000,000
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

The key operating and financial datafor the last six years, i.e., from 2016-17 to 2023-24, are provided at Annexurell.
Additionally, a comparative statement of financial results during the years 2016-17 to 2023-24 is given at Annexur e
.

5.3 DIVIDEND:

Dividend for FY 2023-24 shall be Rs. 200 million, i.e., Rs. 2 per share, at 20 percent of the par value (2022-23: Rs. 200
million, i.e., Rs. 2 per share, at 20 percent of the par value).

5.4 ACCUMULATION OF DEBT AND EFFORTS FOR RECOVERIES:

The Corporation, working under the direction of the Ministry of Commerce, has been importing commodities or
procuring these commodities locally on behalf of the respective line ministries for the purpose of maintaining strategic
reserves and market stabilization. These procurements of commodities are made with the approva of the ECC's
summary by the Federal Cabinet, based on which the Ministry of Finance (MoF) allocates a Cash Credit Limit (CCL)
to the Corporation, backed by the Government of Pakistan's sovereign guarantees that are utilized for raising loans
from commercia banks for local procurement payments and for arranging foreign exchange to establish LCs in favor
of foreign suppliers, as the case may be. Once the commodities are procured, they are handed over to the entities
nominated by the respective ministries.

Before the year 2018, there were no written agreements between the recipient agencies and the Corporation.
Thereafter, since the year 2018, agreements have been signed between respective agencies and the Corporation, which
are handed over as per the directives of the Federal Government to the nominated recipient agencies. However, the
proceeds are remitted to the Corporation after a considerable delay, despite the Corporation's repeated requests for
payments. Even in cases where there was a subsidy to be borne by the Federal Government, the amounts have not
been cleared. Since the procurements were based on loans from Commercial Banks at prevailing lending markup
rates, every delayed payment results in a compounding effect on the markup amount. Except for small amounts
related to incidental charges etc., none of the recipient agencies have disputed the principal outstanding amounts.
However, most of the recipient agencies contend that the liability for accrued markup for past periods has to be borne
by the Federa Government, and not the recipient agencies. The accumulation of the debt position is disclosed in the
annexed Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2024. As of 30th September 2024, the delayed
payments arising from procurements executed on behalf of the Federal Government and its agencies have
accumulated to atotal of PKR 296.608 billion (PKR 93.692 hillion principal with PKR 202.916 billion markup), as
detailed are at Annexure-1V.

Recoveries on Account of Wheat: During the year 2023-24, the Corporation has recovered an amount of Rs.
1,788.000 million from the Sindh Food Department against the sale of imported wheat during the years 2004-05 and
2008-09. The amount of Rs. 18,000.00 million and Rs. 4,789.361 million were received from PASSCO on 26th
October 2023 and 21st November 2023, respectively, on account of the supply of imported wheat during the year
2022-23.
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Recoveries on Account of Urea: An amount of Rs. 144.574 million was received from NFML on 20th October 2023
on account of the supply of imported urea during the year 2022-23. TCP received an amount of Rs. 6,000.00 million
from the Ministry of Commerce on 27th May 2024 on account of the Federal Government's share on the import of
urea during the year 2022-23. The Corporation billed an amount of Rs. 27,347.661 million on account of the supply of
219,789.009 MT of imported ureato M/s. NFML and the same was fully recovered (including markup).

Recoveries on Account of Sugar: An amount of Rs. 4,031.250 million was received from USC on account of the
supply of imported sugar during the year 2021-22.

Further Effortsfor Recoveries:

A meeting was held at the Finance Division, Islamabad, on 1st December 2023, with the provincial Finance
and Food Secretaries, wherein it was decided that the respective provincia governments/agencies would remit
the agreed amount within two (2) weeks. For unreconciled amounts, the reconciliation exercise shal be
completed within three (3) weeks by the parties. According to the above direction from the Ministry of Finance,
four (04) reconciliation meetings have been held with M/s. Utility Store Corporation (USC) on 1st January
2024, with the Government of Balochistan held on 27th - 29th December 2023, the Government of AJK on 19th
February 2024, and the Government of Gilgit Baltistan from 26th & 29th January 2024.

i) A D.O. letter has been forwarded by the Chairman of TCP, dated December 7th, 2023, to al Chief Secretaries
of Provincial Governments for the recovery of receivables on account of wheat supplied by TCP.

ii) A letter has been forwarded by the Executive Director (Finance) to the Specia Secretary, Ministry of
Commerce, dated February 14, 2024, requesting the Finance Division to convene a meeting to ensure
compliance with the already issued directive from the af orementioned meeting (i.e., held on December 1, 2023)
so that the agreed-upon outstanding amount from the provincial government and other federal agencies may be
timely received to avoid further accumulation of mark-up.

iii)  Two letters have been forwarded by the Executive Director (Finance) to the Joint Secretary (Exim), Ministry of
Commerce, dated March 26, 2024, and May 20, 2024, requesting the Finance Division to convene a meeting to
ensure compliance with the already issued directive from the referenced meeting, held on December 1, 2023.

iv)  In pursuance of the decision taken in the 600th meeting of the Audit Committee held on February 9, 2024,
wherein it has been directed that “a monthly report of the Federal Government (Finance Division) regarding the
receivable balances outstanding against it, both principal and mark-up amounts, emphasizing that the delay is
substantially enhancing the mark-up amount." In this regard, TCP forwarded five (5) letters to the Section
Officer, Ministry of Commerce, dated March 19, 2024, April 18, 2024, May 10, 2024, June 6, 2024, and July 8,
2024, in which the updated receivabl es position was forwarded.

v) A meeting was held on May 17, 2024, between the Cane Commissioner of Punjab and TCP, during which the
Cane Commissioner expressed a desire to provide information related to the import of sugar for 2020-21 and
2021-22 from TCP, enabling them to present the summary before the Provincial Cabinet for the release of
funds. Subsequently, TCP, via a letter dated May 21, 2024, shared the requisite information with the Cane
Commissioner of Punjab.

vi) A meeting was also held on June 5, 2024, under the chairmanship of the Additional Finance Secretary AFS
(CF) a the Finance Division, Isamabad, wherein it was decided that the respective provincial
governments/agencies would remit the agreed amount and complete the exercise of un-reconciled amounts
immediately. In pursuance of the above directions, a team from TCP was deputed to visit KPK on June 11,
2024, and Punjab on June 13 and 14, 2024, for reconciliation with the recipient departments.

vii) During the year, TCP has issued two (2) reminder letters to each debtor each month (i.e., M/s. USC, M/s.
NFML, M/s. PASSCO, DGP Army, Pakistan Navy, and al Provincia Governments and the Ministry of
Commerce, Ministry of Industries & Production, Cotton Commissioner, Islamabad for settlement of outstanding
dues/receivables. TCP has aso requested these recipients to hold reconciliation meetings for the expeditious
recovery of the outstanding amount.
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5.5 DISPOSAL OF LEGAL CASES & RECOVERIES:

As a result of rigorous efforts by the management under the oversight of the Risk Management & Litigation
Committee of the Board, the Legal Team has been able to generate noticeable results. As of the beginning of the year
2023-24, atotal of 344 cases were pending in various courts of law, out of which seventeen (17) cases were decided in
favor of the Corporation from a total of thirty-two (32) cases that were disposed of during the year under
consideration. Furthermore, during the aforementioned period, eleven (11) cases were filed by TCP and twelve (12)
cases were filed against TCP, which made up atotal of twenty-three (23) new cases during the year.

Cases asof the Beginning of the Year 2023-24 344
New Cases Filed by the Corporation 11
New Cases Filed by Other Parties 12
Total Number of New Cases During the Year 2023-24 23
Cases Decided in Favor of the Corporation 17
Other Cases Disposed of During the Y ear 2023-24 15
Total Cases Disposed of During the Year 2023-24 32
Casesasof the End of the Year 2023-24 335

Category-wise detail of the seventeen (17) cases decided in favor of the Corporation is as under:

06
11

a  No. of Civil matters
b. No. of Service matters

To ensure rigorous pursuance of the cases, three advocates were added to the Corporation’s panel during the period,
which certainly has strengthened the panel of TCP s lawyers.

Moreover, an amount of Rs. 252,513,749/- has been decreed in favor of TCP during the period.
5.6 REAL ESTATE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT:

A strategic approach to developing the real estate business shows the Corporation’'s dedication to modernizing its
facilities and aligning operations with contemporary standards. These expected improvements are set to enhance
functionality and create a more supportive working environment.

Construction of Silos: The Corporation has resubmitted a proposal to the Export Development Fund (EDF) for the
construction of silos with a storage capacity of 50,000 MT to 250,000 MT at the Pipri Godown, aimed at supporting
the export of the corn crop. Additionally, it is envisioned that this facility could be utilized for the storage of other
grains during the off-season.

Renovation of Office Premises: The new office premises have been established on the 8th floor of the FTC Building,
Karachi, to provide a modern working environment. This strategic move aims to improve overal operational
efficiency and foster amore dynamic work culture.

Developmental Work at Godowns: In light of the critical importance of security and safety at TCP's godowns, a
comprehensive study has been conducted by the organization to assess the need for installing CCTV cameras at these
facilities. This initiative aims to enhance monitoring and safeguard valuable assets, ensuring real -time surveillance
and prompt responses to any potential security threats. The installation of CCTV cameras is expected to strengthen
overal security measures, providing an additional layer of protection for the goods stored in the godowns.

Additionally, firefighting equipment has been installed in TCP godowns to enhance safety and emergency response
capabilities. This initiative reflects TCP's commitment to maintaining high safety standards in all operational aress.
Furthermore, the organization plans to acquire a new firefighting vehicle in the upcoming fiscal year 2024-25. This
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vehicle will enhance the effectiveness of its firefighting capabilities, enabling quicker responses to any potential fire
hazards. The strategic investment in both equipment and vehicles underscores TCP's proactive approach to
safeguarding its facilities and personnel. By prioritizing fire safety, TCP aims to create a secure working environment
that mitigates risks and enhances operational efficiency. These measures will not only protect the assets within the
Godowns but aso promote confidence among stakeholders regarding safety protocols. Overal, the comprehensive
fire safety strategy is set to bolster TCP' s operational resilience and readiness against fire-related incidents.

Moreover, after the successful efforts of the current management of TCP, the Landhi Godown measuring 66 acres was
transferred to TCP during the current year.

Plan for Profitable Utilization of Properties: To enhance the appearance of the office located at the Godowns, a
comprehensive study was undertaken by TCP. Thisinitiative aimsto improve the infrastructure and is set to commence
civil work in the financial year 2024-25. In addition to this, a separate assessment was performed regarding the
maintenance of the TCP Godown in Multan, with plansto initiate civil work during the first quarter of 2024-25.

TCP has developed an initial business plan concerning the utilization of its property, specifically Plot No. 26-30 in
Multan. This plan outlines the construction of prefabricated godowns for 50,000 MT, extendable to 250,000 MT,
along with the establishment of plug-and-play facilities designed to facilitate operationa efficiency and promote
business activities. The proposed developments are expected to optimize space usage and enhance overall service
delivery.

Solarization Project: The solarization of the TCP House was implemented as part of an initiative to advance the
government’ s commitment to green energy. This project underscores the importance of renewable energy sources in
achieving sustainability goals. By installing solar panels, the TCP House aims to reduce its carbon footprint and
contribute to a cleaner environment. This initiative aligns with national policies that advocate for energy efficiency
and the utilization of renewable resources.

Furthermore, it serves as a model for other government buildings, encouraging them to adopt similar sustainable
practices. The transition to solar energy not only supports the government's vision but also promotes public awareness
about the benefits of green technology. It exemplifies a significant step toward fostering a culture of environmental
responsibility within the community. The project is expected to yield long-term economic benefits by decreasing
energy costs and increasing energy independence. Ultimately, the solarization of TCP House stands as a testament to
the potential of renewable energy in reshaping our energy landscape for future generations.

In addition to its ongoing projects, TCP has proposed the installation of solar power systems on the rooftops of its
godowns. This initiative aims at optimizing energy consumption and reducing operational costs by harnessing
renewable energy sources. To ensure the project's success, detailed viability assessments were conducted, alongside
comprehensive feasibility studies that examined the technical and economic aspects of the installation. These studies
confirmed the potential benefits of the project, particularly in reducing the carbon footprint and lowering reliance on
traditional power grids.

Moreover, TCP plans to explore innovative financing models to make the project economically viable, such as
collaborating with solar energy providers for a power purchase agreement (PPA) model. In doing so, the organization
aims not only to cut down on electricity expenses but also to contribute to the national goal of a sustainable energy
transition.

Asthe next step, TCP will work on securing the necessary permits and engaging with stakeholders to ensure a smooth
implementation phase. This forward-looking approach underscores TCP's commitment to integrating sustainable
practices into its operations, setting an example for other public sector entities. The solar rooftop initiative is expected
to be akey element in TCP's long-term strategy for environmental sustainability and operational efficiency.

5.7 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY:

In the year 2022, TCP started carrying out the process of implementing digital transformation within our organization.
Officials in the TCP now have access to a newly developed, custom-made specialized software portal for document
digitaization, "DMS." TCP has successfully transformed more than 4.5 million pages into digital content during the
specified period. TCP has transformed more than 6.8 million pages into digital content since the start, until June 30,
2024.
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6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

6.1 IMPLEMENTATION OF PRINCIPLES OF GOVERNANCE:

To improve public service delivery and to make grievances redressal mechanisms more efficient and responsive

i) The Board has complied with the relevant principles of corporate governance and has identified the rules that
have not been complied with, the period during which such non-compliance continued, and the reasons for such
non-compliance.

ii)  The financial statements prepared by the management of the Corporation fairly present its state of affairs, the
results of its operations, cash flows, and changesin equity.

iii)  Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Corporation.

iv)  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements, and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

v)  TheBoard has recognized its responsibility to establish and maintain a sound system of internal control.
vi) A total of 12 Board meetings have been held during the year, and the attendance of each director is given below:

No. of Meetings
Name of Board M ember Attended 9
Syed Rafeo Bashir Shah, Chairman 12
Mr. Ahsan Ali Mangi, Ministry of Commerce 12
Mr. Imtiaz Ali Gopang, Ministry of National Food Security & Research 08
Dr. Imranullah Khan, Ministry of Finance 11
Ms. Sairalmdad Ali 01
Mir Balagh Sher Marri 12
Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui 08
Syed Miran Muhammad Shah 12
Mr. Fuad Hamid Ahmed 07
Ms. Tasneem Y usuf 12

vii) The pattern of shareholdersis attached as Annexure-V.

viii) The appointment of the Chairman and other members of the board and the terms of their appointment along
with the remuneration policy adopted are in the best interest of the Corporation, as well as in terms of the
best practice.

iX) The Audit Committee has played a crucial role in overseeing the organization's governance and financial
reporting during the past year. The Audit Committee has held regular meetings, reviewed financial
statements, and monitored the effectiveness of internal controls. The Committee has al so worked closely with
the external auditors to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial reporting. Terms of reference
(ToRs) of the Audit Committee have been attached as Annexure-V1.

X)  In compliance with the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance and Operations) Act, 2023, and the State-
Owned Enterprises Management Ownership and Management Policy, 2023, the Board has evaluated the
performance of the Audit Committee, in its 401% meeting held on 7" October 2024, and has declared the
performance as “ Satisfactory”.

xi)  The Board, in its 399" meeting held on 4" September 2024, evaluated the performance of the senior
management.

xii)  The Board and the management of the Corporation are confident and hereby issue the statement that:
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i. Financia statements have been prepared under the International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS), as applicable.

ii.  There are reasonable grounds that the Corporation shall be able to pay their debts as they become

payable, given the fact that all liabilities of the Corporation are fully covered through sovereign
guarantee of the Federal Government; and

iii.  Thefinancia statements and notes comply with the requirements of the SOE Law.

Xiii) The Board of Directors of the Corporation, as a matter of prudence, has reviewed the Corporation’'s
compliance with the provisions of the requirements set out in the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance and
Operations) Act, 2023, the State-Owned Enterprises Ownership and Management Policy, 2023, and the Statement
of Compliance, which has been reviewed and approved by the Board of the Corporation, and has been made part
of the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2024.

6.2 PRIME MINISTER’S PERFORMANCE DELIVERY UNIT (PMDU) COMPLAINTS:

To improve public service delivery and to make the grievances redressal mechanism more efficient and responsive in
al Ministries/Divisions and their attached departments, the Prime Minister’ s Performance Delivery Unit (PMDU) has
designed and introduced an information and Communication Technology (ICT)-based system, i.e., the Pakistan
Citizen Portal. During the year 2023-24, four (4) complaints were received on the dashboard of TCP from the
Pakistan Citizen Portal, out of which three (3) complaints pertained to TCP and were resolved in light of the relevant
rules and regulations, deciding on merit for possible provision of relief to the citizens. The remaining one (1)
complaint pertained to another Department/Authority, which was forwarded to them accordingly.

6.3 DEVELOPMENT OF ORGANOGRAM / POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL:

During the year 2023-24, a professional consultancy firm (M/s. A. F. Ferguson) was engaged by the Corporation to
develop the organogram to optimize the organizational structure through rightsizing while enhancing operational
efficiency. The new organogram was developed after a careful evaluation and analysis of various jobs and manpower
requirements across the different divisions of the Corporation at al levels, as a result of which the previously
approved sanctioned strength was significantly revised with proper allocation of human resources across various
divisions. The Board of Directors has approved the newly developed organogram after thoroughly re-evaluating the
rational e behind the proposal. This newly developed and approved organogram has been placed on the official website
of the Corporation.

In addition to devel oping the organogram, the consulting firm was also tasked with revamping significant policies and
procedure manuals. After a thorough study of the Corporation’s needs and prevalent practices was conducted by the
consulting firm, to align these policies and procedure manuals with international best practices while adhering to the
applicable legal framework, the consulting firm presented these policies and procedure manuals to the relevant
Committees of the Board for consideration and recommendation to the Board. Thereafter, the Board of Directors
approved a comprehensive set of policies and procedure manuals aimed at enhancing governance and streamlining
operations. These policies and procedure manual s include:

)] Operations Policy & Procedure;

i)  Credit & Claim Settlement Policy and Procedure Manual;
iii)  Procurement Policy;

iv)  Policy for Renting Out and Utilization of TCP' s Properties,
) Investment Policy;

vi)  Related Party Transactions Palicy;

vii)  Financial Management Manual;

viii)  Accounting Policies and Procedures,

ix) Interna Audit Manual;

x)  HRPoaliciesand Procedures Manual;

xi)  Whistleblowing Policy;

xii)  Health, Safety, and Environment Policy;

xiii) Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.
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These were crucia to aligning TCP's operations with industry best practices and ensuring the right sizing of its
workforce to meet organizational goals.

6.4 RECRUITMENT, PROMOTIONS AND CAPACITY BUILDINGS:

In recent organizational developments, the company has made significant strides in strengthening its management
team and facilitating career advancements within the organization.

Firstly, four General Managers with specific qualifications and experience have been appointed permanently, taking
on key leadership rolesin I.T., Internal Control and Compliance, Finance and Accounts, and Real Estate Business
Development. This recruitment effort aligns with the company’s goal of enhancing operational efficiency and
strategic business growth.

Additionally, three Deputy Managers with relevant expertise have also been appointed permanently to oversee critical
functions in Finance, Audit, and Operations, further reinforcing the company's commitment to strong governance and
financial oversight.

In October and November 2023, the company implemented departmental promotions. Eligible officers advanced to
senior positions, including General Managers, Deputy General Managers, Managers, and Deputy Managers, following
the Corporation's established promotion guidelines.

Additionally, the firm has hired a Company Secretary and a Chief Financial Officer, both on contract, to provide
specialized skills in these important positions, ensuring ongoing compliance with regulations and effective financial
management. These hires demonstrate the company’s proactive strategy in attracting essential talent for its sustained
SUCCESS.

TCP aso held capacity-building training for its employees at various levels in the areas of E-Procurements, PPRA
Rules, Cyber Security, and Leadership. Detailsare at Annexure-VII.

6.5 MANAGEMENT — EMPLOYEES’ RELATIONSHIP:

Throughout the year, the relationship between Management, the TCP Officers Association, and the TCP Employees
Union was positive. Management would like to express its gratitude for the dedication shown by officers and
employees at every level of the Corporation.

Management has entered into a biennial agreement with the TCP Employees Union (CBA) based on the Charter of
Demand presented by the Union, adhering to relevant Labor Laws. The most recent Charter of Demand was submitted
by the Employees Union (CBA) on August 3, 2023, covering the period from July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2025.
Negotiations between Management and the Employees Union have concluded, leading to the signing of the
Agreement based on the Charter of Demand for the 2023-2025 period.

7. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT:

The Statutory Audit for FY 2022-23 has been conducted by M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered
Accountants, in accordance with the International Auditing Standards applicable in Pakistan and in line with the
corporate legal framework.

In the auditor's opinion, based on the audit, except for the possible effects of the matters observed as qualifications,
[management responses on the audit observations are attached at Annexure-V111]:

i) Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017(X1X of 2017);

ii) The statement of financia position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changesin equity, and the statement of cash flow, together with the notes thereon, have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017) and agree with the books of account and returns;
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iii)  Investments made, expenditures incurred, and guarantees extended during the year were for the Company’s
business; and

iv)  No Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII1 of 1980).

The existing statutory auditors (i.e., M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants) have consented
to act as statutory auditors for the subsequent year, i.e., FY 2024-25.

8. FUTURE PLANNING FOR DIVERSIFICATION OF TCP OPERATIONS AND ACHIEVING COMPLIANCE:

During the review of TCP's operations, it came to the fore that there is a dire need to streamline and diversify TCP's
operations to enhance revenue while instilling efficiency. This is because, at this point, TCP's core business revenue
solely depends on government procurements, and even then, it is limited to a smal number of commodities.
Moreover, the existing procurement process is intricate and slow, limiting TCP's ability to promptly meet the needs of
government procurement. Therefore, a dire need was felt to streamline the procedural requirements for the operational
ease of TCP, which relates to the proposed amendments in identified provisions contained in the PPRA Rules. These
proposed amendments have been sent to the PPRA for consideration.

8.1 ISSUES IN CURRENT OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL MODEL:

Based on the aforementioned current business model, TCP obtained commercial loans on behalf of MolP (for NFML,
Utility Stores Corporation) and MNFSR (for PASSCO), as well as other Federa and Provincial recipients under the
directives of the Federal Government. The Federal Government and the af orementioned agencies have always been
aware of this operational model, i.e., that imports were financed by TCP through CCLs and commercia bank loans,
which had to be repaid by the recipient agencies. This has never been disputed by any Ministry or recipient agency.
However, payments started getting delayed due to various reasons, such as disputes or refusals on incidental charge
payments, non-reconciliation, refusal to bear the cost of the subsidy, and refusal to bear the cost of markup, etc. Even
in cases where there was a subsidy to be borne by the Federal Government, the amount was not paid on time. Since
the procurements were based on loans from commercial banks at market interest rates, every delayed payment accrued
markup on the principa amount.

Due to this huge markup, TCP has been forced to make quarterly payments by obtaining further bank loans at
prevailing commercial markup rates. This has resulted in the ballooning of circular debt, and TCP is compelled to take
loans to repay other loans because of the non-payment of outstanding dues by recipient agencies and the Federal
Government. The end result is that the bulk of the bank financing margins available to TCP for operational financing
are now consumed in debt repayments.

Finance Division, while communicating the Cash Credit Limits to TCP, has started mentioning in its communications
that the loan settlement would be the responsibility of TCP. This has been contested at every level by TCP. TCP has
consistently highlighted the fact that the liability is accrued against TCP on behalf of a Ministry that requires a certain
commodity to be imported and that the Ministry is responsible for the repayment of the loan and its accrued markup.
A response is yet awaited from the Finance Division. TCP has, however, made it clear to the Ministry of Commerce
that if the Federal Government and its agencies do not repay these loans along with markup, TCP would not be able to
execute any further import operations.

8.2 PROPOSED FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL MODEL FOR TCP:

Since agriculture is a devolved subject, purely under the domain of the Provincia Governments after the 18th
Amendment, TCP proposes that if the Provincial Governments intend to undertake imports of required commodities
through TCP, then for al bulk cargo-based imports (e.g., wheat, urea, etc.):

i) Provinces will either directly intimate TCP or, through the respective line ministry in the Federa
Government, the import requirements of the commodity in question.

i)

These procurements would be based on advance payments from the provincial governmentsto TCP;
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iii) In such cases, the responsibility for timely planning, order placement, and financing arrangements would be
directly with the Provincial Governments, with no financia liability on TCP and/or the Federa Government.

If TCP is required to import strategic reserves for the federal government, then the same shall be done on the
directives of the Cabinet through a summary moved by the line ministry, with planning and budgetary alocation to be
made by the line ministry. In case that is not done, and procurements are made in emergencies, all liability for the loan
and its accrued markup would be that of the line ministry which has moved the summary for procurement. In such
cases, TCP would take the cash credit limit (CCL) from commercia banks, open the LC, import the commodity, and
retire the LC. As soon as the LCs stand retired, the CCL shall be shifted to the line ministry of the recipient agency by
the Finance Division. In this manner, TCP would execute its public service obligation with efficiency and without
accruing any liability on TCP. The mechanism to execute this procedure (for liability settlement in case of fresh
commodity operations) is as follows, which has also been discussed in detail with TCP' s consortium banks:

i) TCP from its CCL available limits will approach banks to open LC(s) for commodity imports for a particular
contract.

i) Once documents are presented at the bank's counter, the same will be retired from TCP s CCL limits.

iii) Simultaneously respective agencies will request the Finance Division for the provision of CCL limit based on
information provided by the TCP

iv) The CCL aobtained by the respective recipient agency from the Finance Division for the subject imports will
be used for the settlement of TCP liabilities by giving inflows from the recipient agencies own CCL limits
immediately. Concurrently, TCP' s CCL limitswill be adjusted accordingly.

The above proposals are meant to contain the liability of TCP and aso to enable it to perform its Public Service
Obligations under the SOE Act, 2023. They are adso aimed at streamlining the import operations of TCP in a more
effective, efficient, and sustainable manner, both operationally as well as financialy. It istime that TCP be alowed to
operate by the principles prescribed under the SOE Act, 2023, Act. It iswith that intent that the Ministry of Commerce
proposes to change the operational and financial model of TCP.

TCP has accordingly informed the Ministry of Commerce to move a Summary for the approval of the Cabinet for the sam
8.3 BUSINESS DIVERSIFICATION PLAN:

A business development plan was developed by the management, and thereafter, the same was discussed at length by
the Board of Directors, which was then approved by the Board of Directors. It primarily focused on aternate sources
of revenue for TCP, while remaining within the realm of the TCP' s Memorandum of Association as well as with the
focus to efficiently cater to the requirements of the Government of Pakistan. This plan has been bifurcated into three
stages which are as under: -

a. SHORT TERM PLANS(1-2 YEARYS):

Commaodity suppliesfor thepublic and private sectors:

e Tradefor the private sector (wheat/lentils/edible oil or any other item on demand) at no cost tothe Government
of Pakistan

e Considering the possihility for import of Wheat and urea for the Government of Afghanistan
Indenting operations for INGOs

Usufruct / Infrastructur e development:
e Construction of Silos at Pipri Karachi under PPP/ JV maode with a capacity of 50,000 MT to 250,000 MT.

b. MEDIUM TERM PLANS(2-5 YEARYS):

Commaodity suppliesfor thepublic and private sectors:
® Tradefor the private sector (wheat/lentils/edible oil or any other item on demand) at no cost to the Government
of Pakistan.
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Usufruct /Infrastructure development:

® Construction of Silos/ Warehousing at Multan for which feasibility has been prepared by the Consultant for a
capacity of 50,000 MT extendable to 250,000 MT.

e Solarization of TCP swarehouses at Pipri / Landhi & Korangi.

Others:
e EXxploring Marine Insurance operations through an SOE.

c. LONGTERM PLANS(5YEARYS):

Commoadity suppliesfor thepublic and private sectors:
e Tradefor the private sector (wheat/lentils/edible oil or any other item on demand) at no cost to the Government
of Pakistan

Infrastructure development:
e Construction of Solar Park at TCP Pipri land

Real estate development:

e Modernization of existing warehousing facilities along with the addition of some new infrastructure, through
REIT or other modalities.

e Asper the new SOE Act 2023, TCP developed, in addition to its Business Development Plan, a Statement of
Corporate Intent which is as under: -

8.4 STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT:

Set up in 1967, as a State-owned Enterprise for Trading purposes, TCP has since evolved into a Private Limited
Company, under the Companies Act whose main intent has been market stabilization through trade of essential
commodities. To enhance the support role of TCP and its business model in line with its Memorandum of
Association, TCP intendsto play areinvigorated role in commodities trade (and its allied infrastructure development),
optimal utilization of its real estate as well as gradually increase its footprint in alternate energy development. This
would on the one hand ensure a proactive approach towards public & private section commodities trade as well as the
development of a facilitative ecosystem of storage, insurance, and logistics including infrastructure, and on the other
hand, enhance revenue streams for TCP as well as for the Government of Pakistan.”

TCP has currently undertaken the development and revision of its constitutional documents such as Memorandum &
Articles of Association, and also other policy documents like HR/Accounts/Finance/Real Estate related Policy and
procedure manuals as well as the development of afunctiona as well as administrative organogram for TCP.

Furthermore, as a step towards automation and paperless official business processes, TCP has transitioned to the
E-Office system of the Government of Pakistan and is carrying out scanning and digitization of the complete record of
the Corporation.

8.5 ALTERATIONS IN THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION:

A Memorandum of Association is one of the primary constitutional documents of any company registered / to be
registered under the Companies Act, 2017. A Memorandum of association of a company lays down the
business/activities that a company intends to undertake throughout its lifecycle. The memorandum lays down clauses
that address “What will the company do?’. There are other important ingredients of a memorandum that have been
laid down under Sections 26, 27, 30, and 31 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Memorandum of Association, in its existing form, contained object clauses in accordance with the mandate given
to the Corporation at the time of its establishment back in July 1967; however, the mandate of the Corporation was
revised in accordance with the approval of the Cabinet in January 1995, which includes market stabilization through
imports of essential commodities in emergent conditions, import of fertilizer, wheat, and industrial raw material and
other selected bulk items. Accordingly, the revenue of TCP comes from Commission Income on commodity operations
that is determined by the Federal Government, Investment Income that comes from the investments in the
Government
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securities, Rental Income from renting out of Godowns, and Rice Inspection Fees that are earned on rice exports to
EU countries.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Corporation felt expedient to update and simplify the Corporation’s
Memorandum of Association and to modify it to reflect the existing and future business of the Corporation, while
remaining within the legal framework of allowable activities/businesses, which the Corporation is authorized / eligible
to perform and carry on. The procedure for making aterations in the memorandum has been laid down under Section
32 read with Sections 33,34 & 35 of the Companies Act, 2017. Such modificationg/aterations in the memorandum of
association are bound by the relevant provisions of Sections 26, 27, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34 & 35 of the

Companies Act, 2017.

In order to get the memorandum of association professionally altered, the consultant (M/s. A. F. Ferguson) was engaged
in accordance with the provisions of the PPRA Rules, 2004. The proposed draft memorandum of association was, hence,
prepared by the consultant, and legal vetting was done by M/s. HaiderMota & Co. The Board of Directors of the
Corporation, in its 395" meeting held on 20" May 2024, has approved the proposed draft memorandum of association
for placing the same before the members of the Corporation at a general meeting in compliance with the requirements
set out in the Companies Act, 2017.

To lay down for consideration of the members of the Corporation the matters concerning alterations in the
Memorandum of Association, an Extraordinary General Meeting was initially convened on 14™ June 2024, however,
the said alterations could not be approved. Therefore, another Extraordinary General Meeting was convened on 12t
July 2024, wherein it was decided, on the request of the representative of the Ministry of Commerce, Government of
Pakistan, to reconvene another Extraordinary General Meeting after twenty-one days i.e. on 2™ August 2024. The
Extraordinary General Meeting was held on 2™ August 2024, however, the same remained unconcluded due to a
shortage of quorum, and hence, was adjourned till 9" August 2024 in accordance with the provisions of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2017, which was aso not concluded. However, since the adjourned meeting may not be
adjourned any further in pursuance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Articles 66 and 69 of the
Articles of Association of TCP, the shareholders/members present at the Adjourned Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 9" August 2024 felt expedient to take the representation from the Federal Government / Ministry of
Commerce onboard before a decision may be taken for which such General Meeting was being called, and decided
not to hold the Extraordinary General Meeting in the absence of the representation from the Ministry of Commerce,
Government of Pakistan. Now, the representative of the Ministry of Commerce has been nominated, who needs to
review the proposed draft memorandum of association before it may be placed at a general meeting, which is to be
convened with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The purpose is to seek approval of the
shareholders of the Corporation as part of the process of making aterations in the memorandum of association of the
Corporation, and thereafter, to file a petition through relevant Forms prescribed under the Companies (General
Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 for obtaining an order of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP), so that the alterations so approved by the shareholders and confirmed through an order by the SECP
may take effect in accordance with the provisions of Section 32, 33, 34 & 35 of the Companies Act, 2017.

8.6 ALTERATIONS IN THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION FOR SEGREGATION OF CHAIRMAN AND CEO:

Articles of Association is one of the primary constitutional documents of any company registered / to be registered
under the Companies Act, 2017. It explains “How will the company broadly function” — It includes clauses
comprising broad procedures relating to the company’s overall legal structure like share capital, the issuance/transfer
of shares, the appointment of board directors and matters ancillary thereto, general meetings, CEO and his
appointment, the minimum quorum for a meeting of directors or committees, obtaining of loans/advances, etc. The
requirements and provisions appertaining to the articles have been laid down under Sections 16, 17, 18, 30, 35, 36 & 37
of the Companies Act, 2017.

Since, the revenue of TCP comes from Commission Income on commodity operations that are determined by the
Federal Government, Investment Income that comes from investments in Government securities, Rental Income from
renting out of Godowns, and Rice Inspection Fee that is earned on rice exports to EU countries. Over and above, the
legal framework applicable to the Corporation has substantially changed over time e.g. the Corporation was
incorporated in 1967 when the repealed Companies Act, 1913 was in the field. Thereafter, the Companies Act, 1913
was repealed and the new Companies Ordinance, 1984 was promulgated, which again was repealed through the
enactment of the Companies Act, 2017. Moving forward, the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance and Operations)
Act, 2023 was enacted, which, to a noticeable extent, has overridden various provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.
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The fact on theground is that the Corporation has been facing serious recovery issues, as commodity procurements are
financed through Cash Credit Limits from Commercial Banks, and until the moneys are collected from the recipient
of goods, the markup keeps on accruing on bank borrowings, so there was a need to streamline the processes and
governing documents for efficient working of the Corporation’s core business activity. Over and above, owing to the
promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017 and the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance & Operations) Act, 2023,
the Board of Directors of the Corporation felt expedient to alter the articles of association in order to cater for the
segregation of the office of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, and also to modify in such a manner that
the provisions of the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance & Operations) Act, 2023 and the policy made thereunder
are catered for, while adhering al so to the other related but non-conflicting provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. The
procedure for making aterations in the articles of association have been laid down under Section 38 of the Companies
Act, 2017. Such alterations in the articles of association are bound by the relevant provisions of Sections 16, 17, 18,
30, 35, 36, 37 & 38 of the Companies Act, 2017.

To get the articles of association professionaly altered, the consultant (M/s. A. F. Ferguson) was engaged in
accordance with the provisions of the PPRA Rules, 2004. The proposed draft articles of association were, hence,
prepared by the consultant, and legal vetting was done by M/s. HaiderMota & Co. The Board of Directors of the
Corporation, in its 395" meeting held on 20" May 2024, has approved the proposed draft articles of association for
placing the same before the members of the Corporation at a general meeting in compliance with the requirements set
out in the Companies Act, 2017.

As mentioned earlier, in order to lay down for consideration by the members of the Corporation the matters
concerning alterations in the Articles of Association, an Extraordinary General Meeting was initially convened on
June 14, 2024; however, the proposed aterations could not be approved. Therefore, another Extraordinary General
Meeting was convened on July 12, 2024, wherein it was decided, at the request of the representative of the Ministry of
Commerce, Government of Pakistan, to reconvene another Extraordinary General Meeting after twenty-one days, i.e.,
on August 2, 2024. The Extraordinary General Meeting was held on August 2, 2024; however, it remained
unconcluded due to a shortage of quorum and was therefore adjourned until August 9, 2024, in accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2017, which also did not conclude. However, since the adjourned
meeting may not be postponed any further in pursuance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2017, read with
Articles 66 and 69 of the Articles of Association of TCP, the shareholderssmembers present at the Adjourned
Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 9, 2024, deemed it expedient to take the representation from the
Federal Government/Ministry of Commerce onboard before a decision could be made for which such Genera
Meeting was called and decided not to hold the Extraordinary General Meeting in the absence of the representation
from the Ministry of Commerce, Government of Pakistan. Now, a representative of the Ministry of Commerce has
been nominated who needs to review the proposed draft articles of association before they can be placed at a general
meeting, which is to be convened with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The purpose is to
seek the approval of the shareholders of the Corporation as part of the process of making alterations to the articles of
association of the Corporation, and thereafter, to file a copy of the new articles with the registrar of companies at the
Company Registration Office (Karachi), in compliance with the provisions of Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2017,
within thirty (30) days from the date of passing the resolution making such alterations to the articles of association of
the Corporation.

Once the new articles of association arein the field after the procedure for making aterations is concluded, the process
of appointment of the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation shall immediately be initiated for an expeditious
appointment, in compliance with the relevant provisions of the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance and Operations)
Act, 2023.

9. PRESENTATION AT THE 57™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

The Board of Directors of the Corporation lay this report aong with the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended 30" June 2024, before the members/shareholders of the Corporation at the 57" Annual General Mesting
being held on 28" October 2024, for information and approval/adoption. [Karachi, 7" October 2024]

A Lo b

DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN & CHIEF E)TEEUTIVE

Page - 26



Sr. No.

TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Ministry of Commerce - Government of Pakistan

ANNEXURE-I TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

DETAILSOF DIVISIONAL HEADS/INCHARGES

e

OF REGIONAL OFFICES/SUB-REGIONAL OFFICES

Name of Division Head / Incharge
Mr. Jatin Kumar

Mr. Farrukh Majeed Qureshi
Mr. Salim Ullah Khan
Mr. Naveed Rehman Bugti

Mr. Rashid Hussain
Mr. Sheeraz Ali Shahzad
Mr. Radain Shah

Mr. Muhammad Asif

Mr. Muhammad Ali

Mr. Rashid Hussain

Mr. Sher Muhammad Mahar

Mr. Ali Raza Altaf

Sayed Basit Qadir

Mr. Muhammad Samiullah Bhutta
Mr. Israr Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Hasnain Naveed
Mr. Akhlague Ahmed Samoo
Mr. Muhammad Tarique Khan

Mr. Israr Hussain

Designation
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Chief Internal Auditor

General Manager

General Manager

General Manager

General Manager

Manager

General Manager

General Manager

General Manager (additional Charge)

Deputy General Manager

General Manager
Manager

General Manager

Deputy Manager
Manager

Deputy General Manager

Manager

Division / Regional Office/
Sub-Regional Office
Finance Division

Secretary Division

Internal Audit Division

Internal Control and Compliance
Division

Trade and Research Division
Dispatch & Operation Division
Real Estate Business Development
Division

Real Estate Operation Divison
Finance & Accounts Division
Human Resource Division

Legal Division

Administration & Coordination
Division

Information Technology Division
Regional Office Isamabad
Regional Office Lahore

Regional Office Gwadar

Southern - Regiona Office Multan
Korangi Godown

Pipri Godown
Landhi Godown
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ANNEXURE-II TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Rs. In (000)
Operating Data 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Commission 33,869 - 101,234 97,146 628,050 1,489,762 3,102,771 481,352

Xﬁr%?n?strative 1,080,597 1,015,666 886,062 846,566 964,700 1,046,915 1,590,384 1,449,717
Expenses
Finance Cost - - - - - - 2,326 3,761
Other Income 1,534,289 1,536,169 2,246,100 2,734,102 2,415,294 2,979,626 4,571,796 5,384,520
Profit Before 487,561 520,503 1,461,272 1,984,682 2,078,644 3,422,473 6,081,857 4,412,394
-Fl;’a(;(fit After Tax 403,271 375,506 1,119,131 1,452,932 1,517,441 2,350,027 4,000,465 2,601,194
Financial Data
Paid-up Capital 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Eon-Current 826,174 721,578 10,247,028 10,363,343 538,769 537,599 568,005 46,535,644
L(iegtsterm 125,980 65,827 9,643,072 9,806,574 9,991,495 10,201,408 10,439,414 10,709,509
gxm?;as 126,149,582 125,566,129 131,160,521 140,511,496 151,876,382 206,788,543 281,037,773 312,071,318
Current 114,992,924 114,104,808 128,318941 136,537,696 146,755,712 199,509,695 270,364,849 299,284,114
Liabilities
Key Ratios
Net Profit 25% 25% 47% 51% 50% 53% 52% 44%
Current ratio 110 110 1.02 1.03 1.04 1.04 104 1.04
(N:et _\tlgjorki ng 11,156,658 11,461,321 2,858,178 3,973,800 5,467,245 7,278,848 10,672,924 12,787,204
api
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ANNEXURE-IIl TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

e

DURING THE YEARS 2016-17 TO 2023-24

(Rupeesin million)

S.No. Particulars 2016-17  2017-18 2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
1 Paid-up capital 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
2 Total C&F value of imports NIL NIL 506170 4,859.29 82936.64 179,420.78 323561.11 24,067.61
3 Total value of Exports 1,810.63 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
4 Profit/(Loss) before tax 48756  520.50 146127  1,984.68 2,078.64 3,422.47 6,081.86  4,412.39
5 Profit/(Loss) after tax 403.27 375.51 111913  1,452.93 1517.44 2,350.03 4,00047  2,601.19

ANNEXURE-IV TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

DEBT AND LIABILITIES POSITION ASON 30™ SEPTEMBER 2024

S. No. Name of Debtor Principal Markup TOTAL
P M T=P+M
1 usc 24,334 74,162 98,496
2 NFML 53,814 64,344 118,158
3 MNFS& R (Cotton subsidy) 621 1,932 2,553
4 PASSCO 1,155 4,713 5,868
5 SINDH FOOD DEPARTMENT 543 8,039 8,582
6 PUNJAB FOOD DEPARTMENT 4,688 11,065 15,753
7 KPK FOOD DEPARTMENT 2,527 9,327 11,854
8 BALUCHISTAN FOOD DEPARTMENT 1,794 6,715 8,509
9 GOVERNMENT OF GILGIT BALTISTAN 1,284 4,736 6,020
10 GOVERNMENT OF AXK 231 1,786 2,017
11 DGPARMY 255 1,271 1,526
12 PAKISTAN NAVY 43 165 208
13 MOIP ( FORMERLY MINFAL ON SUGAR AC) 2,403 14,661 17,064
GRAND TOTAL 93,692 202,916 296,608

(PKR IN MILLION)
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ANNEXURE-V TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 30.06.2024

1.1  Name of the Company TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (TCP) PRIVATE
LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 3 | 0 | | 0 | 6 | | 2 | 0 | 2 | 4 |
| 2.2.  No of shareholders | | Shareholdings | | Total shares held |
| 2 | 105 | 2 |
| 1 || 99,999,995 to 100,000,000 || 99,999,998 |
| 3 | Total | ] 100,000,000 |
| 2.3 | Categories of shareholders | | share held | | Percentage |

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their 1 0.000001

spouse and minor children.

2.3.2 Associated Companies, undertakings, and - -
related parties.

2.3.3 NIT and ICP | B | | B

2.3.4 Banks Development Financial Institutions, - -
Non-Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies | - | | - |

2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual Funds | - | | - |

2.3.7  Shareholders holding 10% FEDERAL 99.99
GOVERNMENT  OF
PAKISTAN
2.3.8  General Public
a. Local | - | | - |
b. Foreign | - | | - |
2.3.9  Others (to be specified) | 1 | | 0.000001 |
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ANNEXURE-VI TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

TERMSOF REFERENCE (TORs) OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The ToRs of the BAC shall be the following.

Composition of the Audit Committee:

1 The Board shall establish an audit committee, whose members shall be financially literate and majority of
them, including its chairman, shall be Independent Non-Executive Directors.

2 The chairman of the Board as well as the chief executive of the Public Sector Company shall not be a
member of the audit committee.

3 Theaudit committee shall appoint asecretary of the Committee, who shall circulate minutes of itsmeetings

to al members, directors, and the chief financial officer, within fourteen days of the meeting.

M eetings of the Audit Committee:

1 The Committee shall meet at least once in every Quarter.

2 Audit Committee must meet prior to the approval of interim results by its Board of directors and after
completion of external audit.

3 The Committee shall meet at least four times in a year, with authority to convene additional meetings as

circumstances reguire. Two meetings shall coincide with consideration of the half- year and full-year results
announcements. Meetings may be caled by any member of the Committee through the Committee

Secretary.
4 A quorum of meetings of the Committee shall be at least two members.
5 At least once a year, the audit committee shall meet the external auditors without the presence of the chief

financial officer, the chief internal auditor and other executives being present, to ensure independent
communication between the external auditors and the audit committee.

6 At least once ayear, the audit committee shall meet chief internal auditor and other members of theinterna
audit function without the chief financia officer and the external auditors being present.

Responsibilities of Audit Committee/ Termsof Reference:

1 Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the Public Sector Company’ s assets.

2 Review of financia results.

3 Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the Public Sector Company, prior to
their approval by the Board including any major judgmental areas, significant adjustments, going concern
issues (if any), any changes in accounting policies and compliance with applicable accounting standards.

4 Facilitating the external audit and discussion with externa auditors of major observations arising from

interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of

management, where necessary).

Review of management letter issued by externa auditors and management’ s response thereto.

Ensuring coordination between the interna and external auditors of the Public Sector Company.

Review of the scope and extent of internal audit and ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate

resources and is appropriately placed within the Public Sector Company.

Consideration of major findings of internal investigations and management's response thereto.

Ascertaining that the internal control system including financial and operational controls, accounting

system and reporting structure are adequate and effective.

10 Review of the Public Sector Company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the
Board.

11 Recommending or approving the hiring or removal of the chief internal auditor;

12 Review actions taken to resolve key issuesidentified by the Internal Audit Function.

13 Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by the
Board, in consultation with the chief executive and to consider remittance of any matter to the external
auditors or to any other external body.

14 Investigating any deviation from or violation of the SOE’s code of conduct or other systems of internal

control.

~N O O1

O
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15 Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements.

16 Monitoring compliance with the best practices of corporate governance and identification of significant
violations thereof.

17 Review and Recommendation of Related Party Transactions to the Board for Approval.

18 Overseeing whistle-blowing policy and protection mechanism; and

19 Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board.

20 The audit committee shall be responsible for managing the relationship of Public Sector Company with the
externa auditors. In managing the Public Sector Company’s relationship with the external auditors on
behalf of the Board, the audit committee’ s responsibilitiesinclude;

a.  Suggesting the appointment of the external auditor to the Board, the audit fee, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal.

b. Considering the objectives and scope of any non-financial audit or consultancy work proposed to be
undertaken by the external auditors and reviewing the remuneration for this work.

c. Discussing with the external auditors before the audit commences the scope of the audit and the extent
of reliance on internal audit and other review agencies.

d. Discussing with the external auditors any significant issues from the review of thefinancial statements
by the management, and any other work undertaken or overseen by the audit committee.

e. Reviewing and considering the external auditors communication with management and management’s
response thereto; and

f.  Reviewing progress on accepted recommendations from the external auditors.

Reporting and Performance Evaluation:

1. The Audit Committee will report to the Board and update on every meeting of the Audit Committee shall be
presented before the Board.
2. The Committee reviews and assesses annually the adequacy of these Terms of Reference and confirms that all
the responsibilities set out in the current Terms of Reference have been carried out.
3. Ensurethe SOE'sannual report describesthework of audit committee, including acopy of itstermsof reference,
with specific points that must be addressed for full disclosure and transparency.
4. Ensure that the Internal Audit function reports on recommended improvements in SOE management and
activities covered by its purview.
5. Ensurethat the Internal Audit function report is considered, and at least one summary is submitted to the full
board.
6. Collaborate with the board to determine and delegate to the Chief Executive what his or her role will bein the
internal audit selection, function, and reporting.
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ANNEXURE-VII TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

TRAINING & CAPACITY BUILDING OF EMPLOYEES

Sr. No. Particular

1) Seminar on International Management Capability of Enterprises for Developing
Countries held from 12-Oct-23 to 1-Nov-23 - Ministry of Commerce, Islamabad’s
—2023 Multilateral Training Program under China Aid.

i) Project on Result Based Management held from 6 — 8 November, 2023 Ministry of
Commerce, Islamabad’s — Training Course for 2" Quarter (October — December)
2023-24.

i) Project Tender & Procurement Management held from 6 — 8 December, 2023.

iv) Seminar on Economics and Trade Cooperation for Developing Countries — schedule

in China 14" November — 4" December, 2023 (21 Days).

V) Seminar on E-Commerce and Internet Innovation Online
2" November — 15" November, 2023.

vi) In-House Training of Ms. Office (Word, Excel, Power Point) for the Staff of TCP
held on 29"& 30™ April and 2" May, 2024,

vii) Conducting “Exclusive Director's Training Program” organized by M/s. Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance, Karachi held from 22" April to 26" April, 2024
at TCP Principal Office, Karachi.

viii) Training Course on Building Reliable Supply Chains by Srilanka and APO
Secretariat Japan International Program Face-to-Face Multi-country Training 24 to
28 June at Colombo, Srilanka.

iX) Exclusive Director Training Program (SOE) for Trading Corporation of Pakistan
held from 22" to 26" April, 2024.

X) DTP for SOE Program Offered by PICG in Karachi and Islamabad.
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ANNEXURE-VIII TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

AUDITOR’S QUALIFICATIONS AND MANAGEMENT REPLIES

.

ON TCP’S ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Qualification

As disclosed in note no. 12 to the financial
statements, trade debts include receivables
of Rs. 9,899.130 million from various
government institutions. During the course
of our audit, we circularized confirmations
to these debtors however, we have not
received responses to our confirmation
requests and there have been no
movements or recoveries in the last six
years. Therefore, we were unable to assess
their ageing and recoverability. Further,
one of the debtor M/s. Utility Stores
Corporation of Pakistan (USC) confirmed
its balance for the first time during the year
and the amount not confirmed by USCP is
also included in the above qualified
amount.

As disclosed in note 14.1 to the financial
statements, other receivables include
Rs.16,032.99million (including accrued
mark-up and other charges of Rs.13,653.37
million till June 30, 2024) from sugar mills
on account of sugar not supplied by them
under the contractual terms. The Company
had initiated legal action and also referred
the matter to National Accountability
Bureau (NAB). In the absence of
management objective evaluation of

probable outcome of the said legal action,
we are unable to satisfy ourselves as to the
recoverability of receivables from sugar
mills under the head prepayment and other
receivables.

Management Reply

Last year in 2023 qualified amount was Rs. 10,601.176
million is primarily related to supplies made to USC and
Provincial Governments against which they have not made
payment. Out of above said amount, during the year an
amount of Rs. 1,788.00 million received from M/s. Sindh
Food Department and two confirmations are received from
M/s. USC and Baluchistan Food Department for Rs. 23,948
million (against receivable amount of Rs. 26,980.213
million) and Rs. 1,696.00 million respectively.
However, for the recoverability, TCP has been following up
aggressively with the Provincial Governments and during
period multiple meetings held with these agencies. However,
Para 5.6 of this report may be referred for further details of
efforts taken for recoveries.

The main observation of the auditors relates to recoverability
of total amount of Rs.16,032.99 million from Nine (9) sugar
mills which include markup and other charges. The
recoverability of the amounts depends on the ultimate
outcome of Legal proceedings as the cases are pending in
High Court. However, the sugar mills refused to pay
outstanding payments including markup thereon. TCP is
vigorously pursuing the cases at relevant forum and
hopefully the cases shall be decided in favor of TCP, in
accordance with the contractual terms. The details of
outstanding recoveries as on 30-06-2024, against Nine (09)
sugar mills are given as follows:

. Rs. In

Sr. No Name of Sugar Mill Million
1  |Abdullah Shah Ghazi Sugar Mill 2,700.63
2 |Haq Bahu Sugar Mill 2,889.20
3 |Macca Sugar Mill 1,181.13
4 |Abdullah Sugar Mill, Depalpur 269.80
5 |Abdullah Sugar Mill, Ex-Yousuf 2,289.96
6 |HaseebWaqas Sugar Mill 519.99
7  |Seri Sugar Mill 604.02
8 |T.M.K. Sugar Mill 2,817.93
9 |Tandlianwala Sugar Mill 2,760.34
16,032.99
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S. No. Qualification Management Reply

c. As stated in note no 24.1.1 and 24.1.4 to The legal status of tax cases is included in the note No. 24 of

24.1.14, the Company has pending contingencies.

litigations and open tax assessments

against the company aggregating to Rs.

12,195.65 million. The ultimate outcome

of these litigations cannot presently be

determined, and no provision that may

result, has been made in the financial

statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE STATE-
OWNED ENTERPRISES (GOVERNANCE AND OPERATIONS) ACT, 2023
AND THE STATE-OWNED ENTERPRISES OWNERSHIP AND
MANAGEMENT POLICY, 2023

Complied with

Requirement Reference | Tick therelevant box | Remarks

PRUDENT AND EFFICIENT MANAGEMENT

1. | The SOE ensured sound and prudent management Section 6(1) of

by: the Act

a. conducting operations  with integrity,
objectivity, due care, and professional skills

b. ensuring independent directors and the CEO v
meet the fit and proper criteria

c. composing management of individualswho
were fit and proper for their positions.

d. maintaining adequate  accounting and
business records v

2| Theaccounting and other records meet the Section 6(2) of

following criteria: the Act

a. enable prudent management of the SOE's v
business.

b. ensure compliance with the obligations v
imposed by the Act.

c. comply with all professional standards and
pronouncements applicable in Pakistan v

3. | The SOE ensured that its primary objectiveis met Section 7(1),

by: (3) of the Act

a. operating efficiently and in accordance with
its respective Acts or articles and v
memorandum of association.

b. generating sufficient revenuesto cover costs
and maintain financia stability v

4. | Following factorshave been considered in Section 7(2) of

achieving SOE’s primary objectives: the Act

a. thelong-term economic consequences of v
decisions

b. business relationships with  suppliers, v
customers, and other stakeholders

c. theimpact of operations on the community v
and the environment

d. maintaining areputation for high standards of
business conduct. v

e. acting fairly among members of the SOE
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During the reporting period, the SOE entered into
a Public Service Obligation (PSO) and the PSO
has been conducted in accordance with the
guidelines given in the Act and Policy.

Section 7(4) of
the Act,

Policy
Paral7,32

Annex-5 of the
Policy

MEASUREABL E PERFORMANCE

.

TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Ministry of Commerce - Government of Pakistan

Complied with

Tlck the relevant box Remar ks

v

RESPONSIBLE MANAGEMENT

6. | The Board has adopted a business plan for the| Section8(1),(2)
next three financia years, prepared in line with the &
provisions contained in the Act and Policy. (3) of the Act, |V

Annex-1 of the
Policy
7. | The Board has adopted and published a statement |  Section 8(4) of
of corporate intent for the SOE or the group the Act,
comprising the SOE and its subsidiaries (if any) at Schedulelll
the start of financial year while covering the of the Act
reporting year and the following two financial v
years, in the manner and form set out in Schedule- | Annex-1 of the
[11 of the Act and Annexure | of the Policy. Policy

g. | During the year, the Board has submitted the Policy
terems of reference, sKkill-gap details, and Annex-7
explanations to the Board Nominations Committee
(BNC) for selecting independent directors.

9. | Proper induction training has been provided for Policy
new directors.
Annex-7
10. | The SOE has maintained aregister of declared Policy
director interests. v
Annex-7
11. | The SOE has clarified the selection and Policy
appointment process of the directors. Annex-7
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Complied with

Requirement Reference | Tick therelevant box | Remarks

12. | During the reporting year the SOE remained | Section 12(1),
compliant with the following guidelines for Board | (2), (3), (4) of the
composition and appointments: Act,

a TheBoard composed of 5to 11 members v

b. There was a maority of independent Section 15(1)
directors (non-ex-officio and non-executive) | & (2) of theAct, |

c. The Board consisted of independent directors,
ex-officio directors and the chief executive Poli
officer of the SOE where required by law and &y
had diverse skills and competence. Para 24 v

d. The Board had adequate gender
representation.

e. At least one member on the Board was a
young private sector individual, preferably v
below the age of 40 years.

f. The representation of academia, trade &
industry and civil society had been v
considered.

g. The independent director nominations were
based on the nominee's ability to devote the v
required time

h. Thetenure of independent directors was three
years, or as per respective statutes.

i. Any independent director was not appointed
to the same Board after two consecutive
terms unless the period of three years had v
lapsed

j. No Independent Director served for more
than nine years on the Board.

k. The Chairman of the Board was appointed by
the Federal Government from one of the
independent  directors. The CEO was
responsible for leading the board and v
ensuring its effective functioning and
continuous development and was not
involved in the day-to-day operations of the
SOE.

I.  Theoffices of Chairman and CEO were kept
separate
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Complied with
Requirement Reference Tlck the relevant box Remarks

m. The representation from the administrative
Ministry/ Division on the Boards of SOEs
was restricted to one member

n. The representation of any other Ministries

Divisions (other than Ministry of Finance) v
and any other public sector agency was
discouraged

0. The ex-officio Board nominees had the v

necessary skills and experience.

p. Directorsreceive afee for attending meetings,
with compensation reflecting their v
responsibility and expertise. No additional
perks were allowed, and remuneration was not
at alevel that could compromise the Board's
independence

g. Appointment of an individual to more than
five SOEs simultaneoudly, including their v
subsidiaries was prohibited

13. | Followingindividuals were not appointed or did Section 11 of
not continue as independent directors: the Act

a.  Under eighteen years of age,

b. Anunnatural person,

Undischarged bankrupt in any jurisdiction,
Convicted of an offence,

Prohibited by statute or court order,
Declared mentally unfit,

-~ o a 0
€ € € K K K <

In the service of Pakistan,

0«

Member of Majlis-e-Shooraor
Provincia Assembly,

<

Holder of political office,

<

j.  Employee of an SOE. v

14. | Every director held office for the period specified | Section 13(1)
under the applicable law unless the director of the Act
resgned in writing or was removed earlier in
accordance with the SOE Act.
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Requirement

The removal of any independent director
appointed by the Federa Government was based
on an inquiry that established one or more of the
following:

a. thedirector wasin non-compliance with
applicable laws,

b. failedto fulfill duties,
c. acted detrimentally to the enterprise, or
d. wasguilty of misconduct.
Whereby Misconduct included:
(i) conflicts of interest,

(if) misuse of funds, assets, and resources of
the SOE

(iii) disrespect or harassment to colleagues and
staff,

(iv) making unauthorized public statements,

(v) non-compliance with code of conduct or
conflict of interest requirements,

(vi) accepting gifts or benefits from sources
externa to the SOE offered in connection
with his duties on the Board,

(vii) misuse of position

Reference

Section 13(2)
of the Act

e

TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Ministry of Commerce - Government of Pakistan

Complied with

Tick therelevant box | Remarks

v

16.

Any act, proceeding, or decision of the board was
not deemed invalid solely due to a vacancy,
defect, or irregularity in the constitution of the
board.

Section 14

17.

The CEO:

a managed the SOE and its financial and
procedural matters under board delegation and
oversight,

b. implemented strategies and policies approved
by the Board, and

c. established arrangements to safeguard funds
and resources, ensuring their economic,
efficient, and effective use according to the
business plan, primary objectives, and
statutory obligations.

Section 15(3)
of the Act
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Complied with

Requirement Reference | Tick therelevant box | Remarks

18. | The fit and proper criteria, as prescribed in| Section 16(1)
Schedule 1V, has been applied to independent | (2) of the Act,
directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the
Company Secretary, and al other senior v
management officers of the SOE. Schedule IV of

The SOE also ensured compliance with any the Act

additional requirements issued by sector
regulators or authorities governing specific sectors

19. | The HR policies have been established to enhance | Policy
the quality of its human resources and Para 29 v
organizational structure, with approval from the
Board of Directors.

20. | Following guidelines have been considered for | Policy
developing HR policies: Para 30

a  Approval, amendment, or supersession of HR
policies has been made by the Board unless
otherwise provided in the primary legislation v
of the statutory SOEs. The Policied rules/
regulations were based on the principles of
fairness, transparency, and equity.

b. Regular HR review mechanism has been
implemented to rationalize the workforce.

Vv
c. New appointments were made preferably on a
contract basis with a one-month notice
termination clause. v
d. Annua performance evaluations for HR were
conducted, and continuation/termination
decisions were based on these evaluations. v

e. Fit and proper criterion for the
appointment of CEO, CFO, CIA, Company
Secretary, and other senior management v
officers complied with Section 16 and
Schedule IV of the SOEs Act, 2023.

21. | Every newly appointed independent director: Policy

a.  Submitted a declaration, along with consent to | Para 35
function as Director, confirming qualification
under the Fit and Proper criteria as notified v
under the Act?

b. provided adeclaration to both the SOE and
SECPif thereisany change affecting his/her v
independence post-appointment?
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Complied with

Tick the relevant box

RESPONSIBILITIES, POWERS, AND FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD

22.

It has been ensured that:

a. The Board operated with autonomy and
independence in discharging its functions
under this Act or any other applicable law,
according to the adopted busi ness plan.

b. No administrative or standing instructions by
any Division of the Federal Government were
applied to the SOE without prior approval
from the Federal Government

c. Any exigting instructions already in field at
the time of coming into effect of this Act were
ratified by the Federal Government within a
period of six months, else was deemed
rescinded.

Section 17(2) of
the Act

23.

The SOE maintained independent procurement
policies approved by the Federal Government,
ensuring compliance with the Chartered Institute
of Procurement and Supply's Global Standards.
These policies adhered to the Public Procurement
Regulatory Authority Ordinance, 2002 (XXII of
2002) as directed by the Federal Government,
until the procurement policy of SOEs is prepared
and approved by the Federal Government.

Section 17(2) of
the Act

24.

The Board or concerned authority has appointed a
chief executive officer under a performance-based
contract for a specified period and aligned
existing arrangements with the appointment of
chief executive officers in line with this provision
within one year of coming into effect of this law.

Section 18(1) of
the Act

25.

Regular monitoring of the CEQO's performance
against agreed performance measures was
ensured, along with oversight of the CEO's
development and succession planning.

Section 18(2) of
the Act

26.

The CEO was selected and appointed under a
performance-based contract, adhering to the
criteria set by the Board, with a three-fourths (3/4)
majority resolution required for both appointment
and removal, including ex-officio nominee
directors. The Board also determined the financia
compensation for the CEO.

Policy
Para 26
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Complied with
Requirement Reference T|ck the relevant box Remarks

The appointments of CEO, CFO, CIA, and
Company Secretary were made in compliance
with the guidelinesissued by the CMU.

[Note: CMU issued "State-Owned Enterprises (C-Level
Appointments) Guidelines2024 on August15, 2024. Until new
guidelines were issued, the provisions under Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance Rules), 2013 were
applicable subject to compliance with the Act and the Policy—
Reference Para 26 of the policy.]

Policy
Para 26

oglhe

Board fulfilled its obligations to shareholders,

ensuring that they were informed in atimely
manner of all material eventsthrough meetings and
other necessary communications

Section 19(1) of
the Act

29.

The Board developed and implemented a code of
conduct for Board members and employees as
outlined in Schedule-V of the SOE Act. The code
included establishing systems and controls for
identifying and addressing grievances related to
unethical practices and ensuring that the code and
supporting policies were effectively
communicated within the organization.

Section 19(2) of
the Act,

Schedule V

A Code of Conduct for Directors and employees
has been developed, including matters from
Schedule V of the SOEs Act and conflict of
interest regulations as at Annexure 8 of the Palicy.

The Code included procedures for disciplinary
action against those who violate it, with specific
procedures for addressing violations by Directorsin
accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017

Section 20 of
the Act,

ScheduleV,
Policy
Para 34

Annex- 8
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Complled Wlth
Requirement Reference Remarks

31. | An audit committee in line with the provisions | Section21(1) of
contained in the Act and Policy has been the Act,
established, ensuring that.

a. the magjority, including the Chairman, were

Annex-6 of the

independent directors, and Policy v
b. that neither the Chairman of the Board nor the
Chief Executive Officer were members. v

c. The committee meets quarterly, with meeting
minutes submitted to the Board at the next v
scheduled meeting and convened before Board
approval of interim results and post- external
audit completion.

d. The SOE's annua report detailed the
committee's work and  performance v
evaluation, which is conducted by the Board.
Besides, SOEs conducted comprehensive risk
assessments to manage potential threats.

The SOE aso considered establishing further
committees as needed.

32. | Theaudit committee isresponsible for: Section 21(2) of

1. Recommending appointment of externa the Adt v

auditors, considering resignation/removal,
audit fees, and additional services.

Determining measures to safeguard assets. v

3. Managing all reportsand communications v
with externa auditors.

4. Reviewing half-yearly and annual financial v
statements before Board approval .

5. Ensuring coordination between internal and v
externa auditors.

6. Investigating deviationsfrom code of conduct v
or internal controls confidentialy.

33. | Internal audit procedures have been established as| Policy Para31
required under sections 19 and 20 of the Act and
in line with the Annexure 6 of the SOE Policy.

Annex-6 of the
Policy
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Complied with

Reference Tick therdlevant box | Remarks

The Board meets at least once every two months.
The Board also met at other times as necessary for
efficient management.

Section 22(1) of
the Act

v

35.

Decisions of the Board have been taken by a
mgjority vote. However, the following decisions
were made with a three-fourth majority, including
the vote of the Federal or Provincial Government
nominee director:

a. Appointment and removal of the CEO

b. Approva of the statement of corporate intent
and business plan

Proposalsfor the sale of sizeable assets
Annual budget statement approval
e. Saleof assets of the company

Section 22(2) of
the Act

36.

In the case of an equal number of votes during
Board decisions, the Chairman of the Board had a
casting vote.

Section 22(3) of
the Act

37.

The directors, the CEO, or other employees of the
SOE were protected from legal proceedings if
their actions or omissions were made in good faith
and with due care.

Section 23 of
the Act

39.

Each SOE director compl eted the Director
Training Program within six months of his’her
appointment.

TRANSPARENT PERF

The SOE and its subsidiaries kept written
financial records that:

a. Correctly
transactions,
performance.

b. Enabled financial statements to be prepared
and audited in accordance with this Act;

recorded and explaned its
financial position, and

Policy Para25

ORMANCE

Section 24(1) of
the Act

c. Clearly identified any transactions involving
directors or their close relatives, directly or
indirectly, including pecuniary or non-
pecuniary benefits.

d. Enabled the preparation of other reports
required by this Act.
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Complied with
Requirement Reference T|cktherelevantbox RemarkS

The records required by 24 (1) are ensured to be

kept:

a. for at least ten years after the dates of the
transactions to which they relate.

b. a the principa place of business or the
registered office address of the SOE.

c. in éectronic form if they are readily
retrievable and convertible into hard copy
form.

Section 24(2) of
the Act

41.

The audited financial statements were prepared for
the financial year for the SOE and consolidated
financial statements for the group consisting of the
SOE and its subsidiaries.

Note: For the purposes of this section, a
subsidiary does not include a joint venture.

Section 25(1) of
the Act

42.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS. The statements, together
with the notes, included al necessary information
to ensure they give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the SOE and the group,
including its subsidiaries.

Note: If the SOE is not following IFRS at the time
this Act comes into effect, the Board must ensure
compliance within three years.

Section 25(2) of
the Act

The financia statements have been accompanied
by a declaration of the Board stating whether, in
their opinion:

a. There are reasonable grounds for believing
that the SOE and its subsidiaries shall be able
to pay their debts as they become due and
payable.

Section 25(3) of
the Act

b. thefinancia statements and the notes to them
complied with the requirements of this Act
and international accounting standards.

A report has been submitted on SOE’s operations
and its subsidiaries for the financial year to which
it relates not later than four months after the ends
of that financia year, in the form prescribed in
Schedule-VI.

Section 26(1) of
the Act,

Schedule VI
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Requirement

Complied with
Reference T|ck the relevant box Remal' ks

The annua report omitted any information that
could seriousy harm the business interests if
disclosed.

Section 26(2) of
the Act

v

A confidential report to the Federal Government
has been submitted detailing the information
omitted from the annual report and reasons for the
omission (if the case be).

Section 26(3) of
the Act

47.

A summary of the annual report has been
published on SOE’s website, or if not available,
on the website of the relevant Division or in
newspapers circulating in Pakistan

Section 27(1) of
the Act

The SOE published a summary of the annual
report within one month after submission to the
Federal Government, comparing  actua
performance with the targets or benchmarks set in
the statement of corporate intent for that financial
year.

Section 27(2) of
the Act

49.

A half-yearly report of operations has been
submitted to the Federal Government for the first
half of the financia year within two months after
the end of that period.

Section 28(1) of
the Act

The half yearly report contained:
a Thehaf-yearly financia reports of the SOE

b. A statement on the extent the SOE and its
subsidiaries have achieved the business goas
specified in its statement of corporate intent
for the financia year.

c. Any other matter that the Federal Government
may have directed to include

Section 28(2) of
the Act

5L

The SOE clearly stated and published in its annual
report all contingent liabilities, guarantees

provided by the Federal Government or third
parties on behalf of the Federa Government,
payables to other SOEs, and any loans or other
financial support provided by the Federa
Government or other SOEs.

Policy Para 28
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Complied with

Requirement Reference Tick therelevant box | Remarks

SHAREHOLDING RIGHTSOF THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

52. Directors and senior management officers submitted Section
their annual declarations of assets and beneficially held | 30(1) of the
investments and properties to the Board, reporting any Act v

changes within two weeks. Public disclosureisin line
with the Board's conflict management policy.

53. | The SOE disclosed the specified documentsrelatingto | Section 30
its affairs or those of its subsidiaries as directed by the (2) of the v

Federal Government. Act
54, The SOE proposed reasonabl e conditions to the Section 30
Federal Government regarding the public disclosure of (4) of the
information, including any restrictions on further Act v

disclosure, when applicable.

MONITORING PERFORMANCE

55. The SOE submitted the required information to the Section
CMU as mandated by the Act and has promptly 32(1) of the| ¥
updated or corrected any changes or errors within Act

fifteen days of such change or knowledge of error.

56. | The SOE complied with the CMU'swritten notices for Section
disclosure within ten working daysto assist the CMU 32(2)(3) of
in discharging its functions under the Act. theAct |V

57. The bi-annual reports have been disclosed on SOE’s Policy Para

website following the CMU's publication of the 3%
summary of financial and economic performance
reports, which were reviewed by CCoSOEs and the v
Federal Government.

o Lol

DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To THE MEMBERS OF TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE] LIMITED

ReporT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE)
LinviTeD {the Company], which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024,
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the matters described in paragraphs (a) to {c) below, the
statement of finandal position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flow together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable In
Pakistan and glve the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017), in the
manner 5o required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs
as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) as disclosed In note no. 12 to the financial statements, trade debts include receivables of
Rs. 9,899.130 million from various government institutions. During the course of our audit, we
circularized confirmations to these debtors however, we have not recelved responses to our
confirmation requests and there have been no movements or recoveries im the [ast sic years.
Therefore, we were unable to assess their ageing and recoverability. Further, one of the debtor
M/s: Utilitles Stores Corporation of Pakistan (USCP) confirmed its balance for the first time
during the year and the amount not confirmed by USCP is also included in the above qualified
amount.

g
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b) as disclosed in note 14.1 to the financial statements, other receivables include Rs. 16,032.99
million {including accrued mark-up and other charges of Rs. 13,653.44 million till June 30, 2024
from sugar mills on account of sugar not supplied by them under the contractual terms, The
Company had initiated legal action and also referred the matter to Natioral Accountability
Bureau (NAB). In the absence of management objective evaluation of probable outcome of
the said legal action, we are unable to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverabllity of receivables
from sugar mills under the head prepayment and other receivables.

¢} as stated in note no 24.1.1 and 24.1.4 to 24.1.14, the Company has pending litigations and
opeén tax assessments against the company aggregating to Rs. 12,195.65 million. The ultimate
outcome of these [itigations cannot presently be determined, and no provision that may result,
has been made in the financal statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15A3) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibllities under those standards are further described in the
Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date
of this auditer's report is information included In the director's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materlally inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated,

If based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude ‘that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. For the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinlon section of our report, we conclide that the other
Information is also materially misstated with respect to those matters.

W
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requiraments of Companies Act, 2017 (¥1X of 2017) and for such Internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financlal statements that are free from
material misstaterment, whethar due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraed or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As, as applicable in Pakistan, will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thesa financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
fudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Invohe collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to deslgn audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the affectiveness of the Company's internal control,

= Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,
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= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basls of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statemenis
or, if such disdosures are in adequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. Howewver, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying fransactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, induding any significant deficlencies in
Internal control that we identify during our audit.

REPORT On OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY RECUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion, except for the possible effects of the
matters referred in paragraphs (a) to (¢} in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our repart:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XiX of 2017);

b} the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or lass and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XI¥ of 2017),
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢} investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company’s busmess; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the 2akat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (X\Vill of 1980|.

W‘..f'-.i
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting In this independent auditor's report is

Muhommad Ageel Ashraf Tabani,

Baden Vg Mebwrod Yoo, Qe
BaKER TILLY MEHMOOD IDREES CLAMAR
Chartered Accountants

Karochi

Date: October 25, 2024

UDIN: ARZ02410542HIsaTvgls
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TRADING CORPORATION OF PAHISTAN (PRVATE] LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION
A5 AT IUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froperty and equipmerit
irvtangTbde assat
Lorg-Lerm investmenk
Lorg-tedm loans
Lorig-Len depasits

CUEREMNT ASSETS

Curran maturnity of kong-ienm Invesiments
Hcrps

Sock-In-trade heid an behall of Governmesst af Pakistan
Due fram Gewernmert aof Pakistan

Trada debis

Loans and adhanoes

Aconaed Ineresk

Prepaymants and othir recasablas

Sales taw refundakls

Short-term Emvestmenis

Casn and bank bakbnoes

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPTTAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capial

Issued, subscribed and pald-up share capital
Surplu revaluaticn on prapsrmy and equlpmant
Reserves

FOMN-CLAREENT LIGBILITIES

Long-term Soan

Lean for FMCL sprinkler system

Celerred llabdities - mall Coanpans ated abssnoes

CLURRENT LIAZILITIES

Trade ynd giher payakles

Commadity Einance under markup srrsngements
Cuwrery pertizn of bosn for FVICL sprinkler system
Inkrrest accrued

Taeation - not

TOTAL EQUITY AND LEABILITIES

CONTINGEMOIES

The soncxed ackes from I io 39 form o fetegnn pavt of thise faansiel sotaments

A

"
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THIet Executive Officer

r_h'gfmen:m Officer
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2024 Ja2E
Rugses in 000
"E\lﬁﬂvﬂﬂ 483,404
1558 2,261
10,703,509 10,439,414
62,788 66,547
16,448 15,603
57,245,153 11,007,418
= 5097
208,053, 896 158,730,360
S6.ETL,343 31,592 806
25,149 11576
0,ET1 A, 706
20,738,713 L7, 748,175
7,324,443 7,390,327
16,818,972 13,004,333
| 1 1580076 1,191,393
312,071,318 281037773
369,315,471 5,152
3.000.000 i 10,000
1,008,000 1,000,200
45,739,625 .
23,100,410 10,501,204
‘ £B,BAD,035 11,501,204
16,648 16,698
72,401 79, HEE
272 132,623
192,322 178,138
1,304,855 1,540,263
2m1, 225,005 252,393.479
7 45T TAB7
15,524,584 13,243 514
1,132,172 1,579,137
193,284,114 170,164,840
369,316,471 182

0"
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TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE] LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FUNE 30, 2024

2024 1023
Mote =w-r—--—-— fupaes in D00 -—--saee
Service charges f commission incorms 25 4E1,352 3,102,771
Adminisirative expenses 27 {1,940, 717 {1,590, 384)
iDperating (loss) f profit 968,365 1,512 387
Finainge cost |5, 761L] {2,326]
Cithar income 28 5.384,520 4,571, 7
Profit before levy {final and minimum tax] and income tas 4,412,394 6.081,857
Minimum tax 9.2 {57.762) {663,536}
Profit befone incoms tax 4,354,632 5413321
Taxation
Rorthe year 29.3 {1,558,997] {1,554, 835]
- Prior ymar {153, 4456H 145 9749
11,753,4348) [1,412,856)
. Determad
Prafit after tanation 260,194 4,000,465
Cthar cornprefenskee income:
rverms that will not be reclassified W@ profit or lozs -
Aevaluation of proparty and egquipment 45,739,625 -
Rerneasirement loss on stall compensated absentas §6,279] {1EE7T
Remeasurament galn an defined benedit plan - gratuity 14,2591 E
Total comprihensiue Incoms for the year 48,348,831 3,981,586

The annaxed Aotes frov 1 e 39 form an integral port of thess fnorcial stotements.

o

LU e G~

_Chinf Exscutive-OTficer Chis# mel:lﬂl‘ﬂmr Directar
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TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN [PREVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOAWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUINE 30, 2024
2024 2023
Hoilg -—————- Rupees in 000
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERSTING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taaatian 4,417,394 BAM81,857
Adjustments of non cash and other itema .
Depreciation an praperty and equpment 51 37,633 31,007
Arnartization an intangible asset & ik T3
Galn pn disprsal of praperty and equipment [2,918] {1,572}
Interést an imastmsants (318,815} {B50,609)
Subsidy to be relmbursed - nel (62,641, %44} (79,712,363}
Prowision For compensated absences ) 929 83,229
[61.834,015) {Bi},4503, 605)
Dwcroase f (increase) incurrent assets
Stocksinstrade held on behalf of Government of Pakistan 6,097 19,185,777
Trade debits 24,651 458 {15,257,071)
Loans and advances {3.573) 1148
Prepaymerts and other receivables [1,537,7L5) (1.543,243)
Lalbas tar refundahble (%4, 166] |30L,E52]
21,662,101 1, 7R 509
[Decraase] [ increase in curreat Eabifiges
Tragde and other payables {37,852 (19,086,231}
Interest acirwed _:‘;_._Em m _-d—&g £84
42,718 [9.402 A1}
Cash usad in opesations (25,096,801} [61,595,653)
mcome tax paid [2,258,156) (1,826,554
Staff redirement graiuity - net |15B,576) aE,042
Compensated absences paid 765,558 ‘ 60,074
(2,473,290 11910, 196
Nt cash used In operating sctivities (38,5T0,091) {83,905, B45)
CASH FLOAWS FROBM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Aiditions to praperty and equipment (270,132 [ #3459)
Sale procends fram dispesal of property and eguigment 3,687 1620
Nt proceeds [investment in) / from market treasury bils (3,814,633} (9,160,774)
Mat change in Investmant in Pakistan inmesiment bonds (27095} 1238, 00%)
Hat proceeds from ff [imeestrant in) term deposit receipts 3 1,280,000
terest received on Imaestments 452,853 863,128
long term deposis fBaEy |1,762]
Long-term kans recaived {7067 17,335
Long-term laens recovenad - nat 3,859 _10,057
Mt cash jwsed in) / genarated from investing activithes (4,202,780 0,678,861
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Subsidy received [ adjusted during the year 13818008 1,508,963
Dividend paid AR ICKTR FA0 0
Mat cash generated from linancing activities 13,804 0048 1,208,943
Met datranse In cash and cash equivalents [28,B54,863) (E7.375,727]
fash and ash equivalents at begnaing of the vear (250,202 DEE) (162,826,259
Cash and tash equivalents at end of the year ki 5,066, 94 250,202, 036|
The anmered netes from 1 ta 39 farm an integrsd part of these finanaol statemarnts,
o A
we Officer Chaef Fifancial Oficar Direclor
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TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE] LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2024

L LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

L1 Trading Corporation of Pakistan [Private) Limited [the Company) was neorporated in Paklstan on July 28, 1967 a5 a
private limited company under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 {now Companies Act, 2007). It is wivolly owned by
the Federal Govermment and operates under the adminlstrative control of the Ministy of Commerce (MaC),
Goererniment of Pakistan |GoP). The registered office of the Company is situated a1 Finance and Trade Centre, Shabrah-e-
Faisal, Karachl. The principal activity of the Company is to cater strategic imports as per directives of Government of
Pakistan. The Company acts as an agent in those transactions and Is entithed to commission on services rendered and
does ok carry any risks and rewards related to those trangactions as such and therefore, the sales and cost of sales
relating to those trandsclions are not presented In the stabement of prodit or loss of The Company.

12 Cotton Exchange Comporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited (CEC) and Rice Export Corporation of Pakistan (Private)
Lirmited (RECP) were merged with and into the Company in 2001 wnder an order of %indh High Court dated lJanuary 19,
2001 Further, Cotton Trading Carporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited (CTC) was merged with and into the Comparny in
2008 by arather order of the $indh High Court, As 3 result of these orders, the assets and Fabilities of these defunct
companias were transferrad to the Carmpany without any subsidiary records,
1.  BASIS OF PREFARATION
2.1 Sstatement of compliance

These financial statement: bave bean prepared In accordance with the accounting and reporting $lamdérds as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

«  International Financial Reparting Standards [IFRS Standards) issued by the Imtermational Accounting Standard
Board (1A5B) as notified under Companies Act, 2017;

Prowlsions of and directives isseed urder bhe Corrgsanbes o, 2017; and
- Provision and directives issued under State Owned Enterprisas Ack, 7033,
W here the provisions of and directives bsued under the State Dwned Enterprises Act, 2023, Companias A, 2017 differ
from the IFRS standards, the provisions of and directives lssued under the Comganles Act, 20317, State owned
Enterprises Act, 2023 have been followed,

1.1 Basis of mersurement

Theze financial statements have been prépered under the historical cost comvention, unless otherwise specifically
stabed.

2.3 Functional and presentation currendy

These financial stetements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which [s also the Compamy's functional currency.

e
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2.4 Crivical accounting estimatas and judgmants

The preparation of fingncial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as spplicable in Pakistan,
raquirgs management fo make estimates, assumptions and use judgment that affect the application of palicies and the
reporbed amount of assets, lablitles, Income and expenses.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including ressonable expectations of futwe events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively commercing from the period of revislon. Areas where judgments and estirnates made by the
management that may have a significant risk of material adjustments to the financtal statermentsin the subsequent year

are a5 Tolkows:
Mote
fesldual values and useful Ives of property and aquipment 51
waluation af stores and stock In rade 35&36
- Provdslan for impalrment of trade debts and othar receivables 37
= Provision for taxation 415
- Provisbon for compensated absence 3.13
Estimation of contingent Kahilities |

25  Mew accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended Juna 30, 2024

Duwring the year the institwte of Chartered Accountonts of Pokistan (ICAP) heve withdrawn the Technbcal Release 27 "IAS
12, Incame Taxes [Revised 2012]" and issved guidance — 145 12 Application Guidance on Accownting for Minkmum
Taxes and Final Tawes”, The sald guldance reguires takes paid under final tax regime to be shown S=parately as a lewy
imstead of showing it in curment tax, Further the treatment of minimum tades has been presented differently in this
guldance,

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements retrospectively in accordance with the
reguirernent of International Accounting Standard [IAS B) — “Accounting Policies, Charge In Accounting Estimatas and
Errors’. There has been no effect on the Statement of Financlal Positbon, Earméngs per share and Statement of Changes
in Equity 82 a result of this ehange.

Effect on profit or loss and ather Afer
comprehengive incame e e irmpact of incorporating
Change Change in effects of
sccounting policy i sivnge b
policy accounting
palicy
Iw SaEsssismsmssssazazzzssiic
For the vear ended lune 30, 2024
Taxation-Fnal taxes = = 5
Tasation-Minimuem Tases - [57,762) [57.762)
Profit before taxation 4,412,394 - 4,413,394
Prior tay [133,444]) = (153,446
Tanatlon-Inconme tax |1,617, 754] & 76 (1,5549,50:]

2,601,194 - 4 194

For the year ended Jume 30, 2023

Taxation-Final tages - - 3
Taxation-Minimum Taxes . (668, 536} (568,536]
Profit before taxation 6,081,857 - 6,081,857
Prior tax 146,59mM . 146,974
Taxcation-lncome tas |12,228,371] BEH. 536 [1,550,835]

g..-r""l
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16 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2024
Tha following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2024. These
atandards, amandments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have

significant impact on the finandal staterments other than certsin additional dsclosures.

EFfective date [annual periods

beginning on o after)
dmendmentd ta 1AS 1 Presentation of Financlzl Satements’ and IFRS Fractice Jarmary D1, 2023
Amendments ta lAS B ‘Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errces' - Definition of &ooounting Estimates lanuary 01, 2023
Arnendments to 1AS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax ralated to Assets and Labilitles
arizing from a single transaction Jamuary 00X, 2023
Amendments b0 145 12 “Incarme Taxes' - Temporary exception to the requiremnents
regarding deferred tax assets and Habilities related to pilkar Two Income taxes lanuary 01, 2023

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard (1AS) 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements which hive been effective for anneal reporting perfods beginning on ar after 1 January 2023,
Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accounting policy thermselves, they impacted the accounting
policy information disclosed in the financlal statements,

The amendments require the disclosure of 'matarial’ rather than 'significant’ sccounting policies. The amendments
#lso provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting the Comparny to
provide usedul entity-epecific accounting policy Information that users peed fo understand other Information in the
financial statements,

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information dischosed in Mote 3 Material sccounting
poficies {3023: Summary of significant sccounting policies) in certaln instances In line with the amendments and
concluded that all its accounting policies are materlal for disclosure,

2.7  MNew acocounting standards, smendments and Intenpretations that are either not yet effective or relevant to the
Company

The following standards, amendments and Interpratations are only effective for accounting perlods, beginning on or
after the date mentloned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are slther not
relevant to the Cormgany’s gperatiens or are nob expected 1o hawve sgnificant impact on the Compams financial
statements other than certain additsnal dsclosuras,

Effective date (annual pariods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financal nstruments; Discloswres' - Supplier finance
arrangements lanuany 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS?  'Financial Instruments: Disclosures'- Amendments
regarding the classilication and rmeasuremant of financial instrienants January 01, 2026

o
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Effective date {annual periods

Beginning on or after)
Armandiments ta IFAS 9 'Anandal Instruments’ - Amendments regarding the
classification and measurerment of fAinandal Instruments Jamvieary 01, 2026
Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases’ - Amandrments to clarify how a seller-lessen
wibzequently measuras mle and leasaback transactiong lanuary 01, 2024
Amendmients to (AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Staterants Sassification of
llabllities a5 current or nen-cument January O, 2024
AameEndmEnts to 145 1 'Presentation of Financial 3tatements’ - Npn-currént liabilities
with civenants lanuary O, 2024
Amandments (o 1AS 7 'Staterment of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements lanuary 0, 2524
Armendments to 145 21 'The Effects of Charges in Foreign Exchange Rates’ - Lack of
Exchangeability January 01, 2025
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts Jaruary 0L, 2025

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Raporting Standards’ has been ssued by LASE effective from July
01, 2009, Howevar, It has nok bean adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission af Pakittan (SECP).

IFRS 18 'Fresentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements’ has been lssued by BSE effective from January 01, 2027,
However, It has not bean adopted yek lpcalhy by SECPE,

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountabiity: Disclosures’ has been (ssued by 1ASE effective from January G1,
2027, However, it has not been adopted yet lecaly by SECP.

IFRS 17 - “Insuranice contracts' has been notified by the 1ASB to be effective for annual perlods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023, However SECP has notified the timeframe for the sdoption.

MATERLAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The rmaterial accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financzial statemants are set out below. These policies
hizve haen consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

3.1 Property and equipment

Initial Recogmition
An ivem of property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at cost.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acguisition of the asset. Operating Mxed assels unded
constmection are disclosed as capital work in progress (OWIP). The cost of self constructed assers Includes the cost of
matesials, fixed labour and any other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset into service for its intended uge
Induding, where applicable, the cost of demantling and removing the items and restoreng the site on which they are
lpcated, and borrowng costs on gualifying assets.
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The assets which are available for intended wse are initially capitalized at cost as operating fised asset and deprecisted
ower its uselul life, While assets under construction are capitalized 1o CWIP,

Caphtal work-in-progress

CWIP is stated at cost bess accumulated impalrment losses, If any. All expenditure In connection with specific assets
incurred during construction / installation period are carvied to CWIP. These expenditures are transferred to operating
fised assets as and when these are avadalble for intended use.

Meaturament subreguent fa inftiel recognition
Carried using revaluation model

Following classes of operating owned assers are subseguently measured urder revaluation model [le, fair value at the
date of revaluation |ess any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent sccurnulated [mpalrment
Imssash,

= Leasehold Land
- Bullding on Leasehodd Land
- Eodown on Laasehodd Land

Fair value is determined by external professional valuers with sufficient regularity such that the camying amount does
nat differ materially from that which would be determined using falr value at the statemant of firandal position date,

A revaluation surplus s recorded In statement of comprehensive income and credited to the asset revaluation surplus
in equity. However, the increase is recordad In the unconsolidated statement of profit or boss to the autant it reversas 2
revaluation deflcit of the samea asset previousty, A decrease as a result of revaluation is recognized in the statement of
profit ar loss, however, decrease is recorded in statement of comprahensive income to the sxtent of asy credlc balance
enury in revaluation surplus is respect of the same assets,

An anmual transfer from the asset revaluation swrplus to retalned earnings & made Tor the differance between
depreciation based on the revaluation of carrying amouwnt of ihe asset and the depreciation based on assel’s ariginal
cost, Upon disposal, any revaluatien sueplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to unappragristed
profit / loss.

Carried using cost model

Ficed assets other than those mentioned above are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment lossas, if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss and cleimed under trading and other esxpenses to ba
reimbursed by GoF, a3 the casze may be, wsing reducing balance mathed at the rates given in note 5.1 o these financial
statements. Pepredation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset & available for wie and on
disposals up to the preceding month of disposal, Assets' resldudl values, useful llves and depreciation rates ane
reviewed, and adjusted, ¥ appropriate ar each staiement of financial position date, Subsequent costs are Included in
the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropsiate, only whan it s probable that future
econamic benefits assoclated with the item will low to the Company and the oost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Major renawals and improvements for assers are capitalisad and the assets so replaced, i any, are retired,

Maintenance and normal repairs gre chargad to the statement of prafit or loss as and whan incurred. The gain or loss
on diggesal of retirement of an asset represented by the difference batween the sale proceeds and the carmying
amaunt of the asset Is recognised as an income or expenss [n the staternent of profit or loss,

3.2 Right-of-use assets

On Initial recognition, right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to Nitial lzase lablity adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, phes any nitial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
b incurred to dismantie and remove the underlying asset ar to restore the underlying asset ar the dte on which it is
located.

Right-of-use assats are subsequantly stated at cost lass any accumulatad depreciathon / aooumulated impairment losses
and are adjusted for any remeasurernent of lease liability, The rermeasuremant of lease liabitty will only scour in cases
where the terms of the lease are changed during the lease tenos,

Right-of-use assets are depreclated over their expected wseful lives using the stralght-line method. Degreciation on
additions (new leases] & charged from the month in which the leases are entered into, Mo depresiation (= charged in
the manth In which the leases mature or are terminated.

3.3 Lease liability against right-of-use assets

The lease liabiities are inftially meaured as the present valee of the remalning lesse payvments, discounted using the
intarest rate imglicit In the lease, or if that rate cannot be readlly determined, the Comgany’s Incremental borrowing
raka,

The lease llabilty Is subsequently measured at amortised cost wsing the affective interast rate method, The lease
lighilily & also remeasured to reflect any reassessment of change in lease terrmi. These remaasurements of lease
fiabilities are recognised as adjustrents 1o the carrying amownt of related right-of-use assets after the date of nitlal
recognition,

Each lease payment |s allocated between a reduction of the Hability and a finance oost, The finance cost is charged to
the statement of profit or loss & mark-up espense over the lease perlod =0 as to produce 3 constant periodic rate of
interest an the remalning balance of the &hility for each period.

34 Intangible sccet

Intangible assets ame stated 8t cost less accurrulated amortization and accumulated mpairment bosses, i any,
Amartization is changed to the staberment of profic or loss applying the stralght line mathod, whereby, the cost of
intanglbie asset Is written off over &3 useful econemic life. The Amortization rate of the intanghls sssets ara stated in
note & 1o these financial statements. Full month's Amortication is charged in the month of sddition when the asset is
avaliable for wie, whereas, Armortization on disposals |s charged upto the month in which the disposal taked place,
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45 Slores

These are walued 3t weighted average oot le4s impairment losses, if any, except for stores in transit which are valued at
east [irmmice value) plus other charges acoemulated up o the reporting date. Cost comprises of invaice value and other
direct oosts but excludes barrowing casts. Provision & made for slow moving / obsobete iters, where necessary and s
recogniged in the statement of proflt or loss account. Provision for dow moving / obsolete stores relating to
transactions carriad cut on behalf of the Sol iz claimed wunder trading snd other related expensas to be reimbursed by
GoP.

1E Stock-in-trade held on behalf of Governmest of Pakistan [GoP)

Stock-in-trade except for stock of urea is vakied at the lawer of welghted average cost and net realizable valee. Urea is
valued at weighted average cost kess impairmant, IF any, 34§ i sold 8t subsidized rates under the directives of the GoP.
Cost comprises of invoice value, charges like excise, custom duties and other similar levies and other direct costs.

Provision made for obsolete / slow moving stocks, where necessary, 13 included In the trading and other expenses to be
reirmibursed by the GaP,

Met realizable value is the estimated salling price In the ordinary course of business lags estimated costs necessary to be
imcurrad in arder o make a sale

3,7 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other recelvables are stated inltally at falr value and subsequenily measured at amortised cosl. An
allowance for expected (redt loss % recognized in acoprdance with IFRS - 9. Trade debts and other recelvable are
written off, when considered irrecowverable. In case of default by the counter parties in transactions executed on bahatf
of the GoP, the same |5 recoverable / claimed from GoP under treding and other expenses to be reimbursed by the
GaoF.

3.8 Financial Assets

All the financial assets and financial Habilitles are recogndzed at the time when the company becomes a party Lo the
contractual provisians of the instrurmests.

I'nitinl Meosuremeni

The cormpany classifies its financial assets into following thres eategories:
- mextured at amortized cost;
= fairvalue through profit or loss (FYTPL); and
- falrvalue through othar comprehensive income (PSS,

A financlal asset Is Initially measured at fair value plus, for an Ttem not at FYTPL, transaction costs that are direcily
attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent Measurement

l. Equity Instruments as FYOICI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dhvidends are recopnized as Income [n the statement of
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly regresents a recowery of part of the cost of the Investment. Other nat

gains and losses are recognized in other comprehersive income and are never redassified to the statemant of
profit or loss.
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il. Financiad assats at FUTPL
These assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Net gains and bo8ses, Induding any interest § markup of
dividend incgame, are recognlzed In the statement of profit or (oss.

[, Financial assets measured at amortized cost
These &isets are subseguently measured at amertized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized
cost Is reduced by impairment losses. Interest f markup income, forelgn exchange gains and losses and
impairrment are recognized In the statement of prafit or [oss.

De-recognition
Financial assets are derecognited when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial azets have explred or have
been transferred and the Company kas transferred substantially all risks and rewsards af cwnership,

impairment of finomoial assets
The Company assesses on 3 forward booking basis the expected credit iosses assoclated with &3 financial assets. The
impairment methodalogy appked depends on whebher there has been a significant incréase in credit risk, The Comparny
appfies the simplified approach to recognlse lifetime expected credit losses for trade and other receivables.

Qff-setting of fnanciol ossets and ranciol fabilities
A financial assst and financial liability is off-set and the net amowrt is reported in the statement of financsl postion
when thare is & legally enforceable right to set-gff the transaction and also there is an intention to satthe on & net basis
o tir rialise the asset and settbe the liability simutaneously.

3.9 Financial Lisbilities

Finarcial liabilities are elassified as measured at amortized cost using the effective interest mathad. Interest expense
and foveign exchange gains and bosses are recognized in the staternent of profit ar loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is also recognized in the staterment of profit or loss,

310 Cash and cash equivabents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents indiude
bank balances and commodity finance under markup arrangemsenii

3.11 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost o be paid n future for
Eoots and serviced received, whether or not billed to the Company.

312 Prouvisions

Provisions are rezognised when the Company has & present [legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a past event,
and i |5 probable that cutflow of resources embedying econamic benefits will be required to sattie the obligation and a
refiable estimate can be made of the amount of cbligation. Provisions ere reviewed at each balance sheat date and
adjusted 1o reflect current best estimate. The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of consideration
required ko settle the present obligation et the end of reporting period, taking into sccount the risk and uncertaintiss
surrpunding the obigation.

\'L.ﬂ
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3.13 Employess' retirement benefits

Employess’ gratulty fund - defined benefit plan
Gratulty Is based on employéss' 1831 drawn salary. Provisions are made to cover the obligations wnder the scheme on
the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuations are carrled out using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. Actuarlal gain or Ioss (remeassrements) are Immediately récognized In ‘Other Comprehensive Income” as they
ociur, The amount recognized in the statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefic
obligation 25 reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, Current service Costs and any past service 0osts together with
net inberest eost are charged to the statement of profit or loss,

Employees’ provident fund - defined contribution plan
The Company pperates & recognised provédent fund for its employess. Equal monthly conéributions are made, both by
the Comgany and the employess, to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

Compeniated absences
The Company accounts for all accurnulated compensated absences when the employees render sarvice that incraase
thatir entitlement to future cormpensated abisanoms on the basis of actuaiial valuatlon that is carried gut anmually.

3.14 Berrowings

Borrewings are recogrised initially at fair walue, net of transaction costs Incurred and are subsequently $taved at
amortised tost, Any difference between the proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redemption vilue Is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the perod of borrowings using the effective Interest rate method. Finance cost
on barrowings madea for executing transactions on behalf of government are included in the cast to be reimbursed by
the govarnmant.

Barrowings are classified as current liabilitles unless the Company has an uncenditional right to defer the settiement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the siatement of financlal position date. Exchange gains and losses arising
in respect of bormowings in Torelgn currency, iF any, are added In the carrying smount of the borrowing,

3.15 Taxation and lewy
3.15.1 Lowy - final and minimum tax

Compatation of minimum tax chargeable under various sections of ITQ 2001, provisions of such sections require
its comparison with amount of tax attributable to income streams taxable at general rate of tasation, such
minimym taxes are not fully outside the scope of 145-12 and a certain portion of them falls In scope of 145 - 12.
Baced on this, tha minimum taxes under ITO 2001 are hybrid taxes which comorlse of a companent within the
scope of 1AS - 17 and 8 component within the seope of IFRIC - 21/ 145 - 37,

As regards final taxes, its computation s based en revenue o other bases other than taxable income, therefore,
final taces fall under levy within the scope of IFRIC = 21 / |AS — 37, hence treated and diassifled accordingly, as
per the reguirements of | and guidelines issued by ICAP,

In [derntifying and classifying each componant of minimum tax being kybrid 0 natwre, company designate the
armaunt calculated on taxable incorve using the notified tax rate as an incomé tax within the scope of 145 =17
"Income taxes” and recognics & as current iHoame fax aipense, Any eXcass over the armount desligned & income
tax, is recagnized as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC - 21 /1A% = 37,
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3152 Tanation

Income tax expanse comprises current, prior and deferred Tax. Income tax espense ks recognized in the
staternent of profi or loss except to the estent that it relates to item recognized diractly in ather comprehensive
income in which case it is recognized In other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Prowlsion for current tax 18 based on the taxable income for the yesr determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevalling tax rates or tax
rates expactad ©o apply to the profit for the year if enacted,

Prior tox

The charge for prior tax indudes adjustments whers conslidered necessany, to provician fof tag made in previoui
years arising from assessments frarmed during the yvear for such yaars.

Daferrad

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financlal position method, on all temporary differences arising
at the staternent of financial position date bebween the tax bases of assets and fiabilites and ther carrying
amounts for financlal reporting purposes.

Daferred tax lability for all taxable temposary differences, while deferred tas assets are recognised for all
deductible temparary differences, carry-forward of unused tax bosses and unused tax credits, to the extent that
it |s probable that taxeble profit will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, carry
forerards of unused tax losses and unused tas cradits can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at each statement of financial position date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to aflow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utlisad. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed ar each statement of financial
positian date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future takable profits will ellow
deferred tax asset (0 e recovered,

Dieferred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 10 the period when
the asset is reslsed or the liabifity it settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantially eracted st the statement of financial pesition date, Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
statement of profit or loss

Deeferred tax relating to items recognised directly in the other comprehensive Incoma or equity is recognised In
the other comprehensive incoma or eguity and not in profic or loss. Deferred taw assets and dafarred tax
liabilivies are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset current tax assets and liabilities snd thay
relate to the income tax levied by the same @y authority.

o
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3.16 Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencles are translated Into Pakistanl Rupee at the rate muling at the date of transaction,
Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retransiaped into Pakistan! Rupees at the rates of
exchange ruling at the staterment of financial position date. Exchange gains and losses from the sewlement of forelgn
currency transactions and translation of monetary assets and liabilities at the statement of financial positien date rates
are included in the statement of proflt or loss. Exchange gaing [ psses on transactions carried out on behalf of GoP ang
mcluded in the cost related to such transactions. Non-monetary iterms meadured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated wsing the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

317 Rewvenos

Revense i measurad at the fair value of consideration received or recaivable and is recogrised in the statement of
priofit or o,

As the Company aCts 35 &n agent on behalf of the GoP, it eams commission income on the supplied value of
commexdities extegt for Urea on which commission is recorded on Import value [CEF|, Rice on which cammisakon is
recorded on its purchase cost [CRF) enless specifically mentioned in a directive of Gof. The rate of comemisskon depends
upen the directive of Gof', Commission income Is recorded on accrual basls when the transaction has been execubed.

Profits on bank and term deposits is accounted for on time propgrtion basis using effective interest method.

. Rental Income is recorded on accreal basis.
Income in respact of sarvices proviged are recognized when services have been réndered.

F Sales made on behalf of the GoP are credited to *due from GoP" through trading surplus / deficlh to be
rgimbursad by GaP.

3.18 Subsidies from the GoP

Subsidies from the Govemnment are calculated separately for gach consignment, which represent the difference
between the supply price 1o recigient agencles like NFML and the cost incurred on fransactions éxecuted on behalf aif
GaP by TCP, all direct and indirect Income and expenses related to these transactions are borne by GoP and daimed
(o met kasls) under trading and other expenses to be reimbursed by GoP.

3.19 Expenses

Expenses incurred in relation to import and trading on behalf of GoP is charged to trading and other expenses to be
reimbiursed by GoP whereas, payroll and other costs are charged In administrative gxpenses in the statement of prodic
of lpss.

3.20 Dlvidend and other appropelathons

Dividend Is recognised a3 & lisbillty in the pericd in which it |5 declared. Appropriations of prafit incleding transfer 1o
reserves are reflectod In the statement of changes In equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved by
tha shareholders of the Comgpany.

N
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d. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

41 From cost to revaluation model

Previowsly, the Company's policy for measurement of bease hald land, buildirg and plant and mechinery was to recerd
on cost less apoumdated depreciation and Imgarment [if any). The Compary has changed its accounting policy from
bst o revaluation model for lease hold land, Bullding and plant and machinery,

A5 per the new eccountng pollcy, "Any revalustion increase arising on the revaluation of astets (s recognised in
statemant of comprehensive inoome and presanted as a separate component of equity as "Surplus an resaluation of
property and equipment - aet of tax®, except bo the extent that it raverses & revaluation decrease Tor the same asset
previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, in which tase the increase e credited to statement af prafit or oss
to tha extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease In carrying ernaurt srising on the revaluation is charged
to staternent of profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, If ary, held in the Surplus on revaluation of
properiy and eguipment relating to a each specific asset

in these financial statements the sbove explained change in accounting poficy has been accounted far prospectively, as
per 1he reguerements of 145 - & "Accounting Palicies, Changes In &ccounting Estimates and Erroe’, Sincg the accounting
policy has been applled prospettively therefore this change has nof Impacted the statement of financial pastion,
stabemenl of profit or loss, stabement of comprehansive income, statement af changes In equity and s1atement of
cashrkvws of prior year,

\o"'ﬂ
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513 Included in the property and equipment arg certain godowns [land and bulldings) which have been partially
given an renl, however, detalls of cost of these lapd and constructien of godowns thereon are not available
segarately, as these godowns were Laken over by the Company, as a result of mergers a5 disclosed in note 1.2
to thiese financial staterments,

514 The management has decided not ta declare godowns as 'investment properties’ in these financlal statements
as these are actually held and malntained for storage of strategic $teck a5 and when procwned on behalf of
Gavernment of Pakistan & and when required,

515 During the year, written down value of operating fixed assets that have been disposed off amounting to fis.
768 millian {2023: a8 million), Details of operating fixed assets disposed of with WDV above 0.5 million &re

Eiven below:
Relationship of
Cost W0\, Sale Procaed  Particulars of  Punchaser with
Description of asser Purchaser COmpamy or army
of its directors
" ‘W —————— T
;5;-;;:55 Toyosa Corolla it 502,835 003,008 “a“’i E"""’ Chairrman TCP

52 Advances againgt purchasa of land

5.2.1 In 1991, Rice Expost Corporation of Pakistan [Private) Limited |[RECP) {defunct] paid advance of Rs. 8073
mrillian to Port Qasim Authority (POA) for purchaze of two plots of land. Dus to sorme dispute regarding
tracsfer fae, POA wnilaterally cancelled the sdotment of these plots of land. The managemant has recerded full
provision against this advance, Howewer, the Campany has filed a legal sult against POA for re-allobment of the
land, which is pendling adjudication

522 RECP (defunct] had aslso ghven advance of Rs. 0.69 milbon to Karachi Development suthorty (KDA} for
purchase of 100 acres of land. Due to dispute régarding tite of land, (he land was not allomed o the Company.
The management has recorded full provigion against this advance.

2024 2023
§.3  Movemant during the year eeee—-—— Hupees in Q=
Dpening balance H z
Additions 14,308 -
Transler [13525}
Clesing balance 684 -

e

v
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Compirter Softerars
2024 M2

6.  INTANGIELE ASSEY re-——-— RUPEES i) (00mnm s
Net carrylng value basis
Year cnded June 30,
Opening net baak valws 1,761 Z.964
&ddithon (2t cost) - -
Aumprtization charged {703} (a3}
Closing net book walue .'lEEB gl
Gross carrping valve basis
As ot June 30,
Dot 7,031 7,031
Acrumilated amortlzation 15,473] 14,770
Met book value IEEB 2761

10%
6.1  Amorilzation charge for the yesr has been allocated to adminlstrative expenses.
024 2023

T LOMG-TERM INVESTMENTS Mote == Rupees in 000——-—
Finaneial oszets measured at amortised cont
Pakistan investmant Bonds (PlBs) ri 10,643,682 10,373,587
Current maturity - -

10,643,682 10,373,387
Financiol agsets mensered ot cost - unquoted
FTC Maragernent Company [Private] Limited 7.2 1,000 1,000
Lzhore Development Authority [LDW) 73 64,827 B3, 827
10,709 500 10,438 414

7.1 The investment in PIBs consists of two transactons:

7.1  The first immestment of Rs. 4124 billion (including acorved interest of Rs. 205402 millon) was made gn
December 28, 2008 at effectve interast rate of 13.0% per annum and maturity dace of July 12, 2028,

7.2 The sepond Investment of Rs. 5.199 blllkon {incuding acerued Fnterest af Ko 118,968 million} was made on
March 28, 201% at effective interest rate of 13,1% per annum ard maturity date of July 12, 2028,

7.2 Hepressnls investment in 100,000 shares of FTC Managerment Company (Private) Limited [FRMCL), 3 company formed oo
averiee the operations, maintenance and up-keap of the Finance and Trade Centrs, Karachi, Owt of tetal 100,000
shares, 49,909 shares ara held i the narme of CEC {Defaner) and 02 shares are held in the name of ex-employees of
CEC (Defunct).

73 Represents investment towards equity participation of 10.65% (2023 10,65%) to Lahore Development Authority (LOA)
and other sgonsers for constructing a multi-story cormmercial building named LDA Maza st Edgerton Road, Lahore. The
Company is entitled 10.65% of the annual prodit earned by the LDA Plaza. Based on the valuation cerrled put in 2016 by
an Independent valuer, "Industrial Sonsultant and BMachinery Linkers®, the falr value worked out to be B 309.07
mllllen for the Company's thara of 10065%,

ﬂ,ﬁl
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2024 2023
B. LOMG-TERM LOANS e Aupaes i 000
Lioans - sedurad and considered pood
Ernpleyeas JE TG AOET1
Less: Current portion {15.541) (14,223}
62,788 66,647

8.1 Loan 1o employees are given for the purchase of moter cans, purchase J construction of residentiel hauses and for
meeting verlous personal needs of employees in accardance with the policy of the Company. Loans wera ghven for
purchase f construction [ renovation of residential howses to the staff of the Cormpany other than officers are interest
free while other Joans carry interast ranging frem 2% to 6% [2023: 2% to 6%} and are re-payable in 3 ta 15 years (2023
3 to 15 years). These koans are securad against provident fund [/ gratuity entitlement al emgloyess and mortgage of
praperties. These loans hewe been carriad at cost as the effect of carrying these loans at amartised cost would not be
material in the overall content of these financial statements. The maturity profile of Ians it 21 under:

piird 023

Note ._..........,ﬂ_.w, i 0——
Less Than 1 year 15041 149,229
1-3 year 40,641 19,669
BAore then 3 years 21,147 IE,57E

B wan

9,  STORES
Guniny hags 11,836 21,836
Less:  Provision for ebsolete stores (2 1.E36) [21,835]

10,  STOCHKAM-TRADE HELD ON BEHALF OF GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN

Sugar 35,381 35,381
Rice 1,025,801 2,975,501
Wheat 296,586 296,588
Urea - & 097
Black matpe 1,066 1,066

26.2 3,258,836 3,264,933

Prowision lor irmpainment 10.] (3.258,835] {3,258, 836)

&7

101 Movement of provision of éxpired / obsolete stodk 1s as follows:

Balance at beginning of The year 3,258,836 3,258,836
Charged Jf reversed during the year : =

Balance ot and of the yoar 3 36 3,258,836

N
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2024 2023

11, DUE FROM SOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN Mobe wnmscace RpEed A -
Socured - conzidersd pood
Subsidy receivable 111 Hﬂﬁﬁ 159,730,360
Movernent of subsidy receivable durng the year ks as follows:
Balants at beginning of the year 150,230,360 81,116,980
Subsidy to be reimbursed 28 62,541,544 79,712,363
Subsbdy received f adjusted during the year 112 11.3& 114 [13,818,.008) 11,598,983}
Balancs at ond of the year 208,053,896 159,230,360

111 This balance is net of B3 22,163,90 milllon {2023 Re. 27,163.90 million) payable 1o GoP in regect of proceeds [k af
Incidental exponses) {ram sale of Ures Imparted from Saud| &rabia Basic Industries Corporation [SABIC].

112 This Includes Subsidy received during the wear froen the Government of Pekistan (GoF) amounting to Rs, 5,000,00
milllian and includes markeg daimed Trom Utility Stores Cerporation {USC), Food departmant government of Punjah,
Pakistan Agricultural Storage B Services Corparation [PASSCOY) and Natiomal Fertdlizer Marketing Lirmited [MFML) due
an uncleared balances amounting to As. 1,281,470 milllon, Fs. 174,545 milion, Bs. 2,645,713 million and Rs 793,340
million respectheely pertaiming to the vear ended June 30, 2024,

113 This includes adjusiment of markup charges emounting to Bs. 2,891.754 milllon being claimed from 9 sugar mills as
disclpsed in note 14.1.

iL4 Inthe year 2023, the Compary had completed an exercse of thind-party verificaton of debtars and subsidy receivable
as &t a cut-off date of June 30, 2018, The final repert on this exercise was Ssued in October 2022, The cormpany had
engaged an external consultant fos verification and compilation of trade debts and subsidy In respect of earmmodity
ppesations pertaiming to Urea, Cotton, Rice, Wheat, and Sugar for the period from June 30, 2004, till lune 30, 2018 (The
atarting cut-off date for esch commodity was baced on age of outstanding receivables). The exerclse has been carrind
out based on source documents e, bank staternnts, inwoboes, Delhnery orders, acknowledgemnent certificates, banks'
1erm sheets, minutes of meetings with recipient agencies etc. Consaguently, the Company has made adjustments In
recefyahbes In year 2022 from NFMWL amounting o fs. 2,760.223 millien snd recedvables from Food Departmant,
Gowarmiment of AIK arrsunting Lo Rs. 231,422 millisn,

Based on the subsidy audit repart, the Company bzt sitisted reconciliation exerclse of halanoes with reciplent parties,
The ranagemant of the Company Is confident ta finaize the reconciliation exercise &5 spom as possible,

1024 2023
1%, TRADE DEBTS Mt - Aupass In 000 -—u
Lnzecured
Considered gand 56,891,348 E1,542 B0
Considered doubtful 25,252 15,853
56,915,600 81,568 058
Less: Allowance for expected credit boss 12.1 [5,252) (15.252)
wﬂ 114 Héﬂl.“ﬁ 81,542,606
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1231 Movemnent of sllowancs for axpected credit loss & as follows: remmmizees FLUPERS (1 D renmen
Balance at beginning of the year 15,252 35,253
Charged during the year -
Balance at end of the year 25,252 15,252
122 Asat June 30, 2024, receivables from different government instifutions aggregating Rs, 56,891.348 million (2023: K.
81,542,808 million] were past due but not considered lmpalred by the management of the Company. The ageing of
trede debts is as follows:
2024 2023
Iy [ | ee—
Within 1 ¥ear 4,101,728 27,175,075
1-3 Year E, TEA, 454 BL558,564
More than 3 years dd 046 419 45 834,419
EEiEIE.Eﬂl 8 I.IEER&E
123 The management is actively pursuing for the recovery of these outstanding amounts and is confident that significant
amount out of these overdue recelvables will be recovered and remaining amount, If any, will be reimbursed by the
GoP,
124 Ageing analysis of the gross amount is as follows:
More than 3
W 1-3 yea 10324 2013
ithin 1 Year year vears (11.4)
- Rugsees n O
LHiliky Stores Carparaticn of Pakistan 1,181,470 1,336,768 24 351,975 T6.980.213 29,725,953
Matsonal Fertilizer nMarkering Umited ES2,430 11,454,293 12,136,724 12,281,303
Sindh Food Degartment - 1,096,616 1,086,616 1,884 816
Punjab Food Degartmant 174,545 3811857 1,617,362 5,ED03,584 5,439,019
Baluchistan Food Department 1,814, 7E% 1,814,715 1,814,715
khyBor Pakhtoan Ehwa Food
Cepartment - B 1.950,040 1, a50,040 1,950,045
PASSCD 2,545,713 £,937,549 : %.583,312 25,726,960
AK Find Dapartmant - - 231,422 131,422 131422
Government of Gilgit Baltistan = 1,252,029 1,452,028 1,252,028
Directorate Genersl Prociunement
Az - 185, 404 185,404 18E 404
Pakistan Mavy 75075 TL 075 TRATS
TCP emplmieas - L] k4 B4
Others 3 3,418 3418 3,418
4,104,728 B, 76R, 454 fﬁ.ﬂ-lﬂ 56916601 81,568,058

.
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115 The Compeny has been doing comprehensive reconcilistion process with partles against their outstanding balances

?ﬁl
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13.  LOANS AND ADVANCES

Shart-term boan - sacored
Due from employess

Current portion of long tenm loans

Advances - unpecured
Considered good
Employees

Sundry achances

Considered doubtful
Suppiiers
Contractorns
Emphriees

Expart agants
Crhers

Less:  &lbpwance for expectad credit loss

131 Thes= represent interest free loans given to the employess in sooordance with the terms of their amployment and are

Maote

3.1

sacurad against gratuity and provident fund balances of respective emploveas.

14, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepaid expensas

Orthver receivalsles
Cansidered good

Saies LAk receivable

e tax

Receivable from sugar oills
Aeceivable from a bank

Hant receiakile

Staff retirement gratuity fund
Othars

Comsidered doubtil

Recehrabbe From expost agants

InCome fax

Insuranée clalim recenabka

Dribe fraim privatization oommisskon
Refundable fram import awthoritie
T.C.P sports club

fefundable agalnst varigus receivalbies
Due from custodian and othars
feceivabia from handling agents
Demufrags changes

Receivable on account of rice preoured
Export Procesding Zone and others
hery

Lees: Allowarce for expected credic ss

wN

Mati

24.0.2
241,12 & 24.1.11
I14.1
122
14.3
1d.4

14.5
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2024

e “u”“ 111901 [ 5 SRS

.

23

7601 4,784
15,941 14,224
1,917 1,682
4,580 BT
6,517 1,554
8,625 9,525
560 S50
364 354
41 4
1,373 1,371
11,563 11,563
37111 33,539
[11.963) [11,963)
25 1449 21,576

2024 2023
Rupaes in O00-———o
9850 1505
2,462 211 2,462,211
1,776,455 1,776,856
16,032,951 13,141,237
3,850 3,450
179,039 151,452
44,823 :
10,393 o, D6d
20,718,163 17,744,670
437,700 437,700
are EF i)
120,245 120,245
110,388 110,386
9,364 9,364
159 150
20,706 20,706
10,870 10,870
B,4%5 435
1,100 2,100
1,899 7,899
17 17
1,929 1,979
¥25.220 Va5 20
[725,229) |725,229)
20,728,713 17,745,175
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14,1 Represents gubstanding receivables of Rs. 2,279.55 milllon {2023; As. 2,379.55 million) and dcorued mark-up and other
charges of Rs. 13,653.04 million (2023: Rs, 10,761L62 milien] by the Compsny from Mfs, Abdullah Sugar Mill, M,
Abdullah Sugar Mill [Ex-Yousuf), M/s, Haseeb Wagas Sugar ML M5 Seri Sugar ME W/s Tandliawala Sugar ML M/
TAE Sugar Bl M. Abdullal Shah Ghazi Sugar Mills, M/s. Hag Bshoo Sugar Miks and M5, Mecca Sugar Mills for
plsrghase of sugar. The outstanding balance of Rs. 2,374,556 million fepresent portion of amount paid. However, the
sugar mills defaulbed in delivery of tha contracted quantity of sugar. Conseguently, the Company initated legal action
for the recovery of the ssid ameunts and is actively pursulng the case. The management is confident that outstanding
armownt will b fully recovered and hence, no provision Is required 1o be made in these financial statements.

14.2 The management had Identified the emberzienent of Bs. 22.56 million in prior years against which the Company had
recogniced receivable from Allled Bank Limited in the year 2045, Accordingly, the bank has accepted it llabllity and
ensured to make good the lpss Incurred due 1o the embezlement. Furthermore, a resavery of Rs. IR.712 milllon has
bean made by the bank during the financial year 2022-23,

14.3 This represants rent raceivabio from different benants to wham godowns have Bbean given on rent

144 Recalvable undar stalf retirement gratuity fund

The Company operabes an approved gratuity fund for its employess who have completad the employment pesod of 1
year. Provision 5 created for the berelit of the scheme an the basis of actuarlal valuations. Numvber of eligible
employe=s eiveered In fund are 361 (2023: 363]).

029 2023
MNote ssmammens BLpEes i 1) o P
[Surptus] [ balance payment of stadf retirement gracuity fund {320,191}
Markugp an s1aff retirement gratuity exduded from fund 275,368
44 823 -
_———
14.4.1 Movement in lisbility / (asset] recognized in statement of financial pesition
2024 2023
weemem— Rupaas in Q00—
Present value of defined baneflt obligatiors [61B,528} -
Fair wvalue of plan a=u=ts 936,719 -
Payables [275,368)
Staternent of financial position asset 44,823 -
14.4.2 Movement in Bability recognizad in statement of financial posttion
Met asset /(llabiity) Bs at Jily 01, 153,197 -
Expense recognized in statement of profit or losa {5,247
Contributiom made during the year 158,000 ~
Resneasupamant gain/los] recognized in 5001 15,291 -
Perranent exclusion of markug pavable {275,368}
Mot Assel as at June 30, 44823
2024 2023
14.4.3 Movement in present value of the defined benefit obligatlon sescrnnere RUIEES Wy O [emmneer
Present vakse of defined oblgation = at lanwary 01, 588,937
Currant sarvice cost 43,868
Intaract cost B4,912 -
Effact of experience adjustmant 2,435 -
banefits paid [99,624) F

Elﬂgﬂ =
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2028 2023
id.4.4 Movement in fak value of plan assots ———caz Bupees in 0
Fair wahue of plan assets 4t the Deginning of the year 742,134
Expected retum on plan assels 16,716
INLerest ncorme on plan asets 121,483 .
Contributions mada by the comgany 158,000 .
Benafits paid during the year 195,624)
Falrvalue of plan asces at the end of the yeai 538,719
14.4.5 Expense recognized in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 41 A58 -
IFtarest cast 50,9131 -
Interast income on plan asssts {121,4983)
5,287 -

_*l-—=_-

14,46 The company did congider the results of actuarial valuation In the Anancal year 2023 thersfore, the
compacative figuras ara not presented

14.4.7 Following the Board's approval on 29/07/2022, the trustees of the Granulty Fund passed 8 reschition on
23002024 to maintam a Defined Benefit Obfigation (Gratwity Fund) In Its true farm, This resolution
suspended the profit accrual condition stated in the previous fund deed with effect from 25/07/20232, the date
on which the matber was initially approved by the Company’s Board. Any profit accrued up to that dake will ba
payable to all retired employvees, whereas lor exsting or retained employees, no further profit accnsl will
occur. Consecuantly, the suspendad profit payeble has been segregated from the Grotity Fund a2 3 non-
mavable balanoe and i maintained separately in the books, Although this changs took effact following the
trustess’ approval, a5 of the end of 2024, revision 1nthe trust deed & under process.

24 2023
145 mavement in allowance lor eapectad credit loss is as fallows: Rupees in 000——--
Balance at beginning of the vear 725,129 ¥25.2249

Charpad during the year . -
Feversal duting the year =

Balance st end of the yvear 1539 15125
_—

15. SALES TAX REFUNDABLE

Represants sabs tax paid ¢ adjusted on import | purchase and sale of wres and sugar, These commodities are proored at the

Instructions of the GoF.
2024 023
i6. SHORT-TERM INVESTRMEMNTS Mote s——-—o- Rupeas in DOD
Financial ossels meosured of amoriised cost
Term degosit receipts (TOAs)
- I lecal currency 618 167 87500 7,500
blarket treasyry el
= iy bocad currancy I6.32 16,818,971 13,004,333
Prowbsion against term depodt rece(pts 1.1 (27,500 (B7.500]

M 15,818,972 13,004,333
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16.1 It includes term deposik receipts of Trust investment Dank Limited [TI8L] amounting to Rs. 87,50 milion invested in
200E Dun to default by TIBL on repayment of prindpal amount, full provision bas been made agalnst this amount an
prisdence basis and no soorual of markup s made. The Cormgany has filed suit in tha Sindh High Court for recovary of
principal and mark-up which is pending adjedicatinn.

162 Theseearry markup ranging from 15.40% ta 22 .80% (20232; 15.75% 1o 17.25%)
163 This represents Market Treasury Bill purchased on 13 July 2023, 14 Dec 1023, 28 Dec 2023, 07 February 2024, 13 June

2024 and 27 June 2024 for Rs. 15534 blillon having face valuwe of As. 17737 billion |, markup accrued an MTE during
the yaar 5 A5, 1.263 bilkon. These Investment carry maturity period of 3 1o 12 months from the date of purchase.

2024 2033
17,  CASH AND BANE BALANCES Hote s Rupes N O
Cosh at banh
Loral furrercy
In current agcounts 42,015 17,031
In 52ving accounts 11 1,131,450 TI0,027
1,173,365 TET.058
Fargign currency
In current sccoumnts T T
I SEVing AOCounts 1728 17.3 GH4 63 1,404, 256
984,711 1,404,335

IE'.IS-HE?'G EEIEILHS

17.1 These carry mark-up 31 rates ranging from 18.00% 1o 2050% (2033 12.25% 1o 21.25%| per armws This Includes
balance of ks, 3.500 milllion [2023; Rs. 3,500 milion) with Natlonad Bank of Pekistan against contimuing Bank Guarantee
e PSO flest and corparate cards for TCP officlal vehicles and matar bikes.

17.2  These carry mark-up rate of 0,.3% [2023: 0.3%] per annum.
17.3  This includes balance of US55 1.26 milllan (2023; USS 1,26 mifien] equivalent to As. 353.556 rmilllon {2023; As. 360561

millian) with Sindh Bank Limited, marked & Ben against bank guarantes ghen to the High Court of Sndh in connection
with a pending fitigation as stated in note 29.1.8 to thets financlal statements.

2024 2023
18, SHARE CAPMTAL Maote eemsnanees Fupees in 0B0-——
Autharised share capital
Number af sharas
20249 2023
100,000,000 IWM Qrdinary shares of Rs, 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capitsl
This comprises of fully paid-up cedinary shares of R, 10 each a5 follgws:
Mumber af shares
Firrs ] FilrES
58,330,500 59,330,500 lssued for cash 553,305 553,305
4,640,500 0,865,500 [sxusd A% panus shares A0, 6595 406,635
1 0 1000, D083, G0 J5.1 & 18.2 1,000,000 1,000,000

e
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18.1 The Compary has one class of ordinary shares which cardes no rght 1o Txed incorme, The Company has no reserved
shargs for igsuance under option and s3les contracts. The shareholder Is entitied to receive dividend s declared from
tima EO tirme at the mestings of the Company &nd sre entitied o one vote per share,

182 As 2t Jurme 30, 2024, the Minlstry of Commeorce held 93,995,998 (2023: 90,959,908] shares of the Comgpany, The
refaining twe shares are in the name of Chairman and Finance Directes of the Company In the capaciy of ex-officio.

18,  LONG-TERM LOAMN

A Cottan Development Project, aimed to improve the quakty of cotten in Pakistan and to get better price in the infernational
market, was started in collzboration with the Asizn Development Bank (ADE) and for this purpose a loan agreement datied
February A7, 1987 was signed. an amount of Re, 16,65 milllon was draswn under the loan agreement for the said purpose by
defunct CEC,

The principal amaunt Is repayable to the GoP in Paklstani Rupees aang with Interest at the rate of 1% per annun. Howerer,
as of the statement of linandial position date, the Company has not recorded any interest in this regard.

014 2023
0.  LOAN FOR FMCL SPRINKELER SYSTEM Mote wmananss HUpees 0 O00-————-

TCP's share In the cast f principal against water sprinkdars system project

by FTC 2.1 37,335 da H02
Less Principal paid during the year |7 46T |7 467]
Finamcial Liablity Loan 29,868 37,335
Less: Current Labllity portion for year [7,467) §7.467)
Financial Liability Loan - Clasing balanco 12401 19#53

0.1 This loan represent pringpal amount Re, 44,802 millien which 4 repayable in 249 cuarterly instalments the ataie 3
monins KIBOR » 1,5% Further finance poat is bedng charged to the staternent of profit or (oo,

21 DEFERRED LIABILITIES - STAFF COMPENSATED ARSENCES

The Company provides encashment of lesves to its employess, as mentioned In note 2.23. The |atest actuarial valuation of
lihilicy for staff compensated absencas cost was carred out as at June 30, 2024, rerults of which are as fiolbows:

2024 1033
Note sosssmees Rupees im 00—

Present value of defined benefit obilgations £1.1 __Ei
211 mMovement in labiity recognised in Statement of Financial Pasition

Cpening balance 132,621 91,584

Charge for thae yaar 1.2 50,929 82 X245

Payments made during the year i3 (76,558] (G0,074)

Remeasurement loas 21.3 279 13,874

Claging Balance 153,272 132622

W
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22.

1.2 Amounts recognised in the profit and loss acoowent

Current service cost
Intenest 0ost

21.3 Changes in prasent value of defined berafit obdipation

Cpening balance
Currant sarvice oost
Interast cost
Benefits paid
Remiasurernent lods

Closing balance
TRADE AMND OTHER PAYABLES

Trage creditors and bills payable - local
Treda creditors - foreign

Favable to Minkstry of Finance under JICS
Payalle 1o GoP related oo gift of rice

Caposits
Securlty deposit
REtention momey

fccrued lisbilitios
Payable under stafl retirement gratuity fund
Accrued Expren ses

Taxes
Excise duty
Wwithholding tax

Advances

Adwances

Fent recelved In advance

Advance from GoP for payment Lo growers

Other payables

Karachi Dock Labor Board (KDLB) cess payable

Others

2.1 OmOciober 03, 2012, & Memorandum OF Understanding (Moll) was signed between the Cornpany, Ministry of Finarce
(MaF), Ministry of Industries [Mol} and Japan Internatienal Cooperating System [ICS] according to which JICS will
provide ured to the Company under lapan’'s Non-Project Grant Ald Program (the Program). The Mol states that the
Company |3 required to deposit proceeds Trgm supply of urea into GoP bank account maintained with Mational Bank of
Pakistan after dedwcting incidental charges Le. duties, port clearing charges, survey charges, stevedoring etc, The
moverment of amount paysble to GoP on account of supply proceeds of urea received from NCS is as follows:

A

Maote

21
22.2

2.3
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.

2024 2023
LT Y e—
76,070
14 850
90,929
132,622 91,588
76,070 74,073
14,859 B, 156
{76,558} (G0L074)
6,279 18,879
153,272 132,521
76,044 65,217
387,508 387,508
1,952 1,952
5E4,184 SE7 478
46,156 46,156
£30,350 633634
. 108,044
So0ae 50416
59,048 167,460
5,450 5,450
76,318 125,238
81,758 130,688
a5, 105 92,217
7,208 Hala
[ 17533 17,533
119 847 116,954
258 258
37,161 37,191
17,449 37,445
1,394 B66 1|54ﬂ£2
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2004 2023
——eeeee Aunpores i 000-———
Payable to GoP at beginning of the year 87,508 187 508
Less: Paymenis made (0 GoP during the year 2
Payablo to GoP a1 end of the year i 387,504 307,008
— - =

222 Inorder to establish the dgiplormatic relationship between Pakistan and other cowntries, the Prime Minister of GoP has
directed to present a gift of rice to Niger, Cuba, China and 5r1 Lanka, To cormply with sald directhee, the Company was
instructed 1o procure and transport the said gift for which an advance was paid 1o Company, as foliows;

Movernent In advance from GaP related to gift of rlce to vardous countries & a5 follows:

2024
Miger Cuba China_ Sri Lanka Total
Ripees in D00
Opening balance 1,852 - - . La52
Advance fund received during the
yead - - : . i
Fund utllized during the year - - - i
Fund payable to GoP 1,952 : - s 1,952
Fund refunded to GoP
Balance repayabia IISH. - — . s 1,952
Jume 30, 2023 1,952 - - . 1,952
f———— — e e ———

213 Included herein Rs, 1224 million [2023: Bs, 12,24 million) i3 reat payable to LDA Plaza .

2024 2023

3.  COMMODITY FINANCE LUNDER MARKUP ARAANGEMENTS Mote wnrremee FUPEES N (0ssnnnien
Secirad
Mational Bank of Pakistan - 9,276,B05
Alllad Bank Limited . 061485
Habiby Bank Limited 53 7.540,248
MCE Bank Limibed - 0,535,418
Unlted Bank Umited 5,188 3 044 806
Askari Bank Limited 124,900,370 25,000,081
Pieezan Bank Limited 74 952,668 79,933,045
Faysal Bank Lirmited 20.999,913 49,999,912
Bank &l Falah Limited - 24,999,967
Bank tslarmi Pakistan Limited - 19,9498 618
Asker] Bank ifami A0 000, (00 5,000, 000
Habily Metropolitan Bank 71,4592 749 10,00, OO
Bank of Punjab Islamic 3,765,084 -

23.1 :q,:zgm& 232,393,479

A
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23.1 The Company has cormmadity finance facilities sggregating to Rs. 340,200 milllon [2023; As, 345,150 millkon] for its
cormsmodity aperations undar the GoP directives, The sald arrangements are for a pesod of three months and are
renewable and carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR mines 0.06% to 3 months KIBOR plus 1.21% {2023; 3
months KIBOR minus 1.15% to 3 months KIBDOR plus 2.00%) per annum. Thase srrangements are secured against
hypothecation of stock-in-trade and by continuing guarantes fram the GoP,

24, CONTINGENCIES
24.1 Contingendces
Contingencies
The following contingencies | contingent liabilities exist as at June 30, J024:

The following cases arose out of operations carried owt on behall of Government of Pakistan (GoP), and if these
contingent liabillitles will become actual f spedific liabdlities, the sama will be recoverable from the GoP.

.11 The Income tax department finalised assessrnents for the asseament vears 1991 ta 2003 by traatng subsidies
recelved from the Federal Government as taxable Income and has levied taxes amounting to s, 2,35303
millian, The Compary filed appeals at Appaliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR] for the assessment years 1931
to 2003 except for the amsessmant year 1994-95, for which a writ has been filed before the High Court of Sindh
(SHCh egainst the order of the taxation authorities,

The Federal Cabinat In its meetng held on April 04, 1998, direcked that ail unresobved disputes with the
Federal Board of Revenass (FER) sgainst which cases have been flled by the govemmens controlled grganization
in the appellate forum should e resolved and settbed through inter-ministerial consultation and therefora all
cases against FBR should be withdrawn and forwarded to the Ministry of Law, Justice and Human Right [the
Ministryl. In pursuance of the said cabinet diractive, the Cormpany withdréw all the appeals filed against FER
and the rmatter was referred to the Minktry for final decision. The Ministry vide igs letter dated May 21, 1998
decided that subsidy income raceived from the Government of Pakistan (GOF] ks exempt from cax. The
Ministry further directed FRR to jsswe necessary arders [ 5SRO regarding non-tasing of subsidy and adeised the
FAR to waive 3l tax llzbllites of the Corvpany arising owt of the inclusion of the sald amount. The FBR, n spite
of order of the Ministry, has referred the case to Attormey General of Pakistan which is pending,

In 2008, subsidy recsived from the GoP became exempt from tax, FBR claimed that subsidies received by the
Campany from GoP before tax year 2006 continue to be taxable Le. taxy on subzidy cdaimed by FBR from
Assessment years 1991-92, 1994-55, 1996-97, 1997948, 1998-99, 1995-2000, 2001-02 & 200203 and tes years
2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 should remain daimable, However, the Company obtained & stay order from SHC
through its order dated July 3, 2009 agatret the above alleged disputsd Income Tax demands for the said
asiesament and tax years.

Further, the ncome Tad Appellate Tribunal ide its order dated November 19, 2009 passed a judgment in
favar of the Company for tha tax years 2004, 2005 and 2006 that the subsidy received by the Comgany from
the Federal Government |5 not tavable,

In the pear 2017, Additions Commissioner indand Revenuva (ACIR] has issued an Qrder dated April 29, 2017, In
favour of the Compesy for the tax year 2003 that the subsidy recefved by the Company from Federal
Governmert is not texable, Accordingly, the Campany recorded a refund of As S10008 milion by adgusting its
Tax Rabdity.

»E’N
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AL In Aprll 2015, an Assessment Order was lssued by the Deputy Commissioner Indand Revenue (DCIR) In which a
demand of Rs. 1,945.43 milkon akong with penalty of Rs 97,27 milllon have been raised on account of excess
input tax allaped to be claimed by the Comgpany in its sales tax meturns for the perlod from April 2012 o
December 2012. Further 8 demand of Rs. 399,54 million along with the penalty of fis. 19.58 millign have also
been Falsed In the same Crder on account of non-payment of output tax on sale / supply of swgar to Lty
$tores Corporation of Pakistan from January 2013 to June 2013, The Company has pakd the said demand under
protest and filed an appes! before the Commissinner Intand Revenue and subsequently before ATIR wherein
the case has bean remand back. Following the order of ATIR, a fresh proceeding was initiated through hearing
notice dated Februsry I0, 2023, In response b0 this notics, the Company submittad relevant details and
explanations through letters dated Aprll 0%, 2023 and May 25, 2023. After having the submitted infarmation
received, the tax department nstead af re-verifying the details a5 per the directives of ATIR I its judgrrent,
pamed order whersin the officer not only confirmed tha afore-said totsl tax demand of Rs. 2.4 billlon but also
imposed default surcherge amounting to As. 851,128,577, Tha Company belng aggrieved, filed application ko
the FER for constitution of ABRC following the recent changes in appeal procedure {highlighted in para 111
above). Recently on August 21, 2024 FBR has notified that ADAC has been constituted, To our knowledga, tll
vEt NG hearing notce for dispute resolution has baen received by the Company.

.1 The Deputy Cammissioner inland Revenue (OCIR] passed an order vide Assessment order Mo, 00/2017 dated
December 28, 2007 creating tas dermand of Rs. 40,601,053 along with penalty and default suscharge. The
Company, being sperieved of aforementioned prder filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
{appeals-i|], (herenafter called "the CIRA'),

After carefu sxamination of the matier, the learned CiRA has debated tax demand of Az 27,009, 78 out of
total tax demand vide Order Mo, 23 dated February 12, 2018, The resdual tax demand of Rs. 13,591,265, has
ales been remandead Back to the department by the learned CIA with the specific direction for re-examination
however, re-examinatisn proceedings are il pending on the departmeant end.

Thet CCIR , also passed two different orders vide Mo, 05 B 06 dated June 30, 2018 on 3 similar issue of Claimirg
excess input taw by the Company. The DCIR vide afore-mentioned orders, created tax demand of Rs
1,012,902,072 and Rs. 387,810,929 respectively, alongwith total penatty of R 49,508 058, recoveny notices
was also isjued by the DOR, The former demand redates to claim of presumed sales tax withholding by the
Company's purchasers which withholding has not been made betause of non ar late payments by the
purchasers, The other demand relates (o inadwertently claiming Income tax Input of one import GO which had
earfier baen claimed manually in the sales tax return filed for the tax period August 2012,

The Campany accordingly filed appeals against such tax demand before the learned CIRA taking grounds that,
though the presunted sales tax withhelding and input tax respectively of fis, 1,003,902,072 and 387,819,929
were claimed based on bona-fide erroe o on 8 valid prezumiptlon howeves there was no revenue oss oo the
Government gwing to the fact that the Comgany had 21l along refundable posithon and even the aforesaid
cradit of sales tax was excluded Irom the return, ne payment would become due by the Company and hence,
na revenue loss 10 the Government is invalved In this spetific case.

The learned CIRA, after considering the afore-mentioned grounds, ordered to delele tax demands under
reference vide Qrder Ko, 48 & 49 dated August 28, 2018 with the specific directions that swdh excess clalmed
ingut tax be reduced from the carry forward balances or refund daim evaliable to the Company. Accardingly,
the Commissierer wide letter Mo, C.MNg, COIR/ZOME-LTU/2019,/538 dated lanuary3d, 2019 has allowad the
comgany to adjust such amaunt from its excess carry forward balance. Mow, the matter has been concheded as
BO0VE.

A
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However, the department has filed a Mitcellaneous Application for rectification [ reconsideration of the
decisions glven In the garb of section 57 of the Salas Tax Act, 1990 {the "Act’|. This is dere by taking a plea that
the Cowmpany has not applied for amy refund nor has the Company determined refunds available for such
adfustment and that the claim of huge casried forward Input has not yet been verified,

The aforementioned application has been heard by the learned CIRA, wherein i1 was apprised that, the
Company has claimed buge refund amounting to Rs.5,290,487,959 with the sales tax retum for the taa periad
of June 2020. Furthermare, it was also contended that the plea taken about the warifability of input tax i ako
based on facts as the LTU autharities through an Order 00/2017 dabed Dacember 28, 2007 has already verified
input tax of Rs, 1,233 404,696 out of total confronted amount of R 1,246,995 961, Therefore, the department
has clearly erred in not considering the Fact that the Company has filed refund claimed with the $ales tax return
far the tax period of June 3013 2z well as not considering such verified input fax refund and hance the CIRA
earlier direction are well within the frame of law,

1414 A5 @t June 30, 2020, several casesTitigations aggregating to Rs. 3,398.25 million were autstanding against the
Company. The Company has filed appesis/counter claims agsinst these cases whidh are pendimg for
adjudication, Based on the sdvice of the Company's in house begal counzel, the managemant is confident that
these cases will uftimately be decided in Company's faver and hence no provision & required to be mada in
thiese financial statement.

24,15 The Divisional Bench of SHC passed an arder, in a case relating 1o claim of damages by ore of the suppliar on
accpunt of forfeiture of performance guarantee by the Company, in which SHC directed the Company o pay
the performance puarantee forfeited amounting to AED 1.24 millien {2023; AED 1.24 milllon] equivalent 1o Ks.
93,97 million [2023: ks, 96.62 million] ta the supplier within 30 days of the decisian while the datm for
damages by the sepplier amounting USS 3.46 million (2023: US5 3.46 milllon) equivabent 1o Rs. 962.3% millon
[(2023; Rs. 990,19 million) was set asde by the SHC. In response to this order, both the parties being aggfieved
of the declsion, filed agpeals In Supreme Court of Pakistan which s pending for adjudication.

.16 A decision was given by Single Bonch of SHC during tha year 2014 in favowr of supplier claiming damages and
refund of bid bond sggregating to USS 2.06 milion (2023: USS 2.06 milllon] equivalent to Fs, 572,98 rmillion
|2023: As. SED.54 mi¥ion), Baing aggrieved of the deckion, Cormpany filed appeal with Divisional Banch of the
SHC which Is pending for adjudication. Based on the advice of the Company’s In howse legal counsel, the
management is confldent that this case will ultimately be decided In Company’s favar and hence no pravision is
required to be made im these linanclal statements.

I0.1.7 A forelgn award amounting 1o USS 388 million (2023: US55 3.E8 millkon) equivalent to RS, 1079.21 miliign
{2023: Rs. 1,110.39 million) has been given by Liverpood Cotton Assodation [LCA) against Cotton Export
Corporation of Pakistan [Private) Limited [CEC now merged with and into the Company} along with Interast
from the date of award till payment, &s at June 30, 2024 the interest payable i U5 7.21 million (2023: USS
7.21 miilion) equivalent to Rs. 2,005.44 million {2023: Rs. 2,063.38 million). For making the award a rule of the
Court, the buyer flled a swit against CEC in 1299 and spoceeded in getting a decison in 2004 from Singla Bench
of High Court of Sndh. Being aggrieved by the decislon, Company filed appeal with Divisional Bench of the SHT
which &5 pending for adjudication. Based on the addce of the Compamy's In house legal counsel, the
mansgement s confident that this case will uitimately be decided in Company's favor and hence no provision Is
reguired to be made in these financial staterments,

9,?‘-1
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24,18 An gward amounting to USS 1.20 million {2023; USS 1,26 million] equivalent to Rs. 350,047 million [2023: Rs
360,59 milllon) has been given by the arbitrators unanimousty against Rice Espoct Corposation of Pakistan
{Private) Limited {RECF now merged «ith and into the Company). For making the award a rulbe of the Court, the
burer filed & Suit in the SHC against KECP in 1999 and 8 dedsien in 2003 was made in favar of buyer by Sirgle
Bench of SHC, Thi matter is 2t present subjudice and pending with Divisional Bench in the SHC, Based an the
advice of the Company's in houde legal counsel, the managemient is confident that this case will ultimately be
decided in Company's favor and hence no pravision 1s requined 1o be made in these finandal staterments.

2418 The recovery of export duty on export of Basmatl rice had been held in sbeyance effective July 01, 1981 and
these financial statements have besn drawn up on the assumotion that the liability has not been accrued on
esparts made thareafter. The Company has alsa ghen istters of undertaking aggregatirg to 5. 1328230
millilon {31033 R 1,328 30 milion) 1o the Collecor of Customs against the said export duty on basmat rice.

4230 Fuarantess issued by commercial banks agalnst 100% cash margin on bahalf of the Camparny amounted bo R,
8,36 million (2023: Rs, 3.36 millicn] to Chief Contralior of Imports and Exports [now the matter is being dealt
by the Export Promotion Buresu) in leu of payment of import license fee for the temporary irnpartation of
ermpty Jute bags.

Cases If decided against the Company, the ultimate Nability would fall on the Company

20.1.11 The retwrns for the taa years from 2008 to 2013 were amended by the taxetlon guthorities through ex-parte
arders under Section 123 {54) of the Income Tax Drdingnce, 2001 by disallowing expenses apportioned [
allocated againat profit on investments and setting-off of prior wear refunds against tax Nabilities. The tax
dernand of Rs. 1,955.50 millien was raised. The Company has paid the said demand under protest and filed
appeaky agairst the said orders before Commissioner Infand Revenee (Appeals] which has decided these
appeals agalngt the Company wha in turn filed an appeal in the Appellant Tribunal Inland Revenue. &s a
matter of prudence, the Company recorded tax provisien of Rs. 378.74 million In the vear ended June 30, 2014,
For the tax year 2008 ATIR passed orcer whereln It declared the orginal amendment of tax year 2008 a5
annidled. Since original amendment had been annulled, the Company during the current year, filed application
befora the ATIR to withdraw its appeal filed against further amendsd arder, which has been sccepted by the
ATIR, consequently the appeal flled against further amended order has been withdrawn, In tas year 2009, ATIR
hax adjudicated the appeal filed against further amended order wherei it has remanded back the case to ACIR
far revarification of tax credits. The management s confident that it has good grounds to defend these matters
under appeal and the outcoene i expacted to be decided in favor of the Company and therefore, no further
provision is required to be made in these financial statements,

24,312 In year 2016, the return for the tax year 1014 were also amended by taxation authorities through ex-pare
order under Section 122 (38) of the lcome tax Ordinance, 2001 by disallowing expenses apportionsd [
dllocated against profit on irvestments. The tax demand of Rs. 405.54 millicn was raised and, accordingly, the
Company has paid Rs. 200 million and obtained stay order for As. 205.54 milllon, The said payment was made
under protest and the Company filed appeals against the said order before Commissioner Infand Revenue
[Appeals), which has declded these appeals against the Company, which In turn filed an appeal in the Appellant
Trlbunal Inland Revenue [ATIR). During the year 2018 the Company has paid the remaining amount of Rs.
20554 million, Further, the ATIR has issued an Order dated Feb 38, 2019, concluded to remand back the
underfying caseds), which are pending for adjudication. The management is confident that it has good grounds
to defend these matters under appesl and the outcome is expected 1o be decided in favour of the Company.
Hence, no provision i made In resgect of these demands in these financial statements,

v
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24.1.13 In the year 2017, Additional Commissiones (ACIR) raised net demand of Rs, 40.20 milkon under section 137(2}
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000 by disalbowing tax credits against withholding tax cleimed by the Company
in the tax years from 2008 o 2043, For tax years T011 to 2013, ne prejedidal order has bean passad, while for
fay years 2008 to 2000 liakility has Deen created against wivich the Company has filed Canstitutional Petition
before High Court of Sindh {SHC] on the ground thet the matter i@ time barred, which & pending for
adjudication. The management is confident that it has good grounds we defend thess matters under appeal and
e eutcorne |5 expected to be decided in favor of the Company and therefare no provision is requined Lo be
fmade in these finandial siatements.,

24.1.18 For the tas year 2015, the income tax affairs of the Company were selected for awdit by the Federal Baard of
Rewenua [FER], and thereby the concerned Commissioner has sought Information / explenation pertaining to
the taxation of other income [ allocation of ewpenses, and differance in interest Income and tax credil. In this
ragard, the Company furnished the requiite informaton J/ documents with the concerned Commissiomar,
Subsequently, the ACIR passed an arder under Section 122(1) J 123(5) of the Ordinance, wherein the dermand
of Re. 163.90 milbon was determined & payable, In this regard, the Company filed an appaal before CIRA in
lanuary 2017, which was decided in Aprl 2018 through an ardar in which the Commisslonar had maintained
the action of the assessing officer to disallow common expenses against profic on debt / other income
distodging the contention that the same o be treated a3 business income Subsequently, against the
sforementioned order, the Company filed further appesl before ATIR in July 2018, which is still pending
el jucation, However, the Company has opted to pay off the demand of Rs. 163,85 mifion,

2024 2013
15, SERVICE CHARGES [/ COBMMMSSION INCOME Mota Rugees in D00---—--

Local sepphy of Urea 15.1 481,352 1,081,700

Laral supply of Wheat 252 - 2,021,0mM1

Local supply of sugar - _

-IIE].FSI 3..102I??1

I51 commission &t the rate of 2% of C&F value hes been charged.

8.2 The TCF used to charge a flat rate of 2% a5 &5 commission en CAF value on whest a5 per the appreval of ECC. Howeer,
latar specific dor “currant Imports" for the years 2020-21 & 2021-22 the rate wag reduced to 0,75% of CEF value. For
subsequent years TCP is charging 2% comenission which has been denied by the PASSC0. Ghven the prudent approach
the TCP decided to record commission at the rate of 0755 of CRF valee and the matter is under discussion in ECC for
decision,

2024 2013
6. TRADING DEFICIT TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE GOVERNMENT Motz mmeeeces Hupes b 00—

Local supply on behalf of GaP .1 26,575,459 285,930,567

Cast and eapenies incurred on behalf of GoP 26,2 [(89,217.003) [365,541,025]

Swhsidy for the year to be relmbursed by tha GoP 11 (62,641,504 ’79.71535!t

26.1 Local supply on behalf of GoP

Urea 26,575,499 12,303,425

Sugar = =
Wheat - 273,627,137
lute bags - .
Total supply an behall of the GoP 26,575,495 263,930 562

WN
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2024 2013
262 Costand espenses incurred on behalf of GoP Mote Ruapsted by 0--meeaee
Coening stock 3,264,933 3,259,536
Less:  Recowvery of claims against late shigments = £
Raclassificatinn of receivable against stock w =
Trading and related expensas to be reimbursed by GoP 26.2.1 89,210,945 365,618,322
G2 ATSETI 36E,507 858
Less:  Closing stock (3,258.836) (3,7i64,933)
Total cost of supply EEE‘HT,.DH 365,647 975
26.2.1 Trading and related expensss (o ba reimbursed by Gop
Mark-up [ interest on commaodity fimance 252,11 62,698,150 37,&]}9,3 15
Custom duties, wharfage and other port charges 28212 1,786,621 1,131,943
Lab testing charges 25,1329 a1, 248
Cost of supply - Urea 268.2.1.3 23,084,413 5-1.IJ!_§],IEEI
Stevedoring and handling charges 226,426 2,953,308
Cast of supphy - Wheat JG2.1.4 - 256,441, 3TR
s ance B 201 135,103
Letters of credit chagges 1,647 40,918
Services charges / commission 4@1,352 3,102,770
Storage and transparation . 41,541
Crthvers 7 ad
T BT

26.2.1.1 Mark-up on financing facilities obtained from banks for procurement of commodities on behall of Gop
has been included intrading and refated expenses to ba reimbursed by the GoP,

26.2.1.1 Thic includes tawes pald on impaort and local purchese of commodities under the provisions of the
Incoma Tax Ordirance, 3001 due to the fact that it has been pald on behalf of the GoP.

26.2.1.3 Aepresents the cost of Urea imported during the vesr amounting to RS 23884 billion (2023 Rs. 54.1
billion] and suppliad to Mations! Feriilizers Marketing Umited [NFRL),

26.2.1.4 This reprezents the cost of wheat imported during the year amounting to Rs. Wil (2023: Rs. 266,447
biltkcav) and supplied to Pakistan Agriculural Storage & Services Corporatian (PASSCO),
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ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES Mote
Lelaries, allowances and ather benafits 11
Fepairs and maintenance

Computar and software maintenanoe

Yiehiclas running

Travelling and corveyance

Legal mnd professional

Utilities

Security sarvice charges
Adwartising and publicity
Fees and subscriptians

Ertertalnment

Depreciztion on operating fiked assets 51

Armnartiration

Rent, rates and taxes

Auditors’ remuneration ) 2r.2
Indiredt gapenses - godowes

Communication

Printing and stationsary

MELTENCE
Bank charges
Exchange loss
Othiars
Donations

7.1 Thiz Include provident fund of Rs. 36524 malisn (2023: Rs, 23.33 million} and stalf compensated axpenses of As,

2r.3

90,923 miflion {2023: R= 82,23 millin),

I7.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Annual awdit

Others

Ot of pocket expenies

2.3 This represents donation given to Prime Minister Flood Refied Fund.

,pk,ﬂl

2024

2023
eeanemres BUPEES 1 P00

.
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1,155,314 1,335,854
45,6446 16,113
3,141 2520
22,947 19,155
23,4572 21312
22,073 23391
11,477 .00
12677 L)
G064 BD25
10,781 2.B42
1437 B20
37,633 31,007
703 03
10,688 10,088
3,07 2,795
2,547 0,550
5,585 6,971
2.71% 3,621
7,702 2,265
2,171 2454
16,772 .
14,169 24,083
- 1,133
1448717 1,590,354

2024 2023
[rer— RI.IFIEH in 000-—-—-
2,263 2,057
532 44
ZBO 254
3,075 2,795
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2024 023

28. OTHER INCOME Rupses in 000————

Incomea from financlal assets

Raturn on:

Term deposit receipts and sawing accounts JIRE1R 859,609
Fakistan investroent bords 1,291,576 1,2580.£00
Market treasury bills 3,207,911 1,537 868

income from non financial atsets

Rental intame from godowns ghven on rent 4499359 452 815
Rice inspection fee L] 43,388
Gain on disposal of Fiwed assets 2,918 1,572
fales of tender and purchase order forms 157 46
Fxchange gain 5 287,550
Oherg LETT 119,01E

3,384,520 4,571,756

79. TANATION AND LEVY
231 The Income tax returns of the Compiry have been filed up to tax year 2023 under the Universal Self Assessenent
Scheme, This schiemie provides that the retwrn filed is deemed (o e an assessment order, The returns may be selected

for awdit within five years, The Incerms Tax Commissioner may armend assessment If any objection i raised during

19,2 This represents portion of mirimum tax pald under section 233 of Income Tax Ordinance [ITQ, 2001], representing
leswy in terms of reguirements of IFRIC - 31 /145 - 37

19.3 This represents curreént tax as specified under 145-12 guidance isswed by ICAR, after clagsitying porthon of minimurm tax

as ey,
2024 2023
9.4 Relationshlp botween tay sxponse and sceounting profit semeemneee: RUP2ES in 000—~
Accounting profit before taxation 4,412,334 6081857
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 20% [1023: 29%) 1,279,594 173,734
Effect of noeme subject 1o mirirnem e L B 66E.536
Effect of nem-deductible tax expanses 1E, 771 35,499
Effect of tax alkowable expanses {1532 578} {115,025}
Ettect of deduction allowed for rentats {28,208} {27,215)
Super tax 424 013 (37,158}
Adjustmeant relating to priar years 193 446 [1456979)
181 EEWLBEI

29,5 As more fully explained in note 24.1 to these financial statements, income tax assessment of the Company are opened
on Yarous matters.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Commodity finance under markup arrangements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Refated parties comprice of state controlled entities, retirement benefit funds, companiés vith cormmon directorship, GaP

and opy management persannel.

The GoP owns 99.90% shares and 15 entitlad to appoint beard of directors for the management of affairs of the Compsany. The
Company, therefore, condiders that the GoP is In a position ta exercise control over it and therefare regards the GoP and its

2024

—caisane RLpEES Iry O )———-—

2,158,076

[281.225,015)

{252,393,479)

.
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223

2,101,393

_CrEEs _(s030Lom]

various bodies a5 related parties for the purpose of the disclesures inrespect of related paries.

The Cormgany has availed the exemption available to it under it reporting fromework, and tharefors has not provided
detailed disclpsures al its transsctlons with GoP related entities excapt for transactions stated below which the Camparny

consders are signilicant:

FiERE] 2023
Mame of related parties Mature of transaction el 171545 L
Soaie controied entithes
Geneirment of Pakistan Subssity received £ adjusted 13,818,008 1,598,953
Commiassan 491 357 3_. J-UE,?J"J
Cevidasd pald 10,000 250,000
Uity Stores Corporation of Paldstan Supply - -
Markup chamged 1,281,470 845,716
Cash recatvad 4,031,250 1,261
Kationsl Fartilizer barkgting Limited Supzity 26,554, 270 1,246,908
Markup charged 703 390 -
Cath receivad 27,376,501 15,073,991
Food Depastmeent of Purgad Supply - -
Wark-up 174,545 602,339
Cash receied - 5,587
Food Cepartment of Sindh Calgs =
Mark-up 5
Cash received 1. TEE, DD -
Pakkstian Agriculong SioEge and Serdces Supply - 273,565,789
Lomaratan arkup 1,645,713 1,782,212
Carh received 22, TE9.F6L 244,621,041
Fakistan investment Bandy Invierest earned on BR's 1280,578 1,255, 95
ey manogemenl personmel Femiuneration 12,1862 plok b
Aetiresment berefit fumds
Procident fund Experise 36,524 13,233
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The status of sutstanding recaivables and payables from | to related parties as st June 30, 2024 are Incluced In respactive
notes to these financial statements,

Contriutions to stafi retirement benefit funds are in accordance with the terms of the serace rules. Other transactions with
the related parties are carrad ouk as per agreed barma.

The transactions described below ere colledtively but not Indlvldually significant 1o these finandal statements and therefore
hiave baen described below:

i1 The Compary collects income tax, sales tax and federal excise duty in canscity of withhoiding agent on behalf of GoP.
The Company also pays varlous taxes and dutles to diflerent regulsory authorities including Federal Board of Revenue,
Singdh Beard of Revenus and Customs authorities,

{il] The Company has investment of Re, 64.83 milion |2023- Re. B4.E3 millon| toswards Bguity participation [lﬂ.ﬁﬁ'&] o
Lahore Development Authority (LOA} snd other sponsors for corstructing @ multi-story commercial Building named
LDA Plaza at Edgerton Road, Lahore. The Cempany s entitled to recefve 10.65% of the annual profit earned by the LOA
Plaza.

fiil  The Compary has obtained insurarce cowver for its gedowns, marine cango and motor vehicles from Mational Insurance
Cammpany Limited {MICL] and staff insurance from State Ufe Insurance Corporation Limited.

(W) The Company obtains utility servicss from K-Electric, Lahore Elecrlc Supply Company Limited and Isiamabad Electric
Supply Company Limited.

31. FINANCIAL INSTRIMMIENTS BY CATEGORY

Financlal &5sets - gross

Financiol asseis measured of emortised cost
Lang-term irmmestments 10,643,662 10,373,567
Shaart-term investrments 15 818,572 13,002,333
Long-term loans 62, TER 65,647
Long-tenm depasits 16,449 15,603
Due from Governmant of Pakictan 08,053 896 150,230,360
Trade dabis 56,916,600 81,568,058
Loans and advances 37,113 33,539
FAecrued interest 10671 4,106
Other receivables 21,453 942 13,471,404
Cash and bank balances 2,158,076 2,191,353

Financial ossets measored gt cost
Leng-term investrments GE,E27 &5,8%7

316,256,015 Il&'ﬁi:ﬁ'

Financkal labdlities

Finonciol Mabitities measwed at mmovrtised cost
Long-lerm laan 16,649 16,645
Trade and other payabies 1,394 866 1,540,862
Commaodéty finance under markup arrangements 281,225 025 252,393,479
Irvtar e aooiiisd 15,524 584 14 343,914

Lixan for FMVCL sprinkler system 9 8468 37,335
M 258,190,092 268,932,239
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Fimarcial risk factors

The acthvities of the Company exposs it to & variety of financial risks, market risk (incleding currency rlsk, interast rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on
having cost effective funding as wall a5 to manage financial risk to an accoptable level, The Board of Directors follow
overall risk manapgenent approach within the Company under the policies Esued by GoP, Howeser, th follewing risks
dio not arice when the Company carries ot transsctions on behalf of the GeP in which case credit and other risks are
Iarme by the Government of Pakistan.

[a}  Market risk

hdarket risk is the risk that the value of the financial Instrement may Auctuste &5 a result of changes in rmarket
interest rates, forelgn exchange rates or the prices due to a change in credit mating of the jssuer ar thi
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and lguldity
in the market, The Company is esposed (0 currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk

il  Cwrrency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cazh fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuame
becausa of changes in fareign exchange rates. The Corrpany Imports commodity products and cames
trade payable densminated in forelign currencies. However, the Company i not exposed to Currendcy nisk
ir this respect because these payables refate to commodity import on behall of GoP who bears the riaks
related to these transactions.

The Company hes foreign currency deposits amounting to USS 3.5 million [2023: USS 4,91 million)
aquivalent o Rs. 383,147 millkon (2023 Rs 1,404.258 milllon] with varfous banks. At June 30, 2004, if
the PFakistani Pupee had weakenad [ strengthened by 5% sgalnst the US Dollar with all ather varishles
hield constant, pre-tax profit for the year wauld have been higher / lower by B 29157 million {2023; As,
0213 millign].

{ii}  Interestrate risk

interast rate risk is the risk that the falr value or future cath fiows of a finandial instrumest will luctuate
bacause of changes in marker interest rates, The Company has no inberest rale Exposure as the
Company has saving aceaunts and Imestment in TDRS / PIES are on feed rate and commadity financing
facilities and short termy loans are obtained undér the GoP directives, for which the Company does not
Feave any InLerest rate risk exposure being refrmbussabie by the GoP,

{iif]  Price risk

Price risk Is the risk that the fair velue or futura cash flows from a financlal Instrumeant will fluctuace due
to changes in markst priced (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are cauwsed by Factors specific to the Individual financial Instrumeant or its issuer, or factors
affacting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company has no such investiments as
of the balanca sheat date and theredore is not subject o any significant price risk,
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bl Creditrisk

Cradit risk is the risk that ane party to @ financial instrument will fail & discharge an obfigation and cause the
other party to incur & financial loss, without taking Into account the Far value of any collateral, Concentration
of credit risk ariges when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have imlar
EConomic features that would cause thelr ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes In economic, pofitical or other conditions. Coneantration of crodit risk indicate the ralative sensitivity
aof the Company's parfarmanes Lo developmants affecting a particular ndusiry,

Credit risk arlses from leans, deposits, interest accrued with f from banks and financial Institutions, sdvances
amnl other receivables, The Company ooes not have credit risk on receivables relating to transactions executed
an behalf of GoP, The credit risk on Bguid fund is Hmited because the counter parties are banks with
reasanably high cradit ratng.

{c} Ligquidlity risk

Liguidity risk reprasents the risk that the Company will encownter difficulties in meeting obilgations associated
with financial labilities that are settled by delfvering canh ér another financial saset, Tha management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketably securities and the awailability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed eredit faclllies, Dee to dwmamie nature of the business the Companmy malntains flexibilivg
in funding by mairtaining commited credit lines availabée.

The Company's liquidity maragemeant involves projecting cash flows and congidering the level of liquid assers
necessary to maet these, manitering balance shest liguidity ratios and maintaining debt financing plans,

The table below anadyses the Comoany's financlad Babilitees into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining peritd 3t the balance sheet dabe 19 the contractual rraturity date and repretents the undiscourted

cash flows:
2024
Ondonoed Mty v months  1toSvesn
months
Rupees in 00D e
Long-term koan - - . 16,644
Trade and other peyablas - 1,354,865 - :
Commadity finance urder markup
arangements - TE1 215025 . =
interest accrised - - 15,524,504 -
- 283 619,891 15 SH4 156,649
2023
Less than 3
On demand 3 to 12 manths 1o 5 wears
months
Rupess In D0
Lomg-term koan - . - 15 549
Trade and other payahles - 1,540,862 - =
Commodity finence under markup
AfTENEBMEnt: = 52,303,479 = -
Int=rest scored - - 14 543 944 =
A 253,954,541 14,843,914 16,649

o
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The eommadity finance |5 backed by the pearantee of Government of Pakistan [Go#) therefore, the risk les on
the GoP. Trade and other payables mainly include payable on account of transactions incurred by the Company
on behalf of GoP and therelore the Dompany is not expesed to llquidity risks for sech transactions, Bedides
these, the Company has adequate ressurces in the form of bank balances and shoet term invEstments o repay
its operational liabilities and therefore, is not subject to significant liguidity risk as at June 30, 2024,

33,1  Falr values of financial azsets and financial liabikties:

{a]  Falr value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowtedgeable
willing partles in an arm's length transaction.

The carrying valuas of all finesdal assets and Gabilities reflacted in the financial statements approximate their
fair values except for investment in shares of FTC Management Company Limited and investment in LA Plaza,
which are camied at oot

b} Fair valua astimation

The Company ¢lasasifies the finsncial astets meatured in the balance sheet ac fair value In accordance with the
followding falr value measurement hierarchy:

- Level 1; Quoted prices {unadjusted) in actbve markets for identlcal sssets or liabilities.
= Level 23 Inputs other than guoted prices incuded within Level 1 thet are observable foF the ssset or
Rability, eithes directly (ke as prices] or indicectly {Le. derived frem pricas), The Company has no items
o repart In Wiis level.
. Lewel 3; inputs for the asset or Babllity that are not based on obsenmble market data (unobserabin
inputs),

As at June 30, 2024, the Company does not have any financial instrument which has been carried at fair market value,

34.  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Comnpany's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s abiity to continue a3 & going Concern in
order to carry out functicns entrusted to it by GoP. The Company is 100% owned by the Government of Pakistan and is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 4s of balance sheet date, the Company has gearing effect to the
extent of commodity finance and shart-berm loans facilities, which are obtained for GoP directed operations and guararteed
by GoP,

o
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REMUMNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTDRS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount for the year in respedt of remuneration and benefits e the Chalrman, directors s executivas aro as
Tallows:

024

Chief Exgcutive  Board of Directors Eneinis

Note e —emeeaieas RuspREs i 000
Managerial ramuneration 2,677 - 39,207
Howslng ard wtilities 2,621 - I%270
Other sllowances and benefits 3,547 - 29767
Dizparity allowance 1800 - P
Retiremant benefits L117 - 5870
d5.1 IEIE-I - 115,676
Mumber of parsans 1 g 26
23

Chief Executive Board of Dérscioes Exepitivag

e el [ [ TTTET S 111 [n PISPRREERE

Managerial remuneration 1572 - 16,244
Housing and witllitkes 1,529 . 15,681
Other allowances and benefits 2,557 = 14,441
DEparity albpwance 1,800 . 5. 5bE
Retirgment benelits Er ] - 1,308

10,270 - [TEIT]
Humber of parsong 1 [ 12

" ——

351 In additsen 1o above, the Chief Executive and Executives are also entitled for kave encashment &s per Company policy,
Further, the Chief Executbes and Directors are also eligible for mesting fee.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The average and total number of amployees dering the year and a5 at Juee 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively are & follows:

20Z9 2023
Awerage number of employees during the year 387 301
Mumber of employass as at year and 13z 397
= —— """}

EVENTS DOOURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Dividend has been propased by he aru:t |:|r rectors in its m ﬂﬂ heh:l on O ¥ cBER E'j" L 251 for the year ended

hune 30, 2024 atthe rate_ =0/ | v« 1— o

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Theds financial atamants ware authorized for issige on QL.TE.E.E.Q [ 13 by the Board of Directors of the
Company

o
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39, GEMERAL
38,1 The figures in the financial statements hads been rourded off 1o the nearest thousand repees, unless otherwise sated.

39.2 Corresponding figures have been reclassifled, wherever necessary, for the purpose of better presentation.

o

u;/qLL ;xlw' o

ChéekExetiftive Officer Chiaf Filklgncial Officer Director
\

LY
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(CUIN # 0002554)

NOTICE OF THE 57™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

otice is hereby given that the 57" Annual General Meeting of M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited (hereinafter referred to as “TCP”) will be held at the
CP’s Head Office, situated at the 4™ Floor, Finance & Trade Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, on Monday, October 28", 2024 at 1500 hours to transact the following
siness:

RDINARY BUSINESS:

To confirm the minutes of the 56" Annual General Meeting of TCP held on October 30", 2023 at the TCP’s Head Office in Karachi;
[Minutes are being circulated along with this Notice]

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts for the year ended June 30", 2024 along with the Auditor’s Report thereon as well as the Director’s Report
as required under Section 226 & 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Statement of Compliance (voluntary) with the provisions of the State-Owned Enterprises
(Governance and Operations) Act, 2023 and the State-Owned Enterprises Ownership and Management Policy, 2023;

To declare, approve / ratify and confirm the Final Cash Dividend for the fiscal year 2023-2024 at the rate of Rs.2.00 per share (20%), as declared by the Board of Directors
in its 401 meeting held on October 07", 2024;

To appoint the External Auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2025.
[Notice under Section 246(2) of the Companies Act, 2017 is attached to
this Notice]

PECIAL BUSINESS:

To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meetings of TCP held on June 14, 2024, July 12, 2024 and August 02", 2024 (with adjournment) at the TCP’s
Head Office in Karachi — The following draft resolution may be considered and passed:

“RESOLVED THAT the minutes of he Extraordinary General Meetings of M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited held on June 14, 2024, July
12, 2024 and August 02", 2024 (with adjournment) be and are hereby approved and confirmed.”

[Statement of material facts in terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2017 is annexed hereto and forms an integral part of this Notice]

To consider and approve alterations in the memorandum of association of TCP, as recommended by the Board of Directors of TCP in its 395™ meeting held on May 20™,
2024, for making a petition before the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in terms of Sections 32(2), 33, 34 & 35 of the Companies Act, 2017 read
with Regulations 30 & 37 of the Companies Regulations, 2024 — The following draft resolutions may be considered and passed:

“(i) RESOLVED THAT the alterations in the memorandum of association of M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited (TCP), as recommended by
the Board of Directors of TCP in its 395" meeting held on May 20, 2024, be and are hereby approved for making a petition before the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in terms of Sections 32(2), 33, 34 & 35 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Regulations 30 & 37 of the Companies Regulations,
2024.

(ii)) FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to file Form 26 prescribed under the Companies Regulations, 2024 and a
petition, through Form 5 prescribed under Regulation 30 read with Regulation 37 of the Companies Regulations, 2024, before the SECP for obtaining an order of
SECP confirming alterations in the memorandum of association of TCP.

(iii) FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to represent M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited before
the SECP for filing of Form(s) / statement(s) / representation(s) till the satisfaction of the Registrar concerned for obtaining the order of SECP, confirming the
alteration in the memorandum in pursuance of the resolutions passed by the shareholders.”

[Statement of material facts in terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2017 is annexed hereto and forms an integral part of this Notice]

To consider and approve alterations in the articles of association of TCP, as recommended by the Board of Directors of TCP in its 395" meeting held on May 20", 2024,
in terms of Section 38(1) & (2) of the Companies Act, 2017 — The following draft resolutions may be considered and passed:

“(i) RESOLVED THAT the alterations in the articles of association of TCP, as recommended by the Board of Directors of TCP in its 395" meeting held on May
20, 2024, be and are hereby approved in terms of Section 38(1) & (2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

(i) FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to file the altered articles of association of TCP with the Registrar of
Companies at the Company Registration Office (Karachi) in terms of Section 38(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, along with Form 26 prescribed under the Companies
Regulations, 2024.

(iii) FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to represent M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited before
the SECP for filing of Form(s) / statement(s) / representation(s) till the satisfaction of the Registrar concerned for registration of the altered articles of association.”

[Statement of material facts in terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2017 is annexed hereto and forms an integral part of this Notice]

By order of the Board

Farrukh Majeed Qureshi
Company Secretary
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Karachi
October 07", 2024

NOTES
(a) A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting is entitled to appoint another member as a proxy to exercise all or any of his rights to attend, speak
and vote at a meeting in his place. However, a member may not appoint two or more persons to act as his proxy.
(b) An instrument of proxy duly stamped, signed and witnessed and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarized certified
copy of such power or authority, in order to be valid, must be deposited at the registered office of the company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
(c) A member may, at his discretion, attend and vote at the General Meeting either physically or via video conferencing facility to be arranged upon written request

to be made by the member, entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, through the enclosed “Video Conference Request Form”, which should reach the Company
Secretary not later than seven (07) days from the date of the General Meeting to which this Notice relates. For further details and / or queries regarding video
conferencing, Company Secretary may be contacted.
(d) On a poll, votes may be given either personally or through video-link or by proxy or through postal ballot in a manner and subject to the following conditions,
as specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:
a. participation through video link shall be arranged on demand by members residing in a city and holding ten percent of the total paid up capital;
b. in case of member’s participation through video facility, if so requested in writing as aforesaid, such member is requested to ensure that no person other than
the member himself or his appointed proxy uses the video facility.
(e) In accordance with Article 66 of the Articles of Association of TCP read with Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, the quorum for the meeting shall be
three members present personally, or through video-link who represent not less than twenty-five percent of the total voting power, either of their own account or
as proxies.
(f) Other important notes with regard to appointment of a proxy by a member have been set out in the proxy form annexed with this Notice.
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 246(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
FOR APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS FOR THE YEAR 2024-25
Notice is hereby given to the members under Section 246(2) of the Companies Act, 2017:

1. THAT the Audit Committee, in its 64 meeting held on Monday, October 7%, 2024, had made recommendation to the Board of Directors
for appointment and fixation of remuneration of M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants as external auditors for the year
ending June 30%, 2025.

2. AND THAT, while considering the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of TCP, in its 401% meeting held on
Monday, October 7%, 2024, has resolved that:

“RESOLVED THAT on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered
Accountants be and are hereby approved for placement before the shareholders for appointment as external auditors for year
ending June 30™, 2025.

RESOLVED THAT ten percent (10%) enhancement in the previous year’s audit fee totaling to an amount of Rupees Three Million
Seventy-Four Thousand Six Hundred Ten Only (Rs.3,074,610/-) plus out-of-pocket expenses to be paid at actual subject to a
maximum of ten percent (10%) of the fee, on account of remuneration to be paid to M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar,
Chartered Accountants for carrying out the purpose of appointment, be and is hereby approved for placement before the
shareholders for final approval at the 57" Annual General Meeting, as per the following:

| ASSIGNMENTS | REMUNERATION |
Statutory audit of Financial Statements for the year ending June 30, 2025 Rs.2,488,970/-
Half-Yearly review and submission of interim report for the period ending December 31, 2024 Rs.439,230/-
Review of Statement of Compliance 2024-25 Rs.146,410/-
Total Fee Rs.3,074,610/-

Out-of-pocket expenses to be paid at actual subject to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of the fee. However, the fee shall be exclusive of
pass-through tax (i.e. Sales Tax).

RESOLVED THAT approval be and is hereby accorded for communicating about the appointment of M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood
Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants, and for filing of Form 9 for appointment of external auditor with the Company
Registration Office (Karachi) of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), upon approval by the shareholders
in the relevant Annual General Meeting, for which purpose, the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized.

RESOLVED THAT 57" Annual General Meeting shall be called for obtaining approval of the shareholders for appointment of
M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants as external auditors for the year ending June 30", 2025 and
fixation of their remuneration as recommended by the Board, and twenty one days’ prior notice to that effect may be issued by
the Company Secretary.”

3. AND THAT M/s. Baker Tilly Mehmood, Chartered Accountants have given consent / acceptance to act as external auditors for the year
ending June 30™, 2025, vide their letter No.A/A0078/2024 dated October 2", 2024, by agreeing to the terms and conditions as laid down by the
TCP.

4. AND THAT the said auditors have been declared as qualified to perform audit of TCP and have confirmed that they hold satisfactory
QCR rating by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

S. NOW THEREFORE the matter has been placed before the shareholders of TCP in the 57" Annual General Meeting, in compliance with
Section 246 of the Companies Act, 2017, for consideration and approval.
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF
THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS OF TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN
(PRIVATE) LIMITED HELD ON JUNE 14, 2024, JULY 12, 2024 AND AUGUST 02, 2024 (WITH
ADJOURNMENT)

The following statement of material facts is hereby given to the members under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017:

DESCRIPTION DISCLOSURE
Nature / title / purpose of business to | In order to lay down for consideration of the members of M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private)
be transacted Limited (TCP) the matters concerning alterations in the Memorandum and Articles of Association, an

Extraordinary General Meeting was initially convened on June 14, 2024, however, the said alterations
could not be approved. Therefore, another Extraordinary General Meeting was convened on July 12,
2024, wherein it was decided, on the request of the representative of the Ministry of Commerce,
Government of Pakistan, to reconvene another Extraordinary General Meeting after twenty-one days’
time i.e. on August 02, 2024. The Extraordinary General Meeting was held on August 02, 2024,
however, the same remained unconcluded due to shortage of quorum, and hence, was adjourned till
August 09, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2017, which
was also not concluded. However, since the adjourned meeting may not be adjourned any further in
pursuance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Articles 66 and 69 of the Articles of
Association of TCP, the shareholders / members present at the Adjourned Extraordinary General
Meeting held on August 09, 2024 felt expedient to take the representation from the Federal Government
/ Ministry of Commerce onboard before a decision may be taken for which such General Meeting was
being called, and decided not to hold the Extraordinary General Meeting in the absence of the
representation from the Ministry of Commerce, Government of Pakistan. Hence, the Board of Directors
of TCP passed resolutions, in its 399" meeting held on September 04, 2024, and decided to hold the
Extraordinary General Meeting on Friday, October 11, 2024 at 1500 hours.

The title of business is “To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meetings of TCP held on
June 14™, 2024, July 12", 2024 and August 02"¢, 2024 at the TCP’s Head Office in Karachi”.

The purpose is to seek approval of the shareholders of TCP as a matter of practice, on the matter of
confirmation of the abovementioned Extraordinary General Meetings.

Nature & extent of the interest of | No apparent / perceived interest of any of the directors.
every director

Date, Time and Place for inspection of | The minutes and other record relating to the Extraordinary General Meetings held on June 14, 2024,
the minutes and other record relating | July 12, 2024 and August 02, 2024 may be inspected at any working day (Monday to Friday) during
to the Extraordinary General Meetings | office hours (i.e. from 0830 hours till 1630 hours) at the Company Secretary’s office at TCP’s Head
held on June 14, 2024, July 12, 2024 | Office, situated at the 4" Floor, B Block, F.T.C. Building, Shahrae Faisal, Karachi.

and August 02, 2024

Electronic copies may be inspected by visiting the links given below:

1. Minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on June 14, 2024 [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Qhho3fZiM3Y qJu-XrwO619aKGb6cQLk/view?usp=drive link];

2. Minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on July 12, 2024 [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1 F8dptSRIOVdjjrAGTukzEGOCqFQyzQpb/view?usp=drive link];

3. Minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 02, 2024 [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IRDneFMLpY srgrp9TlsyNmHZLk43tkeeU/view?usp=drive link].
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING ALTERATIONS IN MEMORANDUM OF
ASSOCIATION OF TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

The following statement of material facts is hereby given to the members under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017:

DESCRIPTION

DISCLOSURE

Nature / title / purpose of business to
be transacted

Memorandum of Association is one of the primary constitutional document of any company registered
/ to be registered under the Companies Act, 2017. Memorandum of association of a company lays down
the business / activities, which a company intends to undertake throughout its lifecycle. Memorandum
lays down clauses, which address as to “what will the company do?”. There are other important
ingredients of a memorandum that have been laid down under Sections 26, 27, 30 and 31 of the
Companies Act, 2017.

The Board of Directors of M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited (TCP) felt expedient
to simplify its memorandum of association and to modify it in order to reflect the existing and future
business of TCP, while remaining within the legal framework of allowable activities / businesses, which
the TCP is authorized / eligible to perform and carry on. The procedure for making alterations in the
memorandum has been laid down under Section 32 read with Sections 33,34 & 35 of the Companies
Act, 2017. Such modifications / alterations in the memorandum of association are bound by the relevant
provisions of Sections 26, 27, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34 & 35 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The title of business is “To consider and approve alterations in the memorandum of association of TCP,
as recommended by the Board of Directors of TCP in its 395™ meeting held on May 20™, 2024, for
making a petition before the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in terms of
Sections 32(2), 33, 34 & 35 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Regulations 30 & 37 of the Companies
Regulations, 2024 .

The purpose is to seek approval of the shareholders of TCP as part of the process of making alterations
in the memorandum of association of TCP, and thereafter, to file a petition through relevant Forms
prescribed under the Companies Regulations, 2024 for obtaining an order of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), so that the alterations so approved by the shareholders
and confirmed through an order by the SECP may take effect in accordance with the provisions
of Section 32, 33, 34 & 35 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Nature & extent of the interest of
every director

No apparent / perceived interest of any of the directors, as disclosed in the 395" meeting of the Board
of Directors of TCP held on May 20, 2024.

Date, Time and Place for inspection of
the existing as well as proposed
memorandum of association of TCP,
and the minutes and other record
relating to the 395" meeting of the
Board of Directors held on May 20,
2024

The existing as well as the proposed memorandum of association of TCP, and the unsigned minutes and
other record relating to the 395" meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 20, 2024 may be
inspected at any working day (Monday to Friday) during office hours (i.e. from 0830 hours till 1630
hours) at the Company Secretary’s office at TCP’s Head Office, situated at the 4" Floor, B Block, F.T.C.
Building, Shahrae Faisal, Karachi.

The said minutes of the 395" meeting of the Board of Directors of TCP, once approved & signed within
two weeks from the date of the 395" meeting of the Board of Directors, may be inspected at any working
day thereafter during office hours (i.e. from 0830 hours till 1630 hours) at the Company Secretary’s
office at TCP’s Head Office, situated at the 4™ Floor, B Block, F.T.C. Building, Shahrae Faisal, Karachi.
Electronic copies may be inspected by visiting the links given below:

1. Minutes of the 395 meeting of the Board of Directors of TCP held on May 20, 2024 [Click
Here] OR  [Visit the Link:  https:/drive.google.com/file/d/1qllx6 AsO6a-
naMEYZFDMOIsqYO3rwg22/view?usp=drive_link];

2. Existing Memorandum of Association of TCP [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mpaaR 1sfq6aghWZvEr60zTzmhZu-
tWgu/view?usp=drive_link];

3. Proposed Memorandum of Association of TCP [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KIn6IlmUxa983 GZ9qPtgiPD2-

znPykV6/view?usp=drive link].
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TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Ministry of Commerce - Government of Pakistan

(CUIN # 0002554)

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING ALTERATIONS IN ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION OF TRADING CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

The following statement of material facts is hereby given to the members under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017:

DESCRIPTION

DISCLOSURE

Nature / title /
purpose of business
to be transacted

Articles of Association is one of the primary constitutional document of any company registered / to be registered under
the Companies Act, 2017. It explains as to “How will the company broadly function” — It includes clauses comprising
of broad procedures relating to company’s overall legal structure like share capital, the issuance / transfer of shares,
appointment of board directors and matters ancillary thereto, general meetings, CEO and his appointment, minimum
quorum for a meeting of directors or committees etc. The requirements and provisions appertaining to the articles have
been laid down under Sections 16, 17, 18, 30, 35, 36 & 37 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Owing to promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017 and the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance & Operations) Act,
2023, the Board of Directors of M/s. Trading Corporation of Pakistan (Private) Limited (TCP) felt expedient to alter the
articles of association in order to cater for the segregation of the office of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer,
and also to modify in such a manner that the provisions of the State-Owned Enterprises (Governance & Operations) Act,
2023 and the policy made thereunder are catered for, while adhering also to the other related but non-conflicting
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. The procedure for making alterations in the articles of association have been
laid down under Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2017. Such alterations in the articles of association are bound by the
relevant provisions of Sections 16, 17, 18, 30, 35, 36, 37 & 38 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The title of business is “To consider and approve alterations in the articles of association of TCP, as recommended by
the Board of Directors of TCP in its 395™ meeting held on May 20", 2024, in terms of Section 38(1) & (2) of the
Companies Act, 2017 .

The purpose is to seek approval of the shareholders of TCP as part of the process of making alterations in the articles of
association of TCP, and thereafter, to file a copy of the new articles with the registrar of companies at the Company
Registration Office (Karachi), in compliance with the provisions of Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2017 within a
period of thirty (30) days from the date of passing the resolution making such alterations in the articles of association of
TCP.

Nature & extent of
the interest of every
director

No apparent / perceived interest of any of the directors, as disclosed in the 395" meeting of the Board of Directors of
TCP held on May 20, 2024.

Date, Time and Place
for inspection of the
existing as well as
proposed

memorandum of
association of TCP,
and the minutes and
other record relating
to the 395™ meeting

of the Board of
Directors held on
May 20, 2024

The existing as well as the proposed articles of association of TCP, and the unsigned minutes and other record relating
to the 395" meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 20, 2024 may be inspected at any working day (Monday to
Friday) during office hours (i.e. from 0830 hours till 1630 hours) at the Company Secretary’s office at TCP’s Head
Office, situated at the 4™ Floor, B Block, F.T.C. Building, Shahrae Faisal, Karachi.

The said minutes of the 395" meeting of the Board of Directors of TCP, once approved & signed within two weeks from
the date of the 395™ meeting of the Board of Directors, may be inspected at any working day thereafter during office
hours (i.e. from 0830 hours till 1630 hours) at the Company Secretary’s office at TCP’s Head Office, situated at the 4
Floor, B Block, F.T.C. Building, Shahrae Faisal, Karachi.

Electronic copies may be inspected by visiting the links given below:

1. Minutes of the 395 meeting of the Board of Directors of TCP held on May 20, 2024 [Click Here] OR [Visit
the Link: https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gllx6 AsO6a-
naMEYZFDMO0lsqYO3rwg22/view?usp=drive link];

2. Existing  Articles of  Association of TCP  [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mpaaR 1sfq6aghWZvEr60zTzmhZu-tW gu/view?usp=drive_link];
3. Proposed Articles of Association of TCP [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1 6KR0OoJtFuglL.k JmMS5qaXibwXzYL4HZH9/view?usp=drive_link];
4. A comparison of the existing and proposed Articles of Association of TCP [Click Here] OR [Visit the Link:

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/lihtsil.1gdS-
0u0O0TgLmUTRS5x7gBW7WGX/edit?usp=drive link&ouid=106176918195460268818&rtpof=true&sd=true.
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